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Vision, Mission and Objectives

Vision
a) Tobethe global marketleaderin e-commerce domain.

b) To emerge as a dominant player in secured and
transparent trading.

c) Creating value from waste resources through sustainable
and eco-friendly recycling.

Mission
a) Toensure transparency and better price discovery through
extensive use of e-commerce.

b) To ensure hassle-free and fair e-commerce enabled
trading.

c) Topromote sustainable and eco-friendly recycling.

d) To strive for continuous innovation to deliver desired value
to our stakeholders.

e) To penetrate and expand the markets we handle and
enhance the value of services we render on sustained
basis.

Objectives

a) To increase India’s share in global cross border trade by
facilitating reliable e-commerce enabled trading.

b) To improve customer experience and make a significant
positive impact on customers' satisfaction by providing
prompt and efficient services to business associates,
driving improved loyalty to its business.

c) To provide a secure and transparent e-commerce platform
enabling better price discovery and meet the transactional
requirements of Indian and cross border public and private
sector enterprises.

d) To develop and maintain a competent, dedicated and
motivated workforce.

e) To, enter into joint ventures with enterprises offering
synergy in the area of metal and e-waste recycling,
prospective business on e-commerce platform.

f) To undertake these activities so as to ensure an optimum
return on capital employed and to attain a return of 15% on
the net worth.

g) To build demand and increase supply of recycled metal
and e-waste commodities in the country by investing in
recycling capacity building and providing a transparent
platform for organized disposal of scrap.
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MSTC at Present

MSTC has successfully completed 55 years of its existence on
9th September 2019 and is moving on its way to 56th year of a
long journey of growth. From being a small canalized agency,
it has transformed itself into e-commerce giant in B2B sector
and has the distinction of being only such company in public
sector.

MSTC today is rendering its services to steel and
petrochemical sectors for raw material support and seamless
e-commerce services with innovative approach to various
PSUs, Central Government/State Government and private
sector companies. Successful e-auction of coal blocks is yet
another feather in MSTC'’s cap and MSTC today stands taller
than yesterday. Many Govt. of India’s flagship schemes like
DDUGKY, DEEP, UDAN, DFS bidding, Mineral Block Auction
etc. have been successfully implemented through
e-Commerce portal developed by MSTC. It is the most
preferred service provider and various Central PSUs, State
Governments are engaging MSTC on nomination basis based
onits strong credentials.

MSTC today is category-I Mini Ratna Public Sector schedule
‘B’ company under the administrative control of Ministry of
Steel, Govt. of India. Shares of the Company are listed with
BSE and NSE stock exchanges.

Incorporated in 1964 as a small trading company with a
meagre capital of X 6 lakhs, in last 55 years it has grown into a
large multi-product diversified company. MSTC has issued
bonus shares five times and the shareholders’ value has
substantially being enhanced and one original share is now
sixty four shares. It has paid substantial dividends to the
Government exchequer apart from direct and indirect tax.

MSTC is committed to protection of environment, natural
resources, uplift of the poor and under privileged class under
its CSRinitiatives.

MSTC facilitates in recycling of scrap for industrial use in terms
of raw materials and thereby reduces input cost, conserve
energy & natural resources and ultimately protects the
environment. Thus it contributes significantly to “Swachh
Bharat” Mission of the Government.

MSTC jointly with MMRPL forayed into recycling centre. Two
collection and dismantling centres with a state of the art centre
have been set up at Greater Noida and Chennai. These
centers will act as a supply feed stock for the Main Auto
Shredding plant.

MSTC today on its 56th year of glorious existence expresses
its gratitude to the people of the country, the Government, the
stakeholders for reposing faith in the company. We reiterate
our commitment to ethical business principles, desirable
governance, management capabilities, social cause,
transparency and fairness in all its business activities.
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Chairman’s Statement

Dear Shareholders & Members of the Board,

It gives me immense pleasure to present to you the
Annual Report and Accounts of your Company for the year
ended 31st March, 2020. It is my privilege that | am
communicating with you and | sincerely acknowledge the trust
and confidence you have reposed in the Company during the
recent years. After taking over as the Chairman and Managing
Director of the company on 17th December, 2019, | wish to
reiterate our commitment for pursuing growth opportunity,
ensure expansion of our businesses and also creating value
for all our stakeholders in a transparent and sustainable
manner.

Economic and Business Environment

The global spread of the novel corona virus (COVID-19)
has sent shockwaves through global equity markets, declared
by the World Health Organisation (WHO) as pandemic on 11th
March, 2020. The COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly,
forcing governments to enforce lock-downs. With such
unprecedented measures taken by both the Central and
respective State Governments to contain the spread of
COVID-19, the Country’s economy got adversely impacted.
The pandemicis an unprecedented global health crisis, and its
impact is likely to dominate global markets and policymakers’
attention atleastin the near term.

The real challenge will come in the following months. We
have already started witnessing many of those changes, we
must find ways to understand and respond to the gradually
evolving dynamics of the new normal. In the changed
scenario, we have to rework our strategies and e-commerce
sector has created the much sought opportunity in adversity
globally.

As someone said instead of giving up on the face of
adversity, you should face it with a positive attitude and smile.
Your company has taken proactive measures to comply with
various directions / regulations / guidelines issued by the
Government and local bodies to ensure safety of workforce
across all its offices.
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Structurally, Indian economy has been dominated by
Service sector for the past few decades. Indian Government’s
multiple initiatives like ‘Make in India’, ‘Skill India’ and ‘Startup
India’ in the last decade to make India into a manufacturing
hub and expand the contribution of Manufacturing sector in the
Indian economy shall now face the test of time and with
strategic movement of global businesses it will be seen how
the global businesses and markets find it congenial to relocate
in India.

During the year under review;

Inspite of the challenges, your Company has achieved
significant growth at the operational level. The year marked
the return of your Company into Profit. It was a year of
noticeable improvement in the performance, a year in which
the persistent efforts of your Company to stage the turnaround
finally culminated.

- The company has recorded volume of ¥ 42209.10 million
from sale of scrap/scrap disposal.

- E-sale business has also performed exceptionally well
and has recorded a volume of around ¥ 238621 million.

- E-procurement has recorded increase of approx.
3260418.80 million.

During the financial year, the Board of Directors of your
Company has recommend a final dividend @ 33 % i.e< 3.30
per equity share of the face value of ¥10 each.

Due to outbreak of Covid-19 the current financial year is
very challenging for your company but | firmly believe that your
company is strong with deep relationships with customers and
partners, enviable scale, a diversified business mix, a robust
and resilient business model. Your company is well positioned
to weather the storms ahead and take advantage of
opportunities that come up during the downturn to acquire new
capabilities and gain market share.

MSTC Advantage

MSTC plays a very important role as a service providerin
e-commerce and is a market leader in this sector. Our strength
lies in our ability to convert any business activity conducted
through brick and mortar method and/or in any other method to
online activity. It has the distinction of serving majority of
Central/PSUs/State Govt. Departments and Private
Institutions for providing transparent, fair & seamless
e-Commerce services to its clients. Being a listed Company
now, MSTC will be getting an added advantage in the market
by remaining a little ahead from its peer competitors along with
more recognition throughout the country. The company has
been making concerted efforts to reach out the individual
farmers and provide them a good price for their produce at the
same time reaching out to end consumers with quality and
niche products at affordable price by eliminating the multiple
layers of middlemen. Hence, MSTC is doing splendid work to
balance out the consumers demands and increase the level of
income of farmers in line with the Government of India’s
objective to double the level of income of farmers, in a fair and
transparent way.
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Indian e-commerce sector has witnessed explosive
growth in the past few years, which is expected to continue in
the coming years. This strong growth potential has attracted
foreign investors and we believe that our company is well
poised to take the growth in the sector.

MSTC has always been availing first mover advantage in
its business verticals.
Subsidiary Company

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited is the 100% Subsidiary of the
Company. During the year the subsidiary has performed well .
For the year ended 31st March, 2020, the Profit after Tax of
FSNL was ¥ 305.76 million.

Joint Venture for Shredding Plant with MMRPL

As you are aware that to expand our basket of operation
and to support the steel industry in India, our Company
through MMRPL forayed into the recycling sector. The
Company’s auto recycling plant at Greater Noida has
completed its first full financial year of operations and has
gained significant traction. The Company’s output from the
recycling operations was well received by the market. The
Company’s second plant, located at Chennai, has
commenced trial operations from February 2020.

CSR

Friends, we are committed for improving the livelihood of
communities and societies at large. Due to losses in the
financial year 2018-19 the company does not have any CSR
budget, but as a responsible member of the community your
Company has contributed ¥ 5.54 crores to the Prime Minister’s
Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund
(PM CARES Fund). Majority of the employees of the Company
has also contributed one day salary to Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund
(PM CARES Fund).

Operational Excellence

As you know your company is a major standalone
e-Commerce Company in the country. The area includes
selling agency business, e-sales of scrap and other
commodities, e-procurement etc. Customized e-commerce
solutions have emerged as major innovative business models
of MSTC. Here we have developed an unique Exim Portal for
Petroleum Industry, Online Draw System for selection of LPG
dealership, e-RaKAM (e-Rashtriya Kishan Agri Mandi) Portal
for sale of pulses, oil seeds etc., to name a few.

During the year under review MSTC had auctioned
successfully many plots on behalf of Hyderabad Metropolitan
Development Authority. Portal for plots of Ghaziabad
Development Authority has also been developed. MSTC had
made 40699 no. of Auctions/events through its portal as
compared to previous year figure of 36640 no. of auctions.

During the year under review your Company has
launched JaivikKheti portal for sale of organic farm produce
throughout India on behalf of Ministry of Agriculture,
Government of India. Organic farmers serve as the sellers,
and the bidders include a variety of processors, traders, and
even individual consumers.
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Your company has been nominated by Indian Bank
Association (IBA) as the agency to develop an e-auction portal
to function as an integral part of IBA's eBKray website for sale
of mortgaged properties of different banks under SARFAESI
Actand auctions are being conducted.

Your Company is making rapid strides in the
e-Commerce sector in line with the Government policy(ies) of
promoting Digital India and e-governance in all sectors of the
economy. We are in the forefront of the implementation of
various initiatives of Gol such as Digital India to boast
transparency and fairness.

The recent initiative of the Government for sale of
mineral blocks, both major and minor, through e-auction has
also opened window of opportunity for MSTC and it has signed
agreement with most of the State Governments, which may
yield positive results to the exchequer of the states and fetch
revenue to MSTC.

E-procurement is another potential area in which MSTC
is making a rapid stride to grab the business. MSTC has
introduced a new version of the e-procurement platform with
advanced and more user friendly features. .

In order to make good the shortfall in trading business
through cash and carry model, MSTC is pursuing 110% BG
backed procurement business which is risk-free business.

Future outlook

MSTC is waiting for vehicle scrapping policy which can
help to ensure continuous supply of end of life vehicle for the
running plant of our JV Company MMRPL and opportunity for
more such plants.

Minerals & Mineral Blocks

MSTC is a nominated agency for allocation of coal
blocks and all major mineral blocks in the country through its
very customized e-Commerce portal. The minor mineral
blocks allocation is also happening through MSTC'’s
e-Commerce portal in the various states in the country.

The selection of Mine Developer-cum-Operator in many
states is mostly done through e-Procurement portal of MSTC.

In addition, all the major minerals including coal are
being sold through e-Auction portal of MSTC barring a couple
of mines for mineral in Barbil area which is at the confluence of
Orissa, Jharkhand & West Bengal.

e-procurement

MSTC is aggressively pursuing the e-procurement
business which remains to be of high potential for it.

e-Retail Software

MSTC has carved niche for itself by developing an
unique exim portal for Oil marketing companies and in the
process, MSTC has developed the required expertise for
providing e-Retail Software solutions to the Government and
private organizations particularly the MSME. This sector
holds a great opportunity and potential for MSTC in future.
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Non-Performing Assets (NPAs)

MSTC has been conducting regular auctions for
movable and immovable assets as NPAs for Government as
well as private companies. MSTC has developed an e-auction
portal to function as an integral part of IBA's eBKray website for
sale of mortgaged properties of different banks under
SARFAESI Act. The portal is being used by all PSU Banks to
sell their NPAs under SARFAESI Act. The portal provides the
prospective buyers a single window for purchasing the
properties of their choice without the trouble of surfing through
multiple websites.

Targeting private companies

MSTC is casting more focus on the untapped
e-Commerce business from the private sector and in this
stride MSTC has signed big ticket agreement with Reliance
Industry, Indus Tower, Tata Power, Vedanta etc. to name a few.

Targeting niche organic agri-horti sector:

MSTC has developed Jaivik Kheti portal for providing
direct access to the market for organic farmers, on behalf of
Ministry of Agriculture. The Jaivik kheti portal is an
E-commerce as well as a knowledge platform. Buyers can
avail organic products at their door step through the portal.
This portal links various stakeholders like regional councils,
local groups, individual farmers, buyers, government
agencies and input suppliers for the all-inclusive development
and promotion of organic farming. The portal provides various
price discovery mechanisms to help farmers get the best
prices for their products through forward auction, price-
quantity bidding, book building and reverse auction
mechanisms.

Opportunities

i) E-Commerce: MSTC has emerged as a major standalone
e-commerce service provider in the country. With its foray
into new and diverse business verticals including the
flagship projects of the Govt. of India, it has an immense
potential to grow multifold in this arena.

i) MSTC is trying hard to harness the untapped potential in
the Private Sector.

iii) Recycling Sector: MSTC is spearheading the initiatives
of framing a recycling policy, its pivotal role in setting up
recycling plant in the automobile sector, e-waste and solid
based management sector which is a sunrise sector.

Threats

i) GeM portal — reducing opportunity in exposure: With the
Govt.’s directive to use the GeM Portal for purchases, the
business in e-procurement of goods and services will take
a hit. The scope of work in e-procurement gets a bit
downsized, as major percentage of any Corporation’s
business is spent on procurement of goods and services.
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i) Trading business: As a policy matter, MSTC has decided
to play safe in the traditional trading business due to the
extent of risk involved. Though it is making efforts to
resurrect the same, the slowness of the economic growth
and the exponential increase in NPAs etc has destabilized
the credit system and it poses a difficult scenario, for the
business.

iii) Cyber attacks- Risks of cyber-attacks are forever a threat
on account of the fast-evolving nature of the threat. In
addition to impact on business operations, a security
breach could result in reputational damage, penalties and
legal and financial liabilities.

Investor Services

The Company’s shares have been dematerialized in
both the depositories, i.e., NSDL and CDSL. 88 Shareholders
out of around 13000 shareholders are still holding shares in
physical mode. | would like to request to the remaining
shareholders to get their shares dematerialized so that the
bonus shares lying in the “MSTC Limited Unclaimed Bonus
Suspense account” can be transferred to the demat account of
the respective shareholders. Further this will also enable the
shareholders to receive the dividend on time.

Corporate Governance

Your Company always strives to attain highest standards
of Corporate Governance practices. The Company is
complying with Government Guidelines on Corporate
Governance framed by the Department of Public Enterprises
(DPE) for CPSEs, and SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 in true letter and spirit. Your
company is continuously working for the optimum benefit of its
stakeholders and has thus molded its corporate conduct to
fulfill these responsibilities. The Company has established
systems & procedures to ensure that its Board of Directors is
well informed about the policies of the Company to enable
them to discharge their responsibilities and to enhance the
overall value of all stakeholders. Your Company is making best
efforts to adapt and comply with the changing statutes and
continue to comply with the Corporate Governance
guidelines/ norms to the extent within its control.

Accolades & Recognitions:

During the year your company has received recognitions
in various spheres of its activities. A few of the significant are
as follows:

1. Awarded the 1st prize in Raj Bhasha Kriti Award by
Department of Official Language, Ministry of Home Affairs for
its excellent efforts in execution of working in official
Language.

2. Awarded the 1st prize by Town Official Language
Implementation Committee, Kolkata for its excellent efforts in
execution of working in official language. The prize was
received from Shri Jagdeep Dhankhar, Governor of West
Bengal.
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Human Resources

Your company has always considered its human
resource as the most important resource and has been
conducting various employee benefits programs. The
industrial relations have remained cordial and participative all
along. We have opened offices in many cities in India so that
we can reach out to our principals and customers easily and
generate more business. Therefore we have recruited officers
for expansion of business and non — executives all over the
branches to cater the needs of all type of clients.

| can assure you, on behalf of the management that with
prudent and experienced Board members, an efficient and
loyal manpower and sound financial resources, we are
managing the affairs in the most reasonable way keeping in
view the interest of the stakeholders.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Overview of Indian Economy

The Indian economy slowed down with GDP growth
moderating to 4.8 per centin H1 of 2019-20, lower than 6.2 per
centin H2 of 2018-19. A sharp decline in real fixed investment
induced by a sluggish growth of real consumption has
weighed down GDP growth from H2 of 2018-19 to H1 of 2019-
20. Real consumption growth, however, has recovered in H2
of 2019-20, cushioned by a significant growth in government
final consumption. At the same time, India’s external sector
gained further stability in H1 of 2019-20, with a narrowing of
Current Account Deficit (CAD) as percentage of GDP from 2.1
in 2018-19 to 1.5 in H1 of 2019-20, impressive Foreign Direct
Investment (FDI), rebounding of portfolio flows and accretion
of foreign exchange reserves. Imports have contracted more
sharply than exports in H1 of 2019-20, with easing of crude
prices, which has mainly driven the narrowing of CAD. On the
supply side, agricultural growth, though weak, is moderately
higher in H1 of 2019-20 than in H2 of 2018-19. Headline
inflation rose from 3.3 per centin H1 of 2019-20 to 7.4 per cent
in December 2019 on the back of temporary increase in food
inflation, which is expected to decline by year end. Rise in CPI-
core and WPl inflation in December 2019 suggests building of
demand pressure.

India's GDP growth is seen dipping to an 11-year low of 5 per
cent in the current fiscal, mainly due to poor showing by
manufacturing and construction sectors, India's GDP is
expected to reach US$ 5 trillion by FY25 and achieve upper-
middle income status on the back of digitisation, globalisation,
favourable demographics, and reforms. To achieve this, the
government has taken multiple long-term steps including:

* MadeinlIndia

e Startuplindia

* NITIAayog

e PayGovandJanDhan Yojna
e E-Taal, MyGov, E-Sampark

* BharathNet

which has helped India improve its ranking in the World Bank's
Doing Business Report by 23 spots over its 2017 ranking to be
ranked 77 among 190 countries in 2020 edition of the report.

Global Scenario

The year 2019 was a difficult year for the global economy with
world output growth estimated to grow at its slowest pace of
2.9 per cent since the global financial crisis of 2009, declining
from a subdued 3.6 per cent in 2018 and 3.8 per centin 2017.
Amidst a weak environment for global manufacturing, trade
and demand, Global growth, estimated at 2.9 percent in 2019,
it was projected to increase to 3.3 percentin 2020 and inch up
furtherto 3.4 percentin 2021.

Further, COVID-19 pandemic has, with alarming speed,
delivered a global economic shock of enormous magnitude,
leading to steep recessions in many countries. The global

recession would be deeper if bringing the pandemic under
control took longer than expected, or if financial stress
triggered cascading defaults. It is leading to steep recessions
in many countries a global health crisis that, in addition to an
enormous human toll, is leading to the deepest global
recession since the second world war. While the ultimate
growth outcome is still uncertain, and an even worse scenario
is possible if it takes longer to bring the health crisis under
control, the pandemic will result in output contractions across
the vast majority of emerging market and developing
economies (EMDEs). Moreover, the pandemic is likely to exert
lasting damage to fundamental determinants of long-term
growth prospects, further eroding living standards for years to
come.

Global e-Commerce trade value was estimated to be USD
27.7 Trillion in 2016. During the time period 2012-16, the value
of e-Commerce trade globally has increased by a CAGR of
almost 9%. B2B e-Commerce accounted for nearly 86% of the
total e-Commerce trade. In terms of trade value, US is the
largest B2B market followed by Japan and China. However,
China leads the global B2C e-Commerce table. Indian e-
Commerce industry has been growing at a fast pace, and the
country entered the list of top 10 e-Commerce markets in the
world in 2015.

Top 10 B2B e-commerce Markets in the World (Traded
Value in USD Billion) in 2016

Country B2B e-commerce % of total
Sale e-commerce
USA 6,904 91%
Japan 2,675 95%
China 1,389 64%
South Korea 1,133 95%
Germany 926 92%
United Kingdom 497 72%
France 487 86%
Ganada 402 90%
India 305 91%
Italy 271 93%

Source : United Nations Conference on Trade and Development
(UNCTAD), Note Size of India is estimates for 2015 (considering in the
previous edition India’s B2B size was specifically mentioned as 2014
date)

Competitive Scenario in B2B E-Commerce

The competitive intensity in the overall B2B e-Commerce
industry is accelerating due to entry of large global players and
a host of start-up ventures funded by private equity. However,
large established players enjoy a clear dominance over the
emerging startups. This is primarily due to scale of business
operation, rich experience, technology benefit that ensure
transparency in business transaction, service quality and
ability to handle large volume of data. With respect to
auctioning of natural resources such as coal, iron ore, sand,
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public enterprises continue to dominate through nominations agent of alarge number of Government departments/PSUs for
which limits intense competition in this segment. At present disposal of scrap, surplus stores, old Plant & Machinery,
there are only a handful of government platforms that provide e-waste, hazardous items, obsolete items, etc. MSTC’s
e-auctioning services to various government entities which processes enable the sellers to achieve their annual revenue
include MSTC Ltd. generation target from such disposal activities. MSTC offers
Besides natural resource auctioning, MSTC Ltd. has been complete package of services from preparation of the auction
providing e-auction services for scraps sale, minerals, old catalogue to the issuance of delivery order with minimum
plant & machineries, coal and non-coal mine blocks, land human efforts.

parcels, agricultural produce, tea, gorgon nut, tendu leaves, E -Sales

timbers and other forest produce etc to various clients in the
public as well as private sector. MSTC Ltd. and other
government agencies such as eNAM, GeM, CPPP,
Government E-Auction platform are driving government
penetration in B2B e-Commerce sector.

Starting with sale of coal through e-Auction way back in 2004,
MSTC has been developing different modules of e-Auction to
cater to the various needs of different sellers of items. Besides
coal, MSTC is selling other minerals like manganese ore, iron
ore, lignite, chrome ore, bauxite etc. and various other

Company’s Business products, raw pet coke, pet coke, human hair, fly ash etc.
MSTC has two core business segments namely e-Commerce MSTC is a nominated agency for all major mineral blocks and
& Trading. MSTC plays a very important role as a service minor mineral blocks in various states/UT's.

providerin e-Commerce and is a market leader in this sector. It E - Procurement

has the distinction of serving majority of Central/PSUs/State

In e-procurement, MSTC provides e-Tender and e-Reverse
Govt. Department and a few leading Private Institutions for

auction services backed by mandatory STQC certificate for

providing transparent, fair & seamless e-Commerce services quality requirements. Although, MSTC made a modest
toits clients. beginning in FY 2013-14 but it has made a significant growth in
A. e-Commerce Business the subsequent year and is poised for exponential growth in
MSTC is a major standalone e-Commerce service provider in future. The system complies with the guidelines framed by
the country. MSTC has introduced e-Commerce in various STQC for quality and security checks. Recently MSTC has
commodities line such as coal, Iron ore, minerals, pulses, launched a newer version of e-procurement services which is
grins, oil seeds, timber, in forest products, fly-ash etc. Apart more user friendly, less human intervention with advanced
from this, MSTC has also undertaken the e-Auction of land, scalable and customised interface.

buildings, apartment, banks’ NPAs and also assets under MSTC has added a unique feature in the e-procurement
DRT, organic Agriproduce etc. services in the form of multi browser facility to make it more
e-Auction of sand Mining blocks in UP and exim-product of user friendly.

IOCL have been the signature events in the recent past. E - Solutions

Development of portal for regular auction of coal and mineral MSTC has delivered certain key e-bidding packages for
blocks (both major & minor) has been the reflection of various ministries of Government of India. The DEEP portal
Governmentfaith in MSTC’s e-Commerce services. became fully operational for medium term PPA and PPAs
Selling Agency Business worth more than one Million MW was settled through this

portal. Jaivik kheti portal is a unique initiative of Ministry of

For a long period of time now, MSTC is acting as the selling

addressing the AGM




Agriculture (MoA), Department of Agriculture (DAC) along with
MSTC to promote organic farming globally. It is a one stop
solution for facilitating organic farmers to sell their organic
produce and promoting organic farming and its benefits.

For providing direct access to the market for organic farmers,
on behalf of Ministry of Agriculture MSTC has developed the
portal. This portal provides a single window for creating
general awareness & knowledge sharing on Organic Farming,
developing network between the Farmers, Buyers & Input
Suppliers and also transacting business online with e-
payment & logistic support. More than 60,000 farmers, 2,500
farmer groups have already been registered with the portal.

Jaivik kheti portal is an E-commerce as well as a knowledge
platform. E-commerce section of the portal provides the whole
bouquet of organic products ranging from grains, pulses, fruits
and vegetables. Buyers can avail organic products at their
door step through the portal. This portal links various
stakeholders like regional councils, local groups, individual
farmers, buyers, government agencies and input suppliers for
the all-inclusive development and promotion of organic
farming. The portal provides various price discovery
mechanisms to help farmers get the best prices for their
products through forward auction, price-quantity bidding, book
building and reverse auction mechanisms.

NUAL EUSINESS MEETING

FINARCIAL TEAR 2019 - 2020
1oth & 17th April, 2019

Annual Business Meeting dated 16" & 17" April 2019 at Kolkata

MSTC has been nominated by Indian Bank Association (IBA)
as the agency to develop an e-auction portal to function as an
integral part IBA's eBKray website for sale of stressed assets
of all nationalized banks under SARFAESI Act. The said portal
became operational in December’2019 and upto 31.03.2019,
a total of 15 Public Sector Banks had auctioned 6895
properties.

MSTC has developed and implemented Inventory
Management software for Zoological Survey of India. The
application has been hosted in BSNL Cloud. The online Draw
System software has been developed for distributing the
dealership of Retail petrol Pumps across the country by the Qil
Marketing Companies. More than 10000 retail pumps have
already been allotted through this process. For selection of
bulk transporter online draw system has also been developed
for Oil Marketing Companies.

a. EXIM Portal for Petroleum Industry

The online bidding platform for Export & Import of petroleum
products has been developed & delivered to IOCL. The EXIM
portal is fully operational and IOCL is reaping the benefits after
transforming its Import & Export activities to online mode. This
is a path breaking portal for all the players in petroleum sector
in India and abroad.

b. e-RaKAM (e-RastriyaKishan Agri Mandi) Portal

MSTC Ltd had launched a nationwide electronic portal — e-
RaKAM for trading in the agriculture produces. The online
trading platform which primarily deals in food grains, pulses,
and all agriculture related commodities and connected
farmers directly with consumers.

This portal will eliminate multi layers of middlemen and help
farmers get remunerative prices for their produce besides
promising rich produces at reasonable prices to consumers
also.

c. Online Draw System for selection of LPG Dealership:

Online Draw System is the process to select the applicants out
of the eligible applicants, in secured and transparent manner,
without any human intervention. In the current system, online

Business review Meeting dated 27" Janyary 2020
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applications are requested from the interested candidate and
then from these candidates, eligible candidates are allowed to
take part in the draw. This software is used in events to
conduct online draws and display the names of the winners on
the screen. The system is easy to use and ready for more
complex draws. The application is developed with random
number generation algorithm for conducting on-line
computerized draw of lots (Online Computerized Draw
System) by selecting only one eligible candidate at each time
out of the total eligible applicants. Shuffling will occur for the
names of the applicants along with their details in random
order at the press of a button. Visualization of the shuffling
process for display on the screenis there.

d. E-Procurement services for Purchase of Coal: MSTC
has developed e-Procurement services providing end-to-end
solution to NTPL for their purchases of coal. In addition, MSTC
has developed and implemented e-Reverse auction portal for
imported Thermal Coal which has made import of coal
transparent, hassle free and economical. NTPL has utilized
the system for procurement of 2.4 Million tons of coal and
immensely benefited by reducing their cost of material. Taking
a cue from this, other clients have also sought for the similar
services of MSTC.

E-Commerce business constitutes about 99% (93% in
2018-19) of the total volume of business of the Company
during FY 2019-20 and has the potential to grow exponentially.
During FY 2019-20, the service charge income generated on
e-Commerce business was ¥1831.40 Million (32042.60 Million
inFY2018-19).

B.Trading Business

In trading business, which constituted 1%( 7% in 2018-19) of
the total volume of business during FY 2019-20, MSTC acts as
a facilitator for procurement of raw material for secondary steel
producers and petrochemical industry on behalf of buyers and
charge mark-up on percentage basis.

The trading division was engaged in import as well as
domestic sourcing of bulk industrial raw material for actual
users as well as traders. This division looks after sourcing,
purchase and sale of industrial raw materials like Heavy
Melting Scrap, Low Ash Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Naptha,
Crude Qil, Coking Coal, Steam Coal etc. on behalf of various
industries. Due to various issues faced in the past the model of
business was changed to BG backed and Associateship.

As already mentioned above, MSTC has also developed
another scheme under which procurement is done backed by
bank Guarantee ( BG) from the Customer. Customers who
have sanctioned BG limits can use the same to procure raw
materials / commodities for their projects or for trading. In this
model, MOA is signed with the Customer after following the
laid down process. Procurement is done on behalf of the
Customers backed by 110% BG opened on any Scheduled
commercial Bank. The payment is released to the Supplier by

way of LC/RTGS in facilitator mode for import or domestic
procurement. The material is directly shipped to the customer
thereby eliminating the need for storage which results in
saving on account of warehouse and custodian charges.
MSTC’s entire exposure is covered by the Bank Guarantee
submitted by the party/Customer.

Trading division has contributed significantly to the top line as
well as the bottom line. The Service charge earned from this
segmentwas ¥ 93.93 Million during the year.

Import of Thermal Coal & Supply of Domestic coal

This line of business was started in order to meet the demand
forimported thermal coal by the various power utilities in India,
MSTC had imported thermal coal to such buyers on door
delivery basis either by participating in tenders floated by
power Utilities or on nomination basis. However, with the
opening up of the sector and increased supply from Coal India
Limited, import of coal by the power utilities have come down
drastically. The situation was further aggravated by low
demand of power which resulted in reduced PLF for the Power
utilities. These factors resulted in no business from this
segment.

However, MSTC has successfully supplied 548925 MT of
domestic coal valued at ¥ 2,417.77 Million and earned a
markup of ¥ 18.83 Million. The supplies were effected to West
Bengal Power Development Corporation Limited (WBPDCL)
under purchase sale mode.

Supply of Line Pipes

MSTC has been supplying Line pipes to GAIL on delivery to
dump site basis. MSTC participates in the tenders floated by
GAIL for supply of Line pipes through its business associate on
back-to-back basis. The business associates are empanelled
through an open tender by MSTC. MSTC has successfully
supplied 44,133 Mtrs of line pipes to various projects of GAIL
valued at ¥ 3,283.34 Million this year against 3,31,425 Mtrs
valued at ¥ 6,339.30 Million in the previous year. With more
such tenders expected from GAIL, IOCL, HPCL, the business
is expected to grow in the coming year. Under this model, all
the arrangements are on back to back basis with the Associate
Supplier.

The total performance of Trading Division during FY -2019-20
stands at¥11,523.20 Million.

C. Recycling:

MSTC has already forayed into recycling business by setting
up Collection & Dismantling Centre (C&D ) at Greater Noidain
Joint Venture with Mahindra Intratrade Limited wherein the
End of Life Vehicles (ELVs) are purchased for de-polluting,
dismantling and converting the metallic parts into bales and in
an environmental friendly manner. This plant at Greater Noida,
is the nation’s first authorized recycling unit for End of Life
Vehicles. Three more such C&D centres are planned to be set
up in various parts of the country during this fiscal. The




Shredding Plant is also planned to be set up at costal belt of
Gujarat during this fiscal.

MSTC is also conducting auctions for scrap goods and
Hazardous item generated in the collection centre at Greater
Noida.

Diversification of Growth and future developments

MSTC in association with the Ministry of Road Transport and
Highways, Ministry of Heavy Industries, Society of Indian
Automobile Manufacturers (SIAM) and other such bodies has
taken up for enactment of a Law for incentivizing compulsory
scrapping of End of Life Vehicles as existing in other
developed and developing countries. In the near future, Govt.
of India is likely to come up with a policy in this regard.

Future Outlook

1. MSTC is looking at giving more value added services to
existing and future clients in terms of logistics, valuation
consultancy and technology driven assistance for decision
making.

2. MSTC is a nominated agency for allocation of coal blocks
and all major mineral blocks in the country through its very
customized e-Commerce portal. The minor mineral blocks
allocation is also happening through MSTC’s e-
Commerce portal in the various states in the country.

The selection of Mine Developer-cum-Operator is mostly
done through e-Procurement portal of MSTC.

In addition, all the major minerals including coal is being
sold through e-Auction portal of MSTC barring a couple of
mines for mineral in Barbil area which is at the confluence
of Orissa, Jharkhand & West Bengal.

3. Although MSTC has made inroads into forest and Agri
sector in India but has to play lead role for huge market in
India through aggressive marketing strategy and
rendering seamless services. The niche market, such as
organic produces and natural grown Agri-horti produces of
North-East are the target market for MSTC.

4. MSTC has carved niche for itself by developing an unique
exim portal for Oil marketing companies and in the process
MSTC has developed required expertise for providing e-
Retail Software solutions to the Government and private
organizations particularly the MSME. This sector holds a
great opportunity and potential for MSTC in future.

5. MSTC has been conducting regular auction for moveable
and immovable assets as NPAs for Government as well as
private companies. But the recent move of banks for
consolidation of the sale of NPAs by a single service
provider is on the anvil and MSTC is poised for grabbing
this business inimmediate future.

6. MSTC is casting more focus on the untapped e-
Commerce business from the private sector and in this

MSTC

e r_l-" ;!.-'-I e
Frfres LIMITED
ww s AT RN e 4k Ciced i Tk Ervimepriosi

stride MSTC has signed big ticket agreement with
Reliance Industries, Indus Tower, Tata Power, Vedanta
etc.toname afew.

MSTC is spearheading the initiatives of framing a
recycling policy for India which will pave the path of
converting presently an unorganized sector into an
environmentally sensitive organised recycling sector.

Besides, the possibility of inclusion of e-Waste recycling
plant which can also extract & recover precious metals
availability in the e-Waste with the proposed Auto
Shredding Plant, is also being considered.

MSTC is increasing the e-Commerce business
exponentially to exploit the available potential with a focus
on e-auction of mining blocks (both coal & non-coal),
minerals, agri & forest produce and e-procurement. MSTC
has plans to launch e-shopping malls for handicrafts,
apparels, painting, etc. in various States to promote
Cottage Industries.

Some of the major opportunities MSTC is pursuing:

a.

The recent initiative of the Government for sale of mineral
blocks, both major and minor, through e-auction has also
opened window of opportunity for MSTC and it has signed
agreement with most of the State Governments which may
yield positive results to the revenue of MSTC.

MSTC is exploring e-auction of sand mining block in other
states in line with uttar Pradesh model.

MSTC has signed an agreement with NAFED to sell the
food grain lying with various godowns in the country
through e-auction. Procurement of the same is also within
the ambit of agreement through e-reverse auction.

e-Procurement is another potential area in which MSTC is
making a rapid stride to grab the business. MSTC has
introduced multi broker facility to make much deeper dent
in the e-procurement domain of business.

Govt. of Rajasthan has appointed MSTC for e-Auction of
Royalty Collection Contract, excess Royalty collection
contract (ERCC), Prospective License-cum-Mining Lease
(PLcum ML) and Mining Lease for minor minerals.

Gouvt. of India has engaged MSTC for implementation of its
various flagship of Innovative schemes through its e-
Commerce portal. Some are already implemented and
some are upcoming. One such scheme is disinvestment of
CPSE through e-Commerce route and is being
spearheaded by DIPAM.

MSTC has successfully conducted e-auction of coal
linkages for unregulated sector such as cement, steel,
sponge iron, etc. The e-auction of coal linkage has
commenced under Shakti scheme by Ministry of Coal.

The successful portals for EXIM products for IOCL may be
extended to other OMC'’s both public and private.




WA ﬂ MSTC
LIMITED
T METC 5k Gt - irachi Enimrprivi

Discussion on Financial Parameters with respect to
Operations and Performance

Performance
A) Agency Business

This year the total volume of Agency Business stands at
34,20,415.90Million, againstI 4,54,326.70 Millionin 2018-19.
Break-up for the year 2019-20 vis-a-vis 2018-19 is as follows:

B) E-Procurement

Business Segment Volume of Business
(% inMillion)
2019-20 2018-19
e-Procurement 8,41,973.20 5,81,554.40
Total (B): 8,41,973.20 5,81,554.40
Total (A+B): 12,62,389.10 10,35,881.10
C) Trading

The performance of the Trading Division shows a total volume
of business of ¥ 11,523.20 Million, againstX 76,856.26 Million
in 2018-19. Break-up for the year 2019-20 vis-a-vis 2018-19 is
as follows:

Business Segment Volume of Business
(Zin Million)
2019-20 2018-19
Scrap Disposal 42,209.10 51,555.70
e-Sale 2,38,621.50 2,40,352.20
Coal e-Auction 70,399.90 98,011.30
Iron ore e-Auction 69,185.40 64,407.50
Total (A): 4,20,415.90 4,54,326.70

%

Shri S K Gupta, CMD, MSTC Limited called on Shri Dharmendra
Pradhan, Minister of Petroleum & Natural Gas and Minister of Steel
on 7th January, 2020 at New Delhi

Business Segment Volume of Business
(in Million)
2019-20 2018-19
Imported materials 201.20 21,800.77
Indigenous materials 11,322.00 55,055.49
Total (C): 11,523.20 76,856.26
Grand Total (A+B+C): |12,73,912.30 11,12,737.36

Risks and Concerns

Agency Business

The Selling Agency business has inherent risk since principal
can any time decide to do the selling job themselves. Of late,
principals are resorting to tendering and small players are
quoting very less rate of service charge owing to their less
investment in infrastructure and nil obligations towards CVC
guidelines and IT Act, 2000. However, because of quality and
transparency, MSTC has retained most of the business in this
segment.

.
Shri S K Gupta, CMD MSTC Limited called on Shri Faggan Singh
Kulaste, Union Minister of State for Steel on 24th December 2019
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Key Ratios FY2019-20 | FY2018-19 | Changein% | Reason for Difference

Debtors Turnover 1.04 0.95 9.47 | The Company has tapered down its Trading business and Covid-19
pandemic has impacted the trading business of MSTC delaying the
repayments by the Customers.

Inventory Turnover NOT APPLICABLE

Interest Coverage Ratio 0.17 -0.27 164.01 | Negative EBIDTAin last year due to provision & write off against bad &
doubtful trade receivables for ¥ 5420.83 million

Current Ratio 0.96 0.93 2.90 | The difference is in line with the normal course of the business.

Debt Equity Ratio NOT APPLICABLE

Operating Profit Margin (%) 15.59 -9.20 24.79 | The difference is in line with the normal course of the business.

Net profit Margin (%) 9.05 -11.09 20.14 | The difference is in line with the normal course of the business.

Return on net Worth 26.87 -155.93 182.81 | Negative EBIDTA in last year due to provision & write off against bad &
doubtful trade receivables for T 5420.83 million

Being a PSU, MSTC has to follow all the guidelines issued by
CVC, regulation of IT Act 2000 and other audit requirements
of STQC for which, MSTC has to invest huge amount towards
Systems infrastructure, whereas, the private players are not
under any such obligation. Therefore, unless Government
Departments and PSUs insist upon fulfillment of criteria in line
with CVC guidelines by the service providers in the tender
documents, it would be increasingly difficult for MSTC to get
orders, since private players, having scanty infrastructure, can
afford to quote very low service charge.

Trading Business (Import & Export)

This segment mainly functions as sourcing of raw materials for
industries either through import or domestically. The materials
remain pledged to MSTC and delivery is given to the
customers on payment basis. There is an inherent risk of not
lifting material as per schedule by the customers mainly due to
change in their production schedule and volatility in the
market. The said model of business has been discontinued in
view of the risks involved. However, the risk is substantially
reduced for sourcing materials against receipt of Bank
Guarantee for 110% of value from the customers.

COVID -19 -Effect

During the last quarter of F.Y. 2019-20, an exceptional
phenomenon occurred in the form of COVID 19 virus attack.
Nationwide lockdown was imposed in the Country to counter
this. As a result of which the business operations across the
Country were affected, with MSTC being no exception to it.
Majority of the revenue of MSTC comes from E commerce
segment. The E commerce services were fully functional
during this period providing services to our valued customers.
The Company continued with its development and planning
activities during the period. MSTC assumes that there will not
be any further exigency due to this phenomenon and the
business will grow to reach at normal level. The Company has
considered the possible effects that may result from the
pandemic relating to COVID 19. There has been impact on

revenue during the last quarter of F.Y. 2019-20. The financial
implications on the business operations due to COVID 19 are
yetto be ascertained.

Litigation risks

Given the scale and geographic spread of the company’s
operations, litigation risks can arise from commercial disputes,
perceived violation of intellectual property rights and
employment related matters. This risk is inherent to doing
business across various countries and commensurate with
the risk faced by other players similarly placed in the industry.
In addition to incurring legal costs and distracting
management, litigations garner negative media attention and
pose reputation risk. Adverse rulings can result in substantive
damages.

Breach of data protection laws

Data privacy and protection of personal data is an area of
increasing concern globally. Many countries are enacting their

Shri B.B.Singh, Ex Chairman & Managing Director, MSTC Limited,
being felicitated by Shri Subrata Sarkar, DF, MSTC Limited on the
occasion of retirement function of Shri B.B.Singh
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Data Privacy regulations to ensure protection of personal system and recommendations of the committee are put up to
data. Violation of data protection laws or security breaches the Board and those are implemented as per the
can result in substantive liabilities, fines or penalties and considerations of the Board. Audit Committee also considers
reputational impact. various financial statements for risk analysis and control.
Cyber attacks Conservation of Energy and Resources

Risks of cyber-attacks are forever a threat on account of the MSTC works primarily in the field of procurement of scrap
fast-evolving nature of the threat. In addition to impact on materials, especially ferrous scraps from different consumers
business operations, a security breach could result in and trading of those scraps for recycling. Thus, MSTC works
reputational damage, penalties and legal and financial for the conservation of the natural resources, reduction in
liabilities. pollutants, conservation of energy by recycling ferrous scraps
Business model challenges into a re-useable form. MSTC is in a way recycling Company

that consolidates facilities and auctions scrap of various types

Rapidly evolving technologies are changing technology . )
for reuse after processing by its buyers.

consumption patterns, creating new classes of buyers within

the enterprise, giving rise to entirely new business models and The Auto Shredding Plant being planned by MSTC will be first
therefore new kinds of competitors. This is resulting in of its kind in India, will promote Secondary Steel making in
increased demands on the company’s agility to keep pace with India using IF and EAF routes. These processes consume
the changing customer expectations. Failure to cope may less energy and pollute less than primary process of utilizing
resultin loss of market share and impact business growth. BFsand Convertors etc.

Risks, Internal Control Systems and their adequacy Cautionary Statement

Risk Management Policy in MSTC for trading was introduced Statements under “Management Discussion and Analysis” are
in the year 2008-09. The policy has been last revised on on Company’s projections and estimates. Actual results may
05.04.2018. MSTC makes it certain that the internal control materially differ from such projections and depend on
system functions within the risk appetite of the Company and economic condition and industry demand in the relevant
is being fine-tuned to include more safeguards for being more domestic and international market. Government regulations
effective. including fiscal regulations and other incidental factors may

Risk Management Policy for another segment of business i.e. also affect the projections and estimates.

e-Commerce has also been introduced in 2015-16 to have

necessary safeguards in this business too. For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

M/s. S Guha & Associates., Chartered Accountants was

assigned with the Internal Audit function of the Company for Dated: August 24, 2020
the year and their reports are put up to the management at
regular intervals and summarized statement of important
issues are placed before the Audit Committee. The Audit
Committee analyses the functions of the internal control Chairman-and Managing Director

Place: Kolkata
(Surinder Kumar Gupta)
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BOARD’S REPORT

To,
The Shareholders
MSTC Limited

The Directors are pleased to present the 55th Annual Report
on the business and operation of the Company together with
the Audited Financial Statements, Auditor’'s Report and
comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the
year ended 31st March, 2020.

Financial Highlights of the Company

The Profit after Tax stands at¥ 752.03 Million in Financial Year
2019-20 as againstLossof ¥ 3,244.65 Million last year.

The Standalone Financial results of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20 and 2018-19 are given below:-

(% in Million)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Volume of Business 12,73,912.30({11,12,737.36
Profit (Loss) before tax 1,294.91 (2692.09)
Tax 542.88 552.56
Profit after tax 752.03| (3244.65)
Paid up capital (Equity) 704 704
Reserves 2,094.31 1376.83
Dividend (%) 33% -
PBT Per Employee 4.00 (7.56)
Earnings per share (%)

(Face value %10/-) 10.68 (46.09)

Covid19

In the last month of FY 2019-20, the COVID-19 pandemic
developed rapidly, forcing governments to enforce lock-downs
of all economic activities. With such unprecedented measures
taken by both the Central and respective State Governments
to contain the spread of COVID — 19, the Country’s economy
has been impacted and have caused hardship and disruption
in people’s lives. For the Company, the focus immediately

Introductory Meeting of Shri B.B.Singh, CMD,MSTC Limited with
newly appointed Independent External Monitors

+ -

shifted to ensuring the health and well-being of all employees,
and on minimizing disruption to services for all our customers.
The Company has taken proactive measures to comply with
various directions / regulations / guidelines issued by the
Government and local bodies to ensure safety of workforce
across all its offices. Company in accordance with the various
guidelines issued by Govt. of India has shifted the workforce to
an entirely new ‘work-from-home’ model during the lockdown |
phase. The Company thereafter gradually and in accordance
with the guidelines issued by the Govt. of India, started
operation at various offices.

As a responsible member of the community the Company has
contributed ¥ 55.40 Million to the Prime Minister’'s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM
CARES Fund). All the employees of the Company have
contributed one day salary to Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund (PM
CARES Fund).

Due to outbreak of Covid-19 globally and in India, the
Company’s management has made initial assessment of
likely adverse impact on business and financial risks on
account of Covid-19, and that the management does not see
any medium to long term risks in the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern and meeting its liabilities.

Board of Directors of MSTC Limited




Bussiness Review Meeting dated 28" January, 2020

Dividend

The Board of Directors of your Company is pleased to
recommend a final dividend of ¥ 3.30 per equity share of the
face value of ¥ 10 each (@ 33 %), payable to those Share
holders whose names appear in the Register of Members as
on the Book Closure / Record Date. The total proposed
dividend for the year aggregates to ¥ 232.32 million. The
dividend pay-out will be in accordance with the Company’s
dividend distribution policy. The Dividend Distribution policy as
formulated by the Company may be accessed at the web link
www.mstcindia.co.in.

Reserves

The Reserves stand at ¥ 2094.31 Million as on
March 31, 2020.

Changes in Share Capital

The authorized share capital of your Company as on
March 31, 2020 stands at ¥ 1500.00 Million divided into 150.00
Million equity shares of ¥ 10.00 each. During the year under
review there is no change in share capital of your company.

Directors Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors state that:

a) In the preparation of the Annual Accounts the applicable
Indian Accounting Standards (INDAS) have been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures.

b) The Directors have selected such accounting policies and
applied them consistently and made judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2020 and of the profit of the Company for the
financial year 2019-20.

c) The Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the
maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for
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Joint Secretary, Ministry of Steel, Govt of India welcomes our new
CMD, Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta

preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities.

d) The Directors have prepared the Annual Accounts for the
year ended 31st March, 2020 on a going concern basis.

e) The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and
that such systems were adequate and operating
effectively.

f) The Directors had laid down internal financial controls of
the Company and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel

Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta, Chairman and Managing
Director, Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Director (Commercial) and
Shri Subrata Sarkar , Director (Finance) and Chief Financial
Officer are whole time Directors of the Company. Shri Surinder
Kumar Gupta is also acting as Chairman of Ferro Scrap Nigam
Limited (FSNL) and Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd.
(MMRPL). Smt. Bhanu Kumar, Director (Commercial) is also
acting as Director of Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited. Shri Subrata
Sarkar is also acting as Director of Mahindra MSTC Recycling
Pvt. Ltd. (MMRPL).

During the year under review Shri B.B.Singh, Chairman &
Managing Director of the company on attaining the age of
superannuation ceased to be the Chairman and Managing
Director of the Company. Dr. Promodita Sathish ceased to be
the member of the board w.e.f 2nd July, 2020. The Board
places on its record the sincere gratitude for the valuable
guidance and support rendered by Shri B.B.Singh and Dr.
Promodita Sathish during their long association with the
company.

Administrative Ministry has vide its letter no F.No. 8/1/2018-
BLA dated October 11, 2019 appointed Shri Surinder Kumar
Gupta as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company
from the date of his assumption of the charge till the date of his
superannuation. Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta has assumed the
charge of the post of Chairman and Managing Director of the
company w.e.f 17th December, 2019.
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Administrative Ministry has vide its order no. 1/16/2015-BLA
dated July 2, 2020, appointed Shri Awadhesh Kumar
Choudhary , Economic Advisor, Ministry of Steel as Gouvt.
Nominee Director in the Board of the Company with immediate
effect until further order from the administrative Ministry.

During the year under review Smt. Bhanu Kumar, is retiring by
rotation and being eligible offered himself for reappointment.
The Directors recommended her reappointment in the
ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company.

The Company has received necessary declaration and
certificate from all the Independent Directors confirming that
they meet the criteria prescribed for Independent Directors
under the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement)
Regulations, 2015 and rules made there under.

A separate meeting of Independent Directors was held
during the year.

The provisions of Section 134(3)(p) of the Companies Act,
2013 require a listed entity to include a statement indicating
the manner of formal evaluation of performance of the Board,
its Committees and of individual Directors. However, the said
provisions are not applicable for Government Companies as
the performance evaluation of Directors is carried out by the
Administrative Ministry as per laid down evaluation
methodology.

A brief profile of the Directors proposed to be appointed and
reappointed at the ensuing AGM is provided in the Corporate
Governance Report section.

The details of the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company
as on the date of this report are as follows;

SI. KMP
No.

1. | Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta | Chairman and Managing
(w.e.f17.12.2019) Director

2. | Shri B.B. Singh
(upto 30.11.2019)

Smt. Bhanu Kumar
Shri Subrata Sarkar
Shri Ajay Kumar Rai

Designation

Chairman and Managing
Director

Director (Commercial)
Director (Finance) & CFO

Company Secretary &
Compliance Officer

The provisions of Section 134(3)(e) of the Companies Act,
2013 regarding the policy on Directors appointment and
remuneration including criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, independence of a Director and other
matters provided in Sec 178(3) are exempted for Government
Companies

Related Party Transactions

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during
the financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in
the ordinary course of business. Hence, the provision of
section 188 of Companies Act, 2013 as amended are not
attracted. Details of all related party transactions are provided

in the financial statement in notes to accounts. Thus
disclosures in Form AOC-2 are notrequired. Further there are
no related party transactions with the directors and KMP or
other designated persons, which may have a potential conflict
with the interest of the Company. All Related Party
Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for
approval.

The Company has a related party transaction policy and the
same has been uploaded on the website of the Company at
www.mstcindia.co.in.

The details of the related party transactions during the
financial year are provided in note no. 40 of the financial
statement.

Conservation of Energy, Technology, Absorption and
Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(3) (m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014, the particulars relating to
Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign
Exchange Earnings and Outgo are given in Annexure-| to this
Report.

Corporate Governance Report

Separate details on Corporate Governance report along with
the Compliance Certificate on Corporate Governance are
attached herewith as Annexure Il and form part of this Board’s
Report.

Management Discussion and Analysis Report

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of
the Board’s Report.

Business Responsibility Report

Business Responsibility Report are attached herewith as
Annexure lll and forms part of this Board’s Report.

Extract of Annual Return

In compliance of Section 92(3) of the Act and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014,
extract of Annual Report in format MGT-9 for the financial year
2019-20 has been enclosed with this report as Annexure IV
and also uploaded on the website of the company,
www.mstcindia.co.in.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Company is seriously committed to social upliftment. In
line with the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 & DPE guidelines,
the Company has constituted a CSR Committee which
functions as per the Govt. guidelines and the Company’s CSR
policy. The CSR Policy of the Company has been approved by
the Board and is hosted on the website of the Company.

The Company has undertaken various activities as per the
CSR policy of the Company. The Projects/programmes/
activities are taken up in line with Schedule VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility as required
under Rule 8 of Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility




Policy) Rules, 2014 is placed as Annexure V.
Secretarial Audit

In compliance with Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013
and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, Shri
Saumayo Jyoti Seal, (MCM No. FCS9766) practicing
Company Secretary has been appointed as the Secretarial
Auditor for the year 2019-20. The Report of the Secretarial
Auditor as prescribed is enclosed as Annexure VI to this
report.

The Secretarial Auditor has made following observations;

1. With respect to constitution of Board of Directors of the
company, there exist shortage in the number of
Independent Director on and from 1st July, 2019 to 31st
March, 2020.

2. Withrespect to transfer of shares to IEPF and filing of form
IEPF4, the shares were not transferred to IEPF since the
shares were under lock-in period till 27th march, 2020 as
per the terms and conditions of IPO and hence form IEPF
could not be filled within 31st March, 2020.

With regard to requisite number of Independent Directors on
its Board for the period 02.07.2019 to 31.03.2020. In this
regard it is clarified that the Company is a Govt. Company
under the administrative control of Ministry of Steel and
neither the Board nor the Company is empowered to appoint
Independent Directors as the power to appoint Independent
Director vest with Government of India as per the Government
guidelines.

With regard to non-transfer of shares to IEPF, it is clarified that
due to IPO shares of the company were in lock period till 27th
march, 2020 and thereafter due to Covid-19 pandemic and
nation wise lockdown the same could not be transferred.

Auditors

Pursuant to Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India, has appointed M/s.
S Ghose & Co LLP Chartered Accountants (FRN: 302184E),
as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the year 2019-20.
The report of the Auditors is attached to the Annual Accounts
of the Company. Management replies on the
comments/observations of the Auditors are placed at
Annexure VIl to the Board’s Report.

Comments by the Comptroller and Auditor General of
India (CAG)

The comments of the CAG on the Annual Accounts of the
Company in terms of Section 143(6) (b) of the Companies Act,
2013, shall be deemed as part of the Board’s Report.

Number of Meetings of the Board

The Board met eight times during the financial year 2019-20.
The details of the number of the meetings of the Board of
Directors held during the year 2019-20 form a part of the
Corporate Governance Report.

Disqualification of Directors

Pursuant to Section 164(2) of the Act and Rule 14(1) of
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Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors)
Rules, 2014, all the Directors have intimated that, they stand
free from any disqualification from being a Director.

Notice of Interest by the Directors

Pursuant to Section 184(1) of the Act, Rule 9(1) of the
Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014
and applicable provisions of SEBI, all the Directors have given
Notice of Interest .

Committees of the Board

MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz., Audit
Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee,
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee and
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, details of which are
provided in the Corporate Governance report.

Audit Committee

The Company has in place a Board Level Audit Committee, in
terms of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with rules made there under and Regulation 18 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligation & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the details in respect of which are given at the Corporate
Governance Report. Further, there has been no instance
where the Board of Directors has not accepted the
recommendation of Audit Committee.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In compliance of Section 135(1) of the Act, read with Rule 5 of
the Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had
constituted the CSR Committee of the Board with Dr. T. V.
Murali Vallabhan, Independent Director as Chairman, Dr.
R.S.Yeli, Independent Director, Shri Subrata Sarkar, Director
(Finance) and Dr. Promodita Sathish, Govt. nominee Director
as members.

Subsidiary Company and Joint Venture
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited is the 100% Subsidiary of the
Company. The Operational result of two years is given below:

(% in Million)
Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Total Revenue 4,098.96 3784.13
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 460.17 410.90
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 305.76 266.88

The detailed information relating to the subsidiary Company in
form AOC-1 in compliance of Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules forms
part of Annual Report.

Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt. Ltd

MSTC had entered into JVA with Mahindra Intertrade Limited
and formed a Joint Venture Company “Mahindra MSTC
Recycling Pvt. Ltd.”. The Company’s auto recycling plant at
Greater Noida has completed its first full financial year of
operations and has gained significant traction. The
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Employees and Staff participated with full enthusiasm in the
Blood Donation Camp organized by MSTC Emloyees
Recreation Club

Company’s output from the recycling operations was well
received by the market. The Company’s second plant, located
at Chennai, has commenced operations from February 2020.
In FY 2019-20, the company has dismantled/shredded 1774
nos. ELV. During the year ended 31st March 2020, the
Company earned an Income of ¥ 58.32 Million as against a
figure of¥ 11.89 Million in earlier year.

Consolidated Financial Results

In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013
and the Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, your Company has prepared
the Consolidated Financial Statement for the group, including
its subsidiary and joint venture and attached with your
Companies Report.

The Summary of Consolidated Financial Results is as follows:

(X in Million)

Particulars 2019-20 2018-19
Profit (Loss) before tax 1,667.43 (2374.47)
Tax 697.29 696.57
Profit after tax 970.15 (3071.04)
Paid up capital (Equity) 704 704
Reserves 4035.23 3175.69
PBT Per Employee 4.85 (6.67)
Earnings per share (%)

(Face value¥ 10/-) 13.78 (43.62)

Material Changes and Commitments, if any, affecting the
Financial Position of the Company

There are no material changes and commitments affecting the
financial position of the Company that have occurred between
the close of the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and the
date of Board’s Report.

Details of Significant and material order passed by the
Regulators, Courts and Tribunals

No significant and material order has been passed by the

Annual Cultural celebrations of MSTC Limited

Regulators, Courts and Tribunals impacting the going concern
status and the Company’s operation in future.

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments

Details of loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under
the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made there under are given in the notes to the financial
statements.

Public Deposits

Your company has not accepted any deposits under the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended 31st
March, 2020.

Compliance of DPE Guidelines and Policies

The guidelines and policies issued by the Department of
Public Enterprise from time to time are duly complied with by
the Company.

Compliance with Secretarial Standards

Your Company complies with the applicable Secretarial
Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India (ICSI).

Internal Financial Controls

Your Company has put in place adequate internal financial
controls for ensuring the efficient conduct of its business in
adherence with laid-down policies; the safeguarding of its
assets; the prevention and detection of frauds and errors; the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records; and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, which is
commensurate with the operations of the Company.

M/s. S Guha & Associates., Chartered Accountants
(FRN : 322493E) was the Internal Auditor of the Company for
the year and their reports are put up to the management at
regular intervals and summarized statement of important
issues are placed before the Audit Committee.

Systems

MSTC’s IT infrastructure is by far the most sophisticated and
robust in the country to take up ecommerce services in a




secure and transparent manner for more than 1,00,000 clients
across the globe.

MSTC’s IT Department is equipped with the powerful RISC
based IBM Power Series Servers having robust processing
power and can serve more than ten thousand of concurrent
hits. The servers are highly energy efficient leading to saving
of power and these servers are in operation with redundancy &
high availability disaster recovery mode for providing
uninterrupted services to our stake holders like Principals,
Bidders & other users.

Mumbai Disaster Recovery site is also having a similar set up
asin Kolkata Data Center.

MSTC is concerned with information security issues and has
left no stone unturned to achieve maximum security by
installing different OEM Next Generation Firewall, Intrusion
Prevention System (IPS), Managed Distributed Denial of
Service (MDDOS), SSL etc.

The much needed security features ‘Write Once Media’ which
captures the Audit trails on a non-editable tamperproof media,
has been the hallmark of MSTC’s e-Commerce system.

SSL Encryption

SSL (Secure Sockets Layer) is the standard security
technology for establishing an encrypted link between a web
server and a client end browser. This link ensures that all data
passed between the web server and browsers remain private
and integral. We have implemented 256-bit SSL in our web
server with enforcementof TLS 1.2 & above.

All network equipment like routers, switches are from
CISCO/CHECKPOINT and are totally ready for IPv6
migration. Security Appliances like Firewalls, IPS are in place
to prevent unauthorized intrusion with latest signatures.

Periodical Application Security Testing is conducted by STQC,
a Gouvt. of India Department. MSTC ensures security through
periodical penetration, vulnerability & performance testing by
STQC. MSTC conducts its business through a dedicated
155.52 MBPS ILL and also has a standby ILL connectivity
taken from a different provider and with a point-to-point(P2P)
connectivity between DC & DR for data synchronization.

MSTC has developed an upgraded in-house e-Procurement
solution with e-tendering, e-reverse auction, e-reverse auction
with L1 matching and many other models. General Financial
Rules, CVC guidelines, IT Act 2000 and its Amendment of
2008 have been adhered to in this e-Procurement application
and the said service has been certified by STQC.

MSTC server in Kolkata is manned round-the-clock
throughout the year. The Systems dept. is well equipped with
qualified professionals whose skills are continuously
upgraded with training on latest technology.

MSTC’s System Departmentis ISO 27001:2013 certified from
STQC.

MSTC e-Commerce division is also ISO 9001:2015 Quality
certified.

MSTC e-Commerce has been appraised to CMMI Level-3
Dev.

Developments of Information Technology during 2019-20

1)  STQC Certification on MSTC e-Procurement services is
certified by STQC Kolkata that included all the testing
like Functional testing, CVC and IT Act compliance Audit,
Web Application Security Testing, Performance Testing,
Vulnerability Assessment & Penetration Testing and the
certificate is valid till 24-07-2022.

2)  Security is in place by two different OEM Checkpoint &
CISCO Next Generation Firewall at two levels.

3) ISO 9001:2015 certification is also maintained as
per standards

4) MSTC Systems division is CMMi Level 3 appraised. The
same has been renewed and is valid up to 18-09-2022.

5) Imperva Write-once management device is in place for
better management & monitoring of activities related to
data.

6) Security of our corporate website www.mstcindia.co.in
was enhanced by implementing 256 bit Secured Socket
Layer and this site has received compliance certification
as per GIGW from STQC and is valid till 04-02-2022.

7)  Implementation of global pre-bid EMD resulting increase
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Annual Sports Day being celebrated by MSTC Various participants are ready to go in the YogaDay being celebratedin MSTC Limited
Limited Women’s Spoon Race during MSTC’s Annual
Sports Day Event
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in transparency in the e-Auction system has been
extended to few other modes of bidding also in 2019-20.

In 2019-20 MSTC had executed 40,699 no. of
Auctions/events through its portal as compared to
previous year figure of 36,640 which could not be
increased further due to COVID-19 pandemic.

MSTC replaced its old IBM Power series servers with
new model of green effect faster IBM power series
servers which was made live on 06th January, 2020.

MSTC In-house Java Team developed and
implemented customized ecommerce solutions for
IBAPI - Property sale, e-Procurement common portal,
Shakti Bll R-lll ,Reliance Industries e-Auctions, RMC
property lease, ITPO,MMB AP, KSEB renewable energy,
PPA LTSP, eProcurement for NTCL,CVPPL, Aryavart
Bank, Govt of Orissa & others, KFD vehicle bidding,
eRAKAM 2 Stage Bidding with global pre-bid EMD, RCS
UDAN 4th Tranche and MMB UP bidding with global pre-
bid EMD during 2019-20 along with upgradation of all
applications to compatible versions with latest IBM
Middleware.

MSTC In-house dotnet Team developed and
implemented customized solutions for Online Medical
Bill Submission & Reimbursement, Online Mobile
Handset Bill Reimbursement, Online Mobile Bill
Submission & Re-imbursement, Online Laptop Advance
& Re-imbursement, Online Office Bag Reimbursement,
Online Furniture Reimbursement, Knowledge

Management — Pink Umbrella for Women — An exclusive
knowledge sharing and chat platform for Women
employees of the Organization, Online appraisal for
Non-Executive, Online appraisal for E-8, Online Exit
formalities for Resignation, Retirement etc., Online
Employee Service book along with addition of different
new modules in jaivikkheti portal of MoA.

Our Women Employees performing on the occasion of International
Women’s Day Celebration

12)

13)

14)

15)

16)

17)

18)

19)

20)

21)

Customized integrated e-Auction platform for auction of
NPAs of all nationalised banks has been developed &
implemented. Some NPAs have already been auctioned
successfully.

As appointed by honourable Supreme Court of India,
portal for auctioning of Properties of Amrapali Group has
been developed.

Customised e-tendering portal for EPC contract for
Renewable Energy has been developed for Kerala State
Electricity Board.

MSTC has developed the upgraded e-procurement
platform with advanced features and launched the same
in the year 2019-2020.

Bidding platform for new major clients for e-procurement,

viz. NPCC, WAPCOS, EPIL, CVPPPL, etc have been
developed.

MoU has been signed with SPMCIL for e-procurement
services.

16 nos. of new agreements signed with Principals during
FY 2019-20 in e-Procurement with yearly procurement of
%20 Million and above.

In 2019-20, MSTC has generated I 39.40 Million
revenue in retail software & through E-RaKAM portal.
During FY 2019-20, MSTC had tie-ups with 15 nos. new

banks and conducted atleast one auction for disposal of
attached properties under NPAs of banks.

STQC, one of the CERT-IN authorised agencies has
conducted vulnerability assessment and ethical hacking
of e-Commerce system of MSTC and submitted their
report on vulnerability assessed on 18.12.2019.

MOU PERFORMANCE

The Memorandum of Understanding

(MoU) with the

MSTC organised Paintin
Painting Competition. Shri Samir Aich and Shri K Muralidharan,
renowned professional Artists
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Government of India setting performance parameters and
targets for the year 2019-20 was signed by Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company and Secretary (Ministry of
Steel), Govt. of India, on June 13, 2019. MoU targets for the
Company continue to be more challenging and tougher over
the years. However, the Company has been continuously
striving to achieve new heights in terms of performance
numbers surpassing all previous achievements. The
performance rating for the financial year 2019-20 is under
evaluation.

Human Resource Development (HRD)

MSTC Limited has always considered its human resource as
the most important resource. With the increase in volume of
business and employees retiring from the Company,
recruitment has been undertaken at the entry level of both
executive cadre and Junior Computer Assistant posts. Total of
4 persons have joined our company through direct recruitment
during the year 2019-20.

Since we are a people oriented company, development of
employees through training has been an important area of HR
activities. Emphasis was laid on competency building of
employees for higher roles in the Company. The company has
trained 106 employees [57 through in-house training
(including MT& AMs) and 49 through external training] on
various topics for capability enhancement and skill
development. The topics for training were chosen to promote
overall development and to foster understanding,
collaboration, teamwork and leadership qualities amongst the
employees in the organization.

Besides special emphasis was given on HRMS
implementation under which various processes were
converted into online system with an objective to empower
employees of the Company. Various initiatives for women
employees promoting work life balance and leadership were
undertaken during the years some of which were introduction
of sabbatical policy for executives, Pink Umbrella- an online
women forum, etc. Further, other activities under various HR
parameters, as per MOU target were also undertaken.

Welfare of weaker sections

The Presidential Directives issued from time to time in regard
to reservation, relaxation, concession, etc. for the
SC/ST/OBC/PWD candidates pertaining to the policies and
procedures of the Government were duly observed. The
directives in matters concerning recruitment and promotion
regarding the weaker sections have been duly complied with.
All Departmental Promotion Committees and Selection
Committees (in case of recruitment) constituted during the
year had representatives of SC/ST community. Out of 55 no. of
persons recruited during the year, 16, 9 and 2 persons
belonged to OBC, SC and ST category respectively; of which 2
persons were PWD (VH).

During the year, 6 SC, 4 ST and 24 OBC employees of the
Company, were sponsored for training programmes,
Institutional training programmes. In addition, all possible
cooperation and assistance was provided to the MSTC SC/ST
Employees’ Council, which function primarily to safeguard the
interest of the reserved section of employees of the Company.

Empowerment of Women

MSTC is a Corporate Life Member of Forum of Women in
Public Sector (WIPS) and women employees were nominated
in the programs organized by WIPS. Internal Complaints
Committees constituted in all the offices of MSTC have been
functioning successfully. Periodical meetings and Complaint
redressal, awareness programs, etc. are also duly conducted
by the Committees.

This year we have conducted five initiatives for promoting
work-life balance and enhance women leadership amongst
women employees of the company:Introduction of Pink
Umbrella- an online forum for women employees for various
issues.

@ Training of women employees for programmes on work-life
balance and leadership

® Painting to Express- A painting competition on “Dreams-
Something which gives you wings: how you imagine it in
your worldview”, amongst all women employees, with a
Judges panel constituted by Artists Samir Aich and K
Muralidharan.

@ Health Checkup Camps were organized in collaboration
with renowned hospital.

@ Stress management Programmes were organized across
all offices of the Company for women employees,
addressing theirissues.

Disclosure under section 22 of the Sexual Harassment of
Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013.

MSTC has in place a mechanism for prevention and redressal
of sexual harassment of women employees at the workplace
in accordance with the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
Internal Complaints Committees (ICCs) have been setupin all
the offices of the Company for rendering necessary
assistance to and dealing with complaints, if any, of all the
women employees of the Company. All employees
(permanent, outsourced, trainees etc.) are covered under this
policy. Workshop are held with an objective to create
awareness among the employees

(@) Number of Complaints filed during the financial year
2019-20: Nil

(b) Number of complaints disposed off during the financial
year2019-20: Nil

(c) Number of Complaints pending as on end of the financial
year2019-20: Nil
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MANPOWER STATISTICS OF MSTC AS ON 31-03-2020
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Executive 5{10| 7|7 (1 (10|5 |8 |8 | 7|8 |1 |16]|2|5]|6 |19 | 9]|8|14|235| 242
NonExecutve | O | 7 | 2 | 0|0 |8 |0 (343 |1]2]|0/(12|0]1 116 |3 |7 [10|12]109] 114
Total 5171 9| 7 (1 (18 |5 (121 11| 8 |10 | 1 |28 | 2 | 6 | 7 |16 |12 | 16 |18 | 26 | 344| 356
SC/ST/OBC/PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED/EX-SERVICEMEN STATUS AS ON 31-03-2020
Group Total Employee OBC GENERAL SC ST PHYSICALLY HANDICAPPED
Group A 235(68.31%) 60(25.53%) 115(48.94%) | 36(15.32%) | 16(6.81%) 8(3.40%)
Group B 7(2.03%) 0(0.00%) 4(57.14%) 3(42.86%) | 0(0.00%) 0(0.00%)
Group C 94(27.33%) 24(25.53%) 45(47.87%) 19(20.21%) | 3(3.19%) 3(3.19%)
Group D 8(2.33%) 0(0.00%) 5(62.50%) 3(37.50%) | 0(0.00%) 0(0.00%)
Total Employee 344 84(24.42%) 169(49.13%) | 61(17.73%) | 19(5.52%) 11(3.20%)
MALE/FEMALE AS ON 31-03-2020
Groups Male Female Total
Non-Executive 93 109
Executive 192 43 235
Total 285 59 344

Rajbhasha first prize won by MSTC Limited
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Vigilance Awareness Week celebration in MSTC, Head Office

Grievance Redressal Mechanism

Your Company is Providing Public Grievance Redressal Cells.
There are total eight (08) cells in regions and branches of the
organisation and there are’s a Nodal Officer and a Public
Grievance officer in the Head Office. There is facility of online
registration for lodging grievance on the Company’s website
www.mstcindia.co.in. MSTC has also implemented
Centralized Public Grievance Redress and Monitoring System
(CPGRAMS) for online receipt and disposal of public
grievances, so that grievance can be sorted out immediately
and to take action to solve the cases. Some grievances are
also received by post. Action is taken to address and redress
grievances received from outside and from staff of the
organisation.

Apart from the cells, a Grievance Committee is also
constituted at Head Office. The Grievance Committee makes
recommendations after examination of the grievances and
comments obtained from the concerned department/region/
branch. The Grievance Committee meets at periodical
intervals to review the cases. The Centralized Public
Grievance Redress and Monitoring System (CPGRAMS) and
Public Grievance site of the Company are monitored regularly
by the Head Office. Report on Public Grievance Redress is
sentto the Administrative Ministry.

During 01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020, total 34 grievances were
received. Out of this, 32 grievances have been disposed of
and 02 are under process.

Statement of Public Grievances for the period of
01.04.2019 to 31.03.2020

Grievances | Grievances | Grievances Grievances
outstanding | registered | redressed | outstanding as

as on in 2019-20 | in 2019-20 | on 31.03.2020
01.04.2019
4 34 36 02

Right to Information Act 2005

Your Corporation has aligned with the online RTI portal
launched by DoPT and all the applications / appeals received
through the portal have been disposed off through the portal,
namely https:/rtionline.gov.in.

E d
Outreach programme during Vigilance Awareness Week

Provisions of RTI Act 2005 were complied with for processing
the RTI applications and appeals received in all offices of
MSTC. There are’s one Transparency Officer, one First
Appellate Authority, one CPIO, one Nodal Officer in MSTC,
Head office and every region/branch has one PIO for
effectively processing the RTI applications received at various
locations of the Company.

All quarterly reports have been submitted on-line. All quarterly
reports have been uploaded on CIC site. During 01.04.2019
to 31.03.2020, total 113 RTI applications have been received
through online and by post also. 13 First Appeals have been
received. Out of that 105 RTI Applications and 13 First
Appeals have been disposed of and 01 RTI applications have
been rejected. Remaining 07 RTI applications are under
process.

Official Language

Continuous efforts are being made for propagation and
effective implementation of Rajbhasha in all units of the
Company and the progress is being reviewed and monitored
continuously.

MSTC was awarded 'Rajbhasha Bhushan' for the year 2017-
18 at the “35th Akhil Bharathiya Rajbhasha Prashikshan Shibir
and Sammelan” held at Mysore from 6th to 8th June 2019.

MSTC has organized the “Rashtriya Hindi Sangosthi” to mark
the 139th birth anniversary of famous novelist, Munshi Prem
Chand, which was inaugurated by Shri Faggan Singh
Kulastay, Union Minister of State, Ministry of Steel on
31.07.2019. Eminent Hindi writers from across the country
delivered lectures on Munshi Prem Chand and a drama based
on his novel was staged. On this occasion, senior officers from
various PSEs and a large number of Hindi professors/
students were also present.

“Rajbhasha Trimas” was inaugurated on September 14,
2019. During this period, Hindi competitions and workshops
were organized in Head office, Regional and Branch offices
and 90 employees were awarded for winning in various Hindi
competitions and 27 employees were awarded certificate for
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MSTC

passing Hindi Examinations. Besides, 88 employees were
awarded under the Official Language Incentive Scheme.

MSTC Limited was awarded by the World Hindi Council, Delhi
on 14th September 2019 at International Hindi Conference for
outstanding efforts in the field of implementation of Official
Language for the year 2018-19.

On 10 January 2020, Vishwa Hindi Divas was celebrated in
the organization. Officers and Employees participated with
enthusiasm in this occasion.

During the May and November 2019 sessions, 27 employees
were nominated for the examinations conducted by the Hindi
Teaching Scheme. Training was provided to these employees
through internal classes and LILAAPP.

Quarterly workshops were also organized. During the year,
Regional and Branch offices were inspected by the H.O.
Officials. During the year 2019-20, the quarterly meetings of
Official Language Implementation Committee were held
regularly.

Various documents of the office were also translated from
English to Hindi and vice versa. These include documents of
various parliamentary committees, policies, MOUs, press
releases, etc. Besides, the Annual Report was published in
bilingual format.

The Quarterly reports for Head office as well as Regional and
Branch offices were submitted online. The ISO 9001:2015
certification of Rajbhasha Cell of the Corporation was also
renewed. Besides, MSTC officials have actively participated in
the Official Language Implementation committee meeting
organized by the Ministry of Steel on 26th July 2019.

In the Town Official Language Implementation Committee
Meeting held on 29 January 2020, Shri S.K. Gupta, Chairman
and Managing Director received 1st prize from Shri Jagdeep
Dhankhar, Governor of West Bengal as MSTC was selected
for the first prize in Corporate Office category for the best
performance in the field of Official Language Implementation.
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Run for Unity being organized by MSTC Limited on the occasion of
birth anniversary of Shri. Sardar Vallabhbhai Patel.

Vigilance

Vigilance is defined as watchfulness and alertness. Being
watchful & alert and thereby ensuring a corruption free
environment in the organisation is the responsibility of the
Vigilance department. MSTC Ltd is having a full-fledged
Vigilance setup headed by the Chief Vigilance Officer (CVO),
who is appointed for a fixed tenure by the Central Government
with the approval of Central Vigilance Commission (CVC). The
CVO and the vigilance setup functions as the extended arm of
CVC, the apex statutory anticorruption body of the Nation. The
Vigilance department also acts as a link between the
organisation and other anti-corruption agencies like CBI, Anti-
Corruption Branches (ACB) of State Governments and
Administrative Ministry etc. on vigilance related matters.

Vigilance function essentially is a management function and is
part of the checks that are required for healthy growth of the
organization.  Vigilance department takes up the anti-
corruption fight mainly on two fronts — Preventive & Punitive. It
includes detecting irregularities, analysing and finding out
reasons for such irregularities and making effective systemic
improvements to curb them. The department also entails
identifying the officials responsible for misconduct and taking
appropriate actions to punish them. Though ‘punitive action’
against errant officials are certainly important, the department
recognises the comparative advantage of ‘surveillance’ and
‘preventive measures’ as the saying goes, “prevention is
betterthan cure”.

During the year 2019-20, 10 inspections were carried out by
Vigilance including surprise checks. 81 Property Returns were
scrutinized and Audit Report for the preceding year was
examined.68 Complaints received in MSTC; 64 Complaints
disposed.09 taken up for detailed Investigation (08 from
complaints and 01 from scrutiny of files). 05
Training/Workshops were held for sensitization of employees
as well as refresher courses for Vigilance Officers. Besides, 05
Departmental Inquiries initiated-03 proceeding disposed
which resulted in punitive action against 03 officials. Such

Swachh Bharat Abhiyan being observed by MSTC Limited




examinations/investigations have resulted into initiation of
various system improvement measures.

Total 56 system improvements carried out during the year.
System improvements were effected in the following areas;

% Complaint Handling System
< Recruitmentrules & process

< Standardization of terms and conditions in the NIT of Car
Hiring

¢ Corruption Hazard Assessment of scrap e-auction
system

% Effectiveness of Bill Tracking System

<% Leveraging Technology in Vigilance Clearance

< Online Submission of Annual Property Return

< Vigilance administration

n accordance with the directives of the Central Vigilance
Commission, the Vigilance Awareness Week was observed in
MSTC Limited across the country w.e.f. 29.10.19 to 03.11.19
emphasizing the theme of this year for Vigilance Awareness
Week "Integrity- A Way of Life" (AT - U Stia= 9ref).
Besides MSTC employees, outreach programmes were
undertaken for vendors and public with a view to make them
aware about corruption and to publicize the menace of
corruption and to emphasize its ill effects on the wellbeing of
the country with an aim to encourage them to prevent and
combat corruption. The initiatives included publicizing of the
Integrity e-Pledge; and awareness Campaigns in 06 schools &
02 colleges/management institute; organizing lectures,
walkathon, debates, quiz, essay writing, slogans/elocution/
cartoon/poster competitions on topics such as moral values,
ethics, good governance practices etc. A skit play on the
theme was also organized in corporate office. A vigilance
magazine, named Jaagrat, was also brought out during the
period.
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Place: Kolkata

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Surinder Kumar Gupta)

Chairman-and Managing Director
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Annexure: |

Particulars of conservation of energy, technology
absorption, foreign exchange earnings and outgo as per
Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013, as read with Rule
8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

A.Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption

The Company has upgraded its Server to the latest IPV6
which consumes much less electrical power and conserves
energy. Being an IT oriented Company, technological
upgradation is a continuous process in MSTC and has been
fully achieved by your Company.

B. Foreign Exchange Earnings & Outgo

The total foreign exchange outgo during the year 2019-20 for
import of goods and others was < 201.25 Million as against
% 21,801.71 Million in the year 2018-19. The Company has
earned X NIL in foreign exchange during the year 2019-20. In
the previous year i.e. 2018-19, the foreign exchange earning
was 30.42 Million.

Annexure: |l
Corporate Governance

Corporate governance implies the way in which a company is
managed to ensure that all of its stakeholders get their fair
share in its earnings and assets. Good corporate governance
involves the commitment of a company to run its businesses in
a legal, ethical and transparent manner - a dedication that
must come from the very top and permeate throughout the
organization. Good corporate governance is necessary, not
only in order to gain credibility and trust, but also as a part of
strategic management for growth, sustenance and
consolidation. Corporate governance helps to enforce
confidence in the stock market and thereby in the economic
environment as a whole, creating an attractive environment for
investment/investor.

Corporate Governance Philosophy of MSTC

Effective corporate governance practices to provide for an
environment in achieving the objectives of the Company have
been the basic management philosophy of your Company.

All out efforts are made for transparency and integrity at all
levels of management in order to retain confidence reposed in
its management by the stakeholders.

MSTC aspires to follow high ethical standards, commitment to
values while doing business, maintain transparency, conduct
due diligence in commercial contracts and follows best
governing practices.

Board of Directors
Composition & Category of Board of Directors:

The Board of MSTC comprises of Executive (Whole Time
Directors) and Non Executive Directors (Which includes
Independent Directors and Government Nominee Directors).
Independent Directors are eminent persons having vast
experience in the field of economics, administration etc.

As on 31st March, 2020, the Board of MSTC comprises of 9
Directors which includes 3 Executive Directors (Whole- Time
Directors) and 6 Non — Executive Directors, out of which 4 are
Independent Directors and 2 are Government Nominee
Directors. The Board Comprises of 4 women directors. As
stipulated by LODR, 2015 the nomination and remuneration
committee of the company and Board of Directors has
identified following list of core skills/competence of the Board
of Directors

Executive Leadership
Governance Experience
Strategy/Risk management
Financial Acumen
Sectorial/Domain Knowledge
Marketing Knowledge

R R A R R

Policy Evaluation and Culture Building

CMD, MSTC Limited called on Additional Chief
Secretary(Steel & Mines), Odisha on
March 6, 2020

CMD, MSTC called on CMD, NALCO on
March 6, 2020

CMD, MSTC, Shri S K Gupta, called on
Dr. Nalin Shinghal, CMD, BHEL on
January 6, 2020

MSTC
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As required in the context of its business and sector for it to function effectively are those actually available with the Board are as
follows:
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Leadership Experience of running large enterprise v v v v v 4 v v v
Governance Experience understanding of the
changing regulatory landscape v 4 v v 4 v v v v
Experience of crafting Business Strategies and
Risk Management v v v v v v X X v
Finance and Accounting Experience v v v 4 v 4 v X v
Understanding of Consumer and Customer
Insights in diverse environments and conditions 4 v v X X 4 X X v
Experience in overseeing ecommerce functioning and
use of Digital Technology across industry v 4 v X X 4 X X X
Experience in overseeing Policy Evaluation and
Culture Building v v v v v v v v v
The Composition of Board of Directors is as follows:
. Category No. of Directorships and Committee Positions in No. of
Name of Director other companies incorporated in India Shares Held
As aDirector | As a Member* Asa in the
Chairman** Company
Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta Chairman and
(W.e.f 17.12.2019) Managing Director 2 0 0 0
Shri B.B Singh(upto 30.11.2019) Chairman and
Managing Director 0 0 0 160*
Smt. Bhanu Kumar Whole Time
Director (Commercial) 1 0 0 160*
Shri Subrata Sarkar Whole Time
Director (Finance) 1 0 0 160*
Smt. Ruchika Chaudhry Govil Government Nominee
Director (Non Executive) 1 0 0 NIL
Dr. Promodita Sathish Government Nominee
Director (Non Executive) 0 0 0 160*
Shri Gangaram Aloria Non Executive &
Independent Director 0 0 0 NIL
Smt. Pravati Parida Non Executive &
(upto 01.04.2019) Independent Director 0 0 0 NIL
Dr. R.S. Yeli Non Executive &
Independent Director 0 0 0 NIL
Dr. T.V.Murali Vallabhan Non Executive &
Independent Director 0 0 0 NIL
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi Non Executive &
Independent Director 2 2 0 NIL
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Notes:

*Shares are held by directors as Nominee of the President of India.

** Only Membership and Chairmanship in the Audit Committee and Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee was considered.
Board meetings

During the Financial Year under review, 8 Meetings of the Board were held on 3rd May 2019, 29th May 2019, 17th July 2019, 13th
August, 2019, 16th October 2019, 13th November 2019, 09th January 2020, & 12th February 2020. The Maximum Gap between two
meetings did not exceed 120 days.

The information as required to be disclosed under Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, pertaining to Composition of Board and
related matters including number of Board Meetings attended by Directors during the year 2019-20, attendance at the last Annual
General Meeting by them and the number of other Directorship/Committee Membership in various companies as of 31st March,
2020 are tabulated below:-

Name of Director Category No of Meet.mgs Atter.mdance By Whether . No. of. .
Held During Directors attended last | Directorships in
Tenure ) . AGM held on other
in Meetings
9 25.09.2019 Companies
Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta Chairman Cum
(w.e.f. 17.12.2019) Managing Director 2 2 NA 2
Shri B.B.Singh(Upto 30.11.2019) Chairman Cum
Managing Director 6 6 Yes 0
Smt. Bhanu Kumar Whole Time Director
(Commercial) 8 8 Yes 1
Shri Subrata Sarkar Whole Time
Director (Finance) 8 8 Yes 1
Smt. Ruchika Chaudhry Govil Government Nominee
Director (Non Executive) 8 8 No 1
Dr. Promodita Sathish Government Nominee
Director (Non Executive) 8 6 Yes 0
Shri Gangaram Aloria Non Executive &
Independent Director 8 7 Yes 0
Smt. Pravati Parida Non Executive &
(Upto 01.04.2019) Independent Director 0 0 NA 0
Dr. R.S. Yeli Non Executive &
Independent Director 8 8 Yes 0
Dr. T. V. Murali vallabhan Non Executive &
Independent Director 8 8 Yes 0
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi Non Executive &
Independent Director 8 7 Yes 2
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Note:

1. Shri. B.B.Singh ceased to be the Chairman and
Managing Director w.e.f 30th November, 2019.

2. Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta has assumed the charge
as Chairman & Managing Director of the Company
with effect from 17th December, 2019.

3. None of the directors is a member of more than 10
Committees or Chairman of more than 5
Committees, across all companies in which he/she
is adirector as perregulation 26(1) (a) & (b).

4. Directors are not per se related to each other.

5. The Company has proper system to enable the
Board of Directors to periodically review the
compliance reports of all laws applicable to the
Company.

6. Information as mentioned in Schedule Il Part A of the
SEBI Listing Regulations has been placed before
the Board for its consideration.

7. The Company also, has in place, procedures to
inform Members of the Board of Directors about the
risk assessment and minimization.

8. Except Shri B.B Singh, Shri Subrata Sarkar, Smt.
Bhanu Kumar and Dr. Promodita Sathish, who are
holding 160 shares each as nominee of the
President of India, no other director is holding
shares in the Company.

9. None of the directors of your company is holding
directorship in other listed Company.
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In order to familiarize the Independent directors with
their roles, rights, responsibilities, business model,
nature of Industry in which company operates, etc. the
Company has conducted various familiarization
programmes.

The details of the familiarization program is disclosed in
the website of the company at www.mstcindia.co.in.

Brief information of the newly appointed and
Re-appointed Directors

Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta

Shri S K Gupta has assumed charge as Chairman and
Managing Director of MSTC Ltd on 17th December
2019.Shri S.K. Gupta is a Bachelor of Engineering from
NIT, Kurukshetra and M. Tech. from PEC, Chandigarh.
After serving as a lecturer in NIT, Kurukshetra for 2
years, he has joined Indian Railway Stores Service. He
has 31 years rich experience of materials management
activities involving Procurement/Warehousing of
materials required for manufacture, maintenance and
operations in Indian Railways as well as global
procurement for purchase of sophisticated machinery
etc.

He has shouldered important assignments spread over
various states like Gujarat, Maharashtra, Punjab,
Haryana, Delhi and Uttar Pradesh. While working in
Centre for Railway Information Systems (CRIS), New
Delhi, he has been instrumental in design, development
and implementation of Indian Railways E-Procurement
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and E-Auction Systems which are widely used by all
Indian Railways Zones and Production Units.

Smt. Bhanu Kumar

Bhanu Kumar, aged around fifty three (53) years is the
Director (Commercial) and Whole Time Director of our
Company. She holds a degree of Bachelor of Science
(Honours) in chemistry from the University of Delhi and
also holds a degree of Master of Science in chemistry
from the University of Delhi. She has over thirty (30)
years of experience in operation and commercial
department. She has been associated with our
Company since November 1989.

Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary

Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary, aged fifty one years (51)
years holds a degree in MA in Economics and M. Phil
from Jawaharlal Nehru University. He has over 27 years
of experience in Government of India. Prior to being
appointed as Economic Advisor in Ministry of Steel, he
served as Economic Advisor, in Department of
Consumer Affairs, Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food
and Public Distribution, Government of India

Committees of the Board

The Board Committees plays a crucial role in the
Governance Structure of the Company and have been
constituted to deal with specific areas/ activities which
concern the company and need a closer review. The

b L

& Gonierence Cumi |nterisi sl
Buver Seller Miee

Board Committees are set up under the formal approval
of the Board to carry clearly defined roles which are
considered to be performed by the Members of the
Board, as part of Good Corporate Governance practice.
The Board supervises the execution of its
responsibilities by the Committees and is responsible
for their action. The Chairman of the respective
Committees inform the Board about the summary of the
discussion held in the Committee Meetings. The
Minutes of the Meeting of all the Committees are placed
before the Board for review.

MSTC has constituted four committees of the Board viz,
Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee.

i) Audit Committee
Terms of Reference

The Terms of Reference of the Audit Committee covers
the matters specified for Audit Committee under
Regulation 18 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2015 as well as
in section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013. In Addition,
the role of Audit Committee and review of Information by
Audit Committee is as prescribed under part C of
Schedule Il of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

MSTC participated in International Buyer Seller Meet
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The Audit Committee also complies with the guidelines
issued by DPE on Corporate Governance relating to
Audit Committee.

The Terms of Reference of Audit Committee covers all
matters specified in the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI
(LODR) Regulations, 2015 which inter-alia includes the
following;

1)

7)
8)

To assist the Board in its oversight functions relating
to:

a) quality and integrity of disclosures contained in
the audited and unaudited financial statements;

b) compliance with and

requirements;

legal regulatory

c) qualifications, experience, performance and
independence of external auditors;

d) integrity of the internal controls established from
time to time; and

e) Investments ofthe Company.

To investigate into any matter in relation to the items
specified in Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013
or referred to it by the Board and for this purpose,
shall have full access to information contained in the
records of the Company and seek external
professional advice, if necessary.

To investigate any activity within its terms of
reference.

To seek information from any source including
employees.

To obtain outside legal or other professional advice,
if necessary.

To secure attendance of outsiders with relevant
expertise, if it considers necessary.

To protect whistle blowers.

The role of the Audit Committee shall include the
following:

a) Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that the financial
statements are correct, sufficient and credible.

b) Reviewing with the management, the quarterly /
half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

c) Reviewing with the management, annual
financial statements and auditors report thereon

9)
a)

b)

before submission to the Board for approval,
with particular reference to:

i) Matters required to be included in the Directors’
Responsibility Statement to be included in the
Board’s report in terms of clause (3)(c) of
Section 134 of the Companies Act,2013;

ii) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and
practices and reasons for the same;

iii) Major accounting entries involving estimates
based on the exercise of judgment by
management;

iv) Significant adjustments made in the financial
statements arising out of audit findings;

v) Compliance with accounting standards issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India;

vi) Compliance with legal requirements relating to
financial statements;

vii) Disclosure of any related party transaction; and
viii) Qualifications in the draft audit report.

Audit(s)

Internal Audit:

Reviewing, with the management, performance of
internal auditors (external firms) and adequacy of
internal control systems.

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit (in house)
function, if any, including the structure of internal
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official
heading the department, reporting structure
coverage and frequency of such audit.

Discussion with internal auditors on any significant
findings and follow up thereon.

Recommending to the Board for appointment and
fixation of fees for Internal Auditors for Audit and
other servicesifany.

Statutory Audit & Branch Audit:

Discussion with Statutory Auditors & Branch
Auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit
discussion to ascertain any area of concern.

Discussion with Statutory Auditors & Branch
Auditors on any significant findings and follow up
thereon.

Recommending to the Board the fixation of Statutory
and Branch Audit Fees.
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* Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any 18) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults in

other services (other than audit) rendered by them. the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,

c) CostAudit & Tax Audit: shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared

Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re- fiidend=landSietiors:

appointment and if required, replacement or removal of 19) To review the functioning of the Whistle Blower

cost auditors and tax auditors and fixation of Audit fees Mechanism.

and other terms of appointment. 20) To review the follow-up action taken on the

10) Reviewing and monitoring the auditors’ recommendations of committee on public
independence and performance and effectiveness undertakings (COPU) of the Parliament.
of audit process. 21) Review and pre-approve all related party

11) Review the Cost Audit Report along with full transactions in our Company. For this purpose, the
information and explanation on every reservation Audit Committee may designate a member who
or qualification contained therein and recommend shall be responsible for pre-approving related
the report to the Board for consideration party transactions.

12) Provide an open avenue of communication 22) Review the Company’s financial policies,
between the independent auditor, internal auditor commercial policies and risk management
and the Board of Directors. policies.

13) Review with the independent auditors the co- 23) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk
ordination of audit efforts to assure completeness management system.
of coverage, reduction of redundant efforts, and 24) Reviewing with the management, the statement of
the effective use of all audit resources. uses/application of funds raised through an issue

14) Consider and review the following with the (public issue, right issue, preferential issue etc.),
independent auditors and management: the statement of funds utilized for purposes other
a) The adequacy of internal controls including L sftated I <.:iocument/

computerized information system controls and pros.pec?tus/ notice, and th.e rgport Sme!t_ted .by 2
security, and monitoring agency.monlt.ormg. the utlllzatlon. of
o ) proceeds of a public or right issue, and making
b)) Resizd dielee a.nd recommendatlons of.the appropriate recommendations to the Board to take
Independent auditor and internal auditor, up steps in this matter.
together with the management responses. ) ) )
25) Scrutiny ofinter-corporate loans and investments.

15) Consider and review the following with the ) )
management, internal auditor and the 26) Valuation of undertailkmgs or assets of the
independent auditor: Company, wherever itis necessary.

a) Significant finding during the year, including 27 Approva.l or any subsequer.wt mod|f|cat|o.n o
the status of previous audit recommendations transactions of the Company with related parties.
b) Any difficulties encountered during audit work 28] Revesilislellening iermemens
including any restrictions on the scope of a) The management discussion and analysis of
activities or access to required information. financial condition and results of operations;

16) Government audit- To review the follow up action b) Statement of significant related party
on the audit observations of the C&AG audit. transactions (as defined by the Audit

17) Reviewing the findings of any internal Committee), submitted by the management;
investigations by the internal auditors/statutory c) Management letter / letters of internal control
auditors/other agencies into matters where there weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors;
is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of d) Internal audit reports relating to internal control
internal control systems of a material nature and weaknesses;
reporting the matter to the Board.
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e) The appointment, removal and terms of
remuneration of internal auditors/chief internal
auditor; and

f) Certification / declaration of financial
statements by the chief executive/chief finance
officer.

29) To call for comments of the auditors about internal
control systems, the scope of audit, including the
observations of the auditors and review of financial
statement before their submission to the Board
and to discuss any related issue with the internal
and statutory auditors and the management of the
Company.

30) Review of the quarterly statement for deviation
including report of monitoring agency, if applicable
submitted to Stock Exchanges.

31) Review the utilization of loans and/ or advances
from investment by the Company in its subsidiary
exceeding X 100 crore or 10% of the asset size of
the subsidiary, whichever is lower including
existing loans /advances /investments which shall
be effective from April 1, 2020 or such other date
as may be prescribed by SEBI, as the case may
be.

32) Carrying out such other functions as may be
specifically referred to the Committee by the
Company’s Board of Directors and/or other
Committees of Directors

Composition & Details of Meetings of Audit
Committee

The Audit Committee presently Comprises of 4
Members out of which three are Independent Directors
and one is Government Nominee Director. The
Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director.

Director (Finance) and Director (Commercial) are the
Permanent Invitees of the Audit Committee.

Company Secretary acts as Secretary to the Audit
Committee.

The Committee met 8 times during the financial year
ended 31st March, 2020, on 03rd May, 2019, 29th May,
2019, 17th July, 2019, 13th August, 2019, 26th
September, 2019, 13th November, 2019, 11th February,
2020 & 04th March, 2020.

The current composition of the Audit Committee and
details of meeting & Attendance is as follows:

Members Category Position | No. of | Attendance
Meetings by
held Members
Shri G.R.Aloria Independent
Director Chairman 8 8
Dr. T. V. Murali Independent
vallabhan Director Member 8 8
Smt. Pravati Parida| Independent
(Upto 01.04.2019) | Director Member 0 0
Dr. Promodita Government
Sathish Nominee
Director Member 8 7
Aparna Chaturvedi | Independent
(w.e.f 03.05.2020) | Director Member 7 6

ii) Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Terms of Reference

The Company, being a Government Company, the
appointment, tenure and remuneration of directors are
decided by the Government of India. Further, the
remuneration of the employees of the Company
including senior management personnel is decided by
the Board in line with applicable DPE Guidelines.
Further, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 relating
to criteria for appointment of Director(s), policy relating
to the remuneration of Director(s) and performance
evaluation pertaining to NRC shall not be applicable to
Government Companies. Similar exemption is
anticipated from SEBI in terms of requirements Under
Listing Regulations. However, itis mandatory for NRC to
decide the annual Bonus/ variable pay pool and policy
for its distribution among the employees of the
Company within the limits as provided under DPE
Guidelines.

Terms of reference for the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee are as follows:

1. To decide the annual bonus / variable pay pool
Performance Related Pay (PRP) and policy for its
Distribution across the executives (including
Board Level executives) and non-unionised
supervisors within the prescribed limits for each
financial year.

2. To examine all the proposals related to HR issue
and give its recommendations.

3. The recommendations of the “Nomination &
Remuneration Committee” are placed before the
Board of Directors for approval;

4. Formulation of the criteria for determining
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CSR Work Construction of a Training Centre for the unemployed youth and marginalized

women in North 24 Parganas, West Bengal

qualifications, positive attributes and recommend
to the board of directors a policy relating to, the
remuneration of the Senior Executives and other
employees of the Company;

Devising a policy on diversity of board of directors;

Identifying persons who may be appointed in
senior management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, and recommend to the board of
directors their appointment and removal.

7. Recommend to the board, all remuneration, in
whatever form, payable to senior management
which shall be effective from April 1, 2020 or such
other date as may be prescribed by SEBI, as the
case may be.

Composition and Details of Meetings of Nomination
& Remuneration Committee

The Committee Consists of Four Members out of which
three members are Independent Directors and one is
Government Nominee Director. The Chairman of the
Committee is Non — Executive Independent Director.

Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee.

The Committee met six times during the financial year
2019-20 on 03rd May, 2019, 17th July, 2019, 13th
August, 2019, 26th September, 2019, 09th January,
2020 & 11th February, 2020.

The current composition of the Nomination &
Remuneration Committee and details of meeting &
Attendance is as follows:

Members Category Position | No. of | Attendance
Meetings by
held Members

Shri G.R.Aloria Independent | Chairman 6 6

Director
Dr. Promodita Government | Member 6 4
Sathish Nominee

Director

Dr. T.V.Murali Independent | Member 6 6

vallabhan Director

Dr. R.S.Yeli Independent | Member 6 6

Director

Remuneration Policy
Remuneration to the Directors

MSTC Limited being a Government Company, the terms and
conditions of the appointment and remuneration of functional
directors are determined by Government of India through its
Administrative Ministry, Ministry of Steel. Part Time official
Directors (Government Nominee Directors) do not draw any
remuneration from the company.

The part-time non — Official Directors (Independent Directors)
are paid a sitting fees of ¥ 15000/- per Meeting of the Board
and its Committee meetings as approved by the board within
the ceiling fixed under the companies act, 2013 and as per the
guidelines fixed by the Government of India.
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(Amount in ¥ million)

Sl no. Name Designation Salary and Post Other Long | Total
Perquisites as | Employment | term Benefit
per Section Benefit
17(1) &(2) of
the Income Tax
Act, 1961
1. Shri Surinder Kumar Chairman &
Gupta Managing Director
(w.e.f 17.12.2019) 1.20 0.06 0 1.26
2. Shri B.B.Singh Chairman &
(upto 30.11.2019) Managing Director 4.06 0 0 4.06
3 Shri Subrata Sarkar Director (Finance) 3.91 0.59 0 4.50
4. Smt. Bhanu Kumar | Director (Commercial) 4.67 0.87 0 5.54

The Details of the Remuneration paid to the Functional
Directors during the financial year 2019-20 are as under:

Sl No.| Name Total Remuneration
(% in Million)

1. Shri G.R.Aloria 0.32

2 Dr. T. V. Murali Vallabhan 0.39

38 Dr. R.S.Yeli 0.32

4 Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi 0.23

iii) Stakeholders Relationship Committee

The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 7th December,
2018 has renamed the Share Transfer Committee as the
‘Stakeholders Relationship Committee’.

TERMS OF REFERENCE
The Terms of reference are as follows:

(1) Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the
listed entity including complaints related to transfer/
transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report,
non-receipt of declared dividends, issue of
new/duplicate certificates, general meetings etc.

(2) Review of measures taken for effective exercise of
voting rights by shareholders.

(3) Review of adherence to the service standards adopted
by the listed entity in respect of various services being
rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent.

(4) Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by
the listed entity for reducing the quantum of unclaimed
dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend
warrants/annual reports/statutory notices by the
shareholders of the company

Composition and Details about Meeting & Attendance of
Stakeholders Relationship Committee

As on 31st March, 2020 the committee comprises of Four

Members out of which 2 Members are Non- Executive
Independent directors and two members are Functional
Directors. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent
Director.

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the
Committee.

The Committee met Four times during the financial year 2019-
20 on 11th October,2019, 14th November, 2019, 28th
November, 2019 & 17th December, 2019.

The current composition meetings and Attendance of our
Stakeholders Relationship Committee are as follows:

Members Category Position | No. of |Attendance
Meetings by
held Members
During
Tenure
Dr. T. V. Murali Independent | Chairman 4 0
vallabhan Director
Smt.Bhanu Kumar | Director Member 4 4
(Commercial)
Shri Subrata Sarkar| Director Member 4 4
(Finance)
Dr. R.S.Yeli Independent | Member 4 0
(w.e.f 03.05.2019) | Director

iv) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee

In compliance of Section 135(1) read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (CSR Policy) Rules 2014, the Company had
constituted the CSR Committee of the Board.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Shall provide
recommendations, suggestions, and inputs to the board of
Directors for formulation of a Corporate Social responsibility
policy of the company covering, inter alia, the matters
specified in Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013.
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TERMS OF REFRENCE

The Terms of Reference of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee is as follows:

(@) Formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate
Social Responsibility and Sustainability Policy which
shall indicate the activities to be undertaken by your
company as specified in Schedule — VII of the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

(b) Recommend amount of Expenditure to be incurred on
CSRActivities.

(c) Monitor the Corporate Social Responsibility and
Sustainability Policy of the Company and its effective
Implementation from time to time.

Composition and Details of Meeting & Attendance of CSR
Committee

Presently Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
Comprises of four Members out of which two are independent
directors, one is Government Nominee Director and one is
Functional director. The Chairman of the Committee is a Non-
Executive Independent Director.

“STATE LEVEL WORKSHOP 04 RGN FARRIMG & NAAKETIME®
1Mk fond Farmmes-s Welfe
Hpdin
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CMD, MSTC (extreme right) at State Level Workshop on Organic Farming &
marketing at Agartala, Tripura

The Company Secretary shall act as Secretary to the
Committee.

During the Financial Year 2019-20 four meetings of Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee were held on 29th May,
2019, 17th July, 2019, 13th August, 2019 & 11th February,
2020.

The Composition and Details of Meeting and attendance is as
follows:

Members Category Position | No.of [Attendance
Meetings by
held During Members
Tenure

Dr. T. V. Murali Independent | Chairman 4 4

vallabhan Director
Dr. Promodita Government | Member 4 3
Sathish Nominee
Director

Dr.R.S Yeli Independent | Member 4 4
Director

Shri Subrata Sarkar| Director Member 4 4
(Finance)

SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES

The Company has one subsidiary as on date, namely, Ferro
Scrap Nigam Limited (FSNL). The Minutes of Meetings of the
Board of Directors of the FSNL is placed before the Meetings
of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(a) The Details of last three Annual general meetings are as follows:

New town, Action Area-1, Kolkata — 700156.

Meeting No Venue Date & Time Special Resolution Passed
52nd Registered office of MSTC Limited 21st September, 2017 No
Located at 225C, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata-700020 at 11:00 Hours
53rd Registered office of MSTC Limited Located at 26th September, 2018 No
225C, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata-700020 at 11:00 Hours
54th Hall No. 6, (Auditorium at Level 1), Biswa Bangla 25th September, 2019 Yes

Convention centre, Biswa Bangla Sarani, DG Block,

at 11:00 Hours

EGM Registered office of MSTC Limited Located at
225C, AJC Bose Road, Kolkata-700020

26th December, 2018 Yes
at 11:00 Hours

(b) The Shareholders in the extra General Meeting has

Passed special resolution for the following items:

(i) To alter the capital clause 2(i) of the Articles of Association
resulting in altering Authorized Capital from ¥ 500 Million
to¥1500 Million.

(i) Toadoptthe new set of Article of Association.

(c) The Shareholders in the 54th Annual General Meeting has

Passed special resolution for the following items:

(i) To maintain Company'’s register of members etc. at the
office of Registrar and Share Transfer Agent at New Delhi
in addition to the same being maintained at the registered
office of the company.

(d) No special resolution was passed last year through postal
ballot and no special resolution is proposed to be passed
through Postal Ballot in the ensuing AGM.
Disclosures
1. Disclosures on materially significant related party
transactions that may have potential conflict with the
interest of the company at large
The Board has approved a policy on materiality of related party
transactions and on dealing with related parties and the same
is posted on the company’s website at www.mstcindia.co.in.
2. Disclosure by senior management in accordance with
regulation 26(5) of the SEBI listing regulations
For the Financial year ended 31st march, 2020 the senior
Management Personnel of the Company has confirmed to the
board of directors that they do not have any personal interest
relating to material, financial and commercial transactions and
commercial transactions entered into with the company that
may have a potential conflict with the interests of the company
atlarge.
3. Disclosures on Compliance of Law
The Company has complied with the Mandatory requirements
of the stock exchanges, SEBI and other statutory authorities
on all matters related to capital markets during the last three
years. No penalties or strictures were imposed by SEBI, stock
exchanges, or any statutory authorities on any matter related
to capital markets during the last three years.

However, during the year, the Company received notices from

NSE as well as BSE regarding non-compliance with the
provision of Regulations 17(1) of the SEBI (LODR)for the
quarter ended September, 2019, December, 2019 and
March, 2020 and imposition of monetary penalty for not having
50% of the Independent Directors in the Board. The Company
informed the exchange that MSTC is a Govt. Company in
which appointment of all directors is done by the Government
of India. MSTC further requested the exchange to waive off the
penalties as shortcoming was not due to any negligence on
part of the Company.

4 Vigilance Mechanism/Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy/Vigil Mechanism
which is posted on the Website of the company at
www.mstcindia.co.in for its directors and employees to report
their concerns about the company’s working or about any
violation of its policies. The Vigil mechanism provides for
adequate safeguards against victimization of Director(s) or
Employee(s) or any other person who avail the mechanism
and also provide direct access to the chairperson of the Audit
Committee. No personnel have been denied any access to the
audit Committee.

5. Code of Prevention of Insider Trading Practices

In compliance with the SEBI Regulation on prohibition of
Insider Trading, the company has in place a comprehensive
code of conduct for its Directors and Senior Management.
The code lays down guidelines, which advises them on
procedures to be followed and disclosures to be made, while
dealing with the shares of the company. The code clearly
specifies, among other matters, that directors and specified
employees of the company can trade in the shares of the
company only during ‘trading window open period’. The
trading window is closed during the time of declaration of
results, dividend and other material events, as per the code
and the same is posted on the website of the company at
www.mstcindia.co.in.

6. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements
and adoption of non mandatory requirements

All mandatory requirements have been complied with and the
non mandatory requirements are dealt with at the end of the
Report.




7.Policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries
The Company has adopted Policy for determining ‘material’
subsidiaries and the same is posted on the Company’s
website at www.mstcindia.co.in.
8. Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and
hedging activities
Not applicable to the Company.
9. Certificate from the Managing Director and the Chief
Financial Officer
Certificate from Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta, Chairman &
Managing Director and Shri Subrata Sarkar, Chief Financial
Officer, in terms of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI Listing
Regulations for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 was
placed before the Board of Directors of the Company.
10. Code of Conduct

A Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Members of the
Board and Senior Management Personnel which suitably
incorporates the duties of Independent Directors as laid down
in the Companies Act, 2013, has been adopted by the Board,
to bring itin line with the SEBI Listing Regulations. The Code of
Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management
Personnel of the Company is posted on the Company’s
website at www.mstcindia.co.in. All Board Members and
Senior Management Personnel have affirmed compliance
with the Code on an annual basis. A declaration to this effect
signed by the Chairman & Managing Director in terms of SEBI
Listing Regulations forms a part of this Annual Report.
11. Declaration by Independent Directors under Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations

During the financial year ended 31st March, 2020, the
Company received declarations in terms of the provisions of
Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI
Listing Regulations from the following Independent Directors
namely, Dr. T. V. Murali Vallabhan, Dr. R.S Yeli, Mr. G.R. Aloria,
and Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi.

12. The Total fees for all services paid by the company and
its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, to the statutory
Auditor and all entities in the network firm/network entity
of which the Statutory Auditor is a part

Please refer Note 31 on payments to Auditors in standalone
financial statements for total payment/accrual of fees charged
by M/s. S GHOSE & CO LLP (302184E). Other than that,
Statutory Auditors of the Company have not provided any
service to the company or its subsidiaries.

13. Dividend Distribution Policy

The Company has formulated a Dividend Distribution Policy in
accordance with Regulation 43A of the SEBI Listing
Regulations. The policy has been detailed in the Boards’
Report and is posted on the Company’s website
www.mstcindia.co.in.
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MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

1.Financial Results

The quarterly results of the Company were announced within
due time as per the statutory requirements and were sent to
the Stock Exchanges. These results were also published in
the leading English, Hindi & Bengali newspapers. The results
are also displayed on the Company’s website mstcindia.co.in,
as well as on the BSE and NSE websites.

2.News releases

Whenever the Company issues any press release, it is
immediately sent to the Stock Exchanges as well as posted on
the Company’s website. The Company also puts forth the key
information about the Company and its performance,
including quarterly results, official news releases and
presentations made to institutional investors or analysts, on its
website — www.mstcindia.co.in regularly for the benefit of its
shareholders and the public at large. The intimations are also
given to the Stock Exchanges simultaneously.

Meetings of Independent Directors

Pursuant to Schedule VI of the companies act, 2013 and as
per regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, a separate
meeting of the independent directors of the company was held
on February 11, 2020. The Independent directors reviewed the
quality, quantity and timeliness of the flow of information
between the Management and the Board and its Committees,
which is necessary to effectively and reasonably perform and
discharge their duties.

The Company follows a structured orientation and
familiarization program through periodic representations
made at the board meeting on business performance, long
term strategic initiatives and risk involved.

Shareholder’s Information

(A) Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting for the Year 2019-20 will held on
25th September, 2020 through Video Conferencing (“VC”)/
OtherAudio Visual Means (“OAVM”).

(B) Financial Calendar: From 1st April to 31st March every
year.

The financial calendar to approve quarterly / annual financial
result for the year 2020-21 is given below:

Quarter ending 30th June 2020 on or before 15.09.2020
Quarter ending 30th September 2020 on or before 14.11.2020
Quarter ending 31st December 2020 on or before 14.02.2021
Quarter and year ending 31st March 2021 on or before
30.05.2021

(C) Book Closure Date: 17th September, 2020-25th
September, 2020.

(D) Record Date for payment of Dividend: 17th September,
2020

(E) Dividend Payment Date: The final dividend, if
approved, shall be paid/credited on or before 29th
September, 2020.




Ll .
Fafre LIMITED
planbaie kL T £ ot i ireciin Erimrpriom’s

MSTC

(F) Dividend History:

MSTC has been paying dividend consistently. The details of
dividend paid by MSTC in the last seven years are as follows;

Financial| Type % Amount of unclaimed (Total amount
Year dividend as non of Dividend
31.03.2020 (in Million) | (in Million)

2018-19 | During the financial year 2018-19 no dividend was declared

2017-18 | Final 74.00 0.81 260.48
2016-17 | Interim | 95.00 1.1 167.20
2016-17 | Final 71.00 249 249.90
2015-16 | Final 102.50 1.05 180.40
2014-15 | Final | 207.00 112 182.16
2012-13 | Final | 300.00 1.47 264.00

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund:

Section 124 of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that any
dividend that has remained unpaid / unclaimed for a period of
seven years from the date of transfer to unpaid dividend
account shall be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund (IEPF) established by Central Government.

Unclaimed dividend for the FY 2012-13 was transferred to the
|IEPF within the due date. However, unclaimed dividend in
respect of Interim dividend for the financial year 2011-12 was
deposited after due date for transfer of dividend to IEPF
account.

Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rules
made there under provide that all shares in respect of which
dividend has not been paid or claimed for seven consecutive
years or more shall be transferred by the Company in the
name of Investor Education and Protection Fund.

In compliance of the IEPF Rules, the Company sends
reminder letter to all such shareholders, whose dividend has
remained unpaid /unclaimed for a consecutive period of 7
years with a request to claim the dividends, failing which the
shares would be transferred to the IEPF Authority on the due
date.

Accordingly, all such shares in respect of which dividend had
remained unclaimed for the FY 2012-13 to 2018-19 were
transferred to the demat account of the IEPF authority. The
details of such shares are hosted on the website of the
company at www.mstcindia.co.in.

In respect of dividend/Shares which have been transferred to
IEPF, shareholders can claim the same from IEPF authority by
following the procedure prescribed under IEPF Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016. These
Rules are available on the website of IEPF (www. iepf.gov.in)
and Company’s website www.mstcindia.co.in.

Disclosure with respect to demat suspense account /
unclaimed suspense account as required under

Schedule V (F) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015:

Sl.| Particulars No.of  |No. of Equity
No Shareholders| Shares

a

5=

Aggregate number of shareholders 148 19,17,153
and the outstanding shares lying in the
Unclaimed Suspense Account as on

1st April, 2019

b) | Number of shareholders who 57 8,78,916
approached the Company for transfer
of shares from the Unclaimed

Suspense Account during the year.

c) | Number of shareholders to whom the 57 8,78,916
shares were transferred from the
Unclaimed Suspense Account during

the year.

d) [ Number of shareholders whose 1 16,640
unclaimed dividends were transferred
to the IEPF account in terms of
Ministry of Corporate Affairs General
Circular No. 12/2017 dated 16th
October, 2017.

e) | Aggregate number of shareholders 91 10,38,237
and the outstanding Shares lying in
he Unclaimed Suspense Account as

on 31st March, 2020.

Note: MSTC Limited issued Bonus
Shares in the year 2018-19 and
allotted the shares on 11/01/2020 to
the shareholders who were holding
shares in the demat mode. However,
the bonus shares pertaining to the
shareholders who were holding shares
in physical mode were transferred to
“MSTC Limited Unclaimed Suspense
Account”. Balance in “MSTC Limited
Unclaimed Suspense Account” is showp.

f) | Itis hereby confirmed that the voting rights on these shares shall
remain frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims the
shares.

(G) Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the Following
Stock Exchanges:

Name & Address Stock Code
BSE Limited

P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, Fort

Mumbai- 400001 542597

National Stock Exchange of India limited (NSE)
Exchange Plaza, C-1, G Block,

Bandra — Kurla Complex,

Bandra (E), Mumbai - 400051

MSTCLTD




(H) Registrar to Issue and Share Transfer Agents:
Alankit Assignments Limited
205-208, Anarkali Complex, Jhandewalan
Extension, New Delhi-110 055
Tel: +91-11-4254-1951/+91-22-4348-1200
E-mail: sarunraj@alankit.com/ saching@alankit.com
Investor Grievance E-mail: mstcigr@alankit.com
Website: www.alankit.com
Contact Person: S. Arunraj/Sachin Gupta
SEBI Registration No.: INR000002532

(I) Share Transfer System

The Shares of the Company are traded in dematerialized form.
Shares sent for transfer are registered within stipulated period.
Shares under objection are returned within the stipulated
period seeking suitable rectification. The Company has a
Stakeholders Relationship Committee for approving requests
related to Dematerialization /Rematerialization/ Transfer/
Transmission/ Splitting/ consolidation/ Reissue of Shares
Certificates etc. received from the shareholders from time to
time.

o

aw

(J) Dematerialization of Share and Liquidity

As on 31st March 2020, 99.17% of the Equity Shares are held
in dematerialized form with NSDL and CDSL. The details are
as under:

Form No. of Shares |Percentage (%)
Held in Dematerialized

form in CDSL 39,52,049 5.61
Held in Dematerialized

form in NSDL 6,58,64,402 93.56
Held in Physical Form 5,83,549 0.83
(K) Listing Fees

Annual Listing fees for the year 2019-20, as applicable, have
been paid to the stock Exchanges.

(L) Stock Market Information

The share of the Company is listed with BSE and NSE on 29th
March, 2019.

(M) Stock Market Price Data

The Monthly High and Low (traded price) and Number of
shares traded (Volume) at BSE and NSE for the financial year
2019-20 are as under:

Month BSE LIMITED* NSE LIMITED*
High (Per Share) | Low (per Share) Volume High (Per Share) Low (Per Share) Volume

April 2019 120.00 99.00 3,00,000 120.50 97.95 11,55,999
May 2019 106.15 95.55 1,00,000 106.20 95.10 4,66,339
June 2019 98.85 84.00 Negligible 99.05 83.20 2,65,147
July 2019 103.70 8.55 1,00,000 103.65 83.50 11,89,625
August 2019 100.00 70.40 2,00,000 100.00 73.10 12,96,592
September 2019 114.80 77.40 3,00,000 110.00 77.10 17,46,292
October 2019 114.90 89.00 2,00,000 115.45 88.75 17,41,721
November 2019 184.10 111.95 27,00,000 184.85 111.25 | 2,05,37,272
December 2019 155.65 124.15 6,00,000 156.50 124.35 58,92,159
January 2020 152.50 118.75 4,00,000 152.80 118.85 42,80,863
February 2020 235.15 112.00 32,00,000 235.20 112.55 | 2,71,05,874

*Source: Website of BSE and NSE.

(N) Performance of the share price of the Company in
comparison to the BSE Sensex:
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(O) Performance of the share price of the Company in
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(P) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity — NIL
(Q) CIN of Company: L27320WB1964G01026211

(R) DematISIN No: INE255X01014

(S) Address for Communication:

For any assistance, request or instruction regarding transfer or transmission of shares, dematerialization of shares, change of
address, non-receipt of annual report, dividend warrant and any other query relating to the company, the investors may please write
to the following address :

The Company Secretary & Compliance Officer
MSTC Limited

225-C, A. J. C. Bose Road,

Kolkata — 700020, West Bengal, India

Tel: +91-33- 2281-3088

Email: cosec@mstcindia.co.in

(T)Top ten shareholder’s as on 31st March, 2020.

S.No. Name of Shareholders No. of Shares held % of Total Shareholding
1 President of India 4,55,80,000 64.74
2 Life Insurance Corporation of India 67,16,279 9.54
3 Suryavanshi Commotrade Private Limited 14,65,809 2.08
4 MSTC Limited Unclaimed Suspense Account 10,38,237 1.47
5 The New India Assurance Company Limited 7,80,735 1.1
6 Madhulika Agarwal 7,50,462 1.07
7 Ashish Kacholia 6,94,758 0.99
8 Steel Authority of India Limited 6,40,000 0.91
9 Sanjay Katkar 5,57,220 0.79
10 Investor Education and Protection Fund 3,15,520 0.45

(U) Distribution of Shareholding by Size as on 31st March, 2020

Category (Shares) Shareholders Number of Shares

From To Number % Number %

1 500 11,821 89.30 12,00,821 1.71
501 1000 554 4.18 4,48,839 0.64
1001 2000 328 2.48 5,04,587 0.72
2001 3000 107 0.81 2,74,979 0.39
3001 4000 115 0.87 3,94,769 0.56
4001 5000 56 0.42 2,63,892 0.37
5001 10000 89 0.67 6,60,704 0.94
10001 ABOVE 168 1.27 6,66,51,409 94.68
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(V) List of All Credit Rating Obtained by the Company:
(i) Credit Rating by CARE Ratings Limited:

Sr. No.| Particulars Amount (in Million) Rating Agency Rating
1. Long Term facilities 6200 CARE Ratings Limited CARE BBB; Stable
(triple B; Outlook : Stable)
2. Short Term facilities 48800 CARE Ratings Limited CARE A3+
(A Three Plus)
Total 55000
(ii) Credit Rating by Acuite Ratings & Research Limited:
Sr. No.| Particulars Amount (in Million) Rating Agency Rating
1. Long Term facilities 6200 Acuite Ratings & Research Limited | ACUITE A+
2. Short Term facilities 48800 Acuite Ratings & Research Limited | ACUITE A1+
Total 55000

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: August 24, 2020
Place: Kolkata
(Surinder Kumar Gupta)

Chairman and Managing Director
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) & CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

To,
The Board of Directors
MSTC Limited

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of MSTC Limited (‘the
Company’), to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that:

(a) We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended 31st March, 2020 and to the
best of our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any statements that
might be misleading;

(i) These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with the existing
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s Code of Conduct.

(c) We hereby declare that all the members of the Board of Directors and Management Committee have confirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

(d) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness of the same over the
financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or
operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

(e) We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit Committee:
(i) significantchanges, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(ii) significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(iii) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an
employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Subroda davion

Place : Kolkata (Subrata Sarkar) (Surinder Kumar Gupta)
Date : 29th June, 2020 Chief Financial Officer & D(F) Chairman & Managing Director

CMD’S CERTIFICATION

| declare that the Model Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Board Members and
Senior Management issued by the Government of India, Ministry of Heavy Industries and
Public Enterprises was adopted by the Board of Directors of the company and all the Board
Members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct for
the currentyear.

For & on behalf of Board of Directors

Date: 29th June, 2020 ﬁ

Place: Kolkata (Surinder Kumar Gupta)

Chairman and Managing Director
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BAJAJ TODI & ASSOCIATES

Practising Company Secretaries

225D, A. J. C Bose Road
Kolkata-700020, West Bengal, India
Tel: +91 33 22809045 Email: ps@bajajtodi.in

TO WHOMSOEVER IT MAY CONCERN

I, Priti Todi, Partner of Bajaj Todi & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries do hereby certify that none of the directors on the board of MSTC
Limited have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or from continuing as directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board
of India or Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority to the best of my knowledge.

This certificate is being issued as per Schedule V under Regulation 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations 2015.

Issued this 14" day of June, 2020, at Kolkata

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to Clause (i) of point (10) of Para C of Schedule V of Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

To the Members of
MSTC Limited

We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by MSTC Limited (‘the Company’) for the year ended on March 31,
2020, as stipulated under Regulations 17 to 27, clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 and para C, D and E of Schedule V of the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (“SEBI Listing Regulations”).

The compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our examination was limited to
the review of procedures and implementation thereof, as adopted by the Company for ensuring compliance with conditions of Corporate
Governance. ltis neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of ourinformation and according to the explanations given to us, and the representations made by the Management, we
certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI Listing Regulations for the year ended
on March 31, 2020 except for the following:-

The Company has not complied with the conditions with regard to minimum number of Independent Directors in the composition of the Board of
Director for the period 01.07.2019 to 31.03.2020.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the further viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Bajaj Todi & Associates
(Formerly known as PS & Associates)

28

(Priti Todi)
Partner Place : Kolkata
C.P.No.: 7270,ACS:14611 Dated : 26/06/2020

Note : My attendance for the purpose of physical verification and examination of the records of the company was impracticable due to lockdown
restrictions imposed by the Government due to COVID-19 and | have, therefore, relied on the electronic data as provided by the company to gather
information and proper records as necessary for verification.
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ANNEXURE 1lI

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT
[See Regulation 34(2)(f)]

Section A : General Information about the Company

Corporate Identity Number (CIN) of the Company
Name of the Company

Registered address

Website

E-mail id

Financial Year reported

Sector(s) that the Company is engaged in
(industrial activity code-wise)

8. List three key products/services that the Company
manufactures/provides (as in balance sheet)

9. Total number of locations where business activity is

undertaken by the Company

a) Number of International Locations (Provide details of major 5)

b) Number of National Locations
10. Markets served by the Company —

Local/State/National/International

SECTION B: FINANCIAL DETAILS OF THE COMPANY
1. Paid up Capital (INR)

2. Total Turnover (INR)

3. Total profit after taxes (INR)

4

Total Spending on Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)
as percentage of profit after tax (%)

5. List of activities in which expenditure in 4 above has
been incurred:-

a.

SECTION C: OTHER DETAILS
1. Does the Company have any Subsidiary Company/
Companies?

2. Do the Subsidiary Company/Companies participate in the
BR Initiatives of the parent company? If yes, then indicate
the number of such subsidiary company(s)

3. Do any other entity/entities (e.g. suppliers, distributors etc.)
that the Company does business with, participate in the BR
initiatives of the Company? If yes, then indicate the
percentage of such entity/entities? [Less than 30%, 30-60%
More than 60%]

L27320WB1964G01026211
MSTC LIMITED

225C, A.J.C. BOSE ROAD, KOLKATA — 700 020
www.mstcindia.co.in
cosec@mstcindia.co.in
2019-20

1. Trading Business

2. E-commerce

1. E-commerce platform

2. Digitization of e-governance
3. Jaivik Kheti portal

21
Nil
21
Local, State and National.

% 704 Million
% 8922.08 Million
% 752.03 Million

Due to loss incurred in the financial year 2018-19, company
does not have any fund/budget for the CSR activities in the
financial year 2019-20.

However, during the financial year company has spent
< 5.40 Million towards CSR.

Contribution to Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and
Relief in Emergency Situations Fund ( PM CARES Fund) for
Covid 19

Yes.

No
The company has only 1(one) subsidiary and it does not
participate in the BR Initiatives of the company.

No
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SECTION D: BR INFORMATION

1. Details of Director/Directors responsible for BR
(a) Details of the Director/Directors responsible for implementation of the BR policy/policies
1. DIN Number : 08643406

2. Name : Surinder Kumar Gupta
& Designation : Chairman and Managing Director
(b) Details of the BR head
No. Particulars Details
1 DIN Number (if applicable) 08643406
2 Name Surinder Kumar Gupta
3 Designation Chairman and Managing Director
4 Telephone number 033-2287-0810
5) e-mail id cmd@mstcindia.co.in

2. Principle-wise (as per NVGs) BR Policy/policies

The National Voluntary Guidelines on Social, Environmental and Economic Responsibilities of Business (NVGs) released by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs has adopted nine areas of Business Responsibility

These briefly are as follows:

P1 Business should conduct and govern themselves with Ethics, Transparency and Accountability.

P2 Businesses should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their life cycle.

P3 Businesses should promote the wellbeing of allemployees.

P4 Businesses should respect the interests of, and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who are
disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

P5 Businesses should respect and promote human rights.

P6 Business should respect, protect, and make efforts to restore the environment.

P7 Businesses, when engaged in influencing public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.
P8 Businesses should support inclusive growth and equitable development.

P9 Businesses should engage with and provide value to their customers and consumers in a responsible manner.
(a) Details of compliance (Reply in Y/N)

No. Questions P P P P P P P P P
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9
1 Do you have a policy/ policies for.... Y N Y Y Y N Y Y N
2 Has the policy being formulated in consultation with the
relevant stakeholders? Y N Y Y Y N Y Y N
3 Does the policy conform to any national / international MSTC has framed various policy which conform to
standards? different applicable statutes/ guidelines/ rules/ policies,

etc., issued by the Government of India from time to time.
Industry practices, national/international standards are
kept in view while formulating the policies.

4 Has the policy being approved by the Board? The policies are approved by the Board/Competent
Is yes, has it been signed by MD/ owner/ CEO/ appropriate Authorities as per the approved Delegation of Authority.
Board Director?

5 Does the company have a specified committee of the Board/ Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y
Director/ Official to oversee the implementation of the policy?

Indicate the link for the policy to be viewed online? @ The details of link are given below
6 Has the policy been formally communicated to all relevant
internal and external stakeholders? Yes, wherever appropriate.
7 Does the company have in-house structure to implement
the policy/ policies. Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

8 Does the Company have a grievance redressal mechanism
related to the policy/ policies to address stakeholders’
grievances related to the policy/ policies? Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

9 Has the company carried out independent audit/ evaluation The policies are not audited/evaluated by external
of the working of this policy by an internal or external agency? agencies. However, the policies are formulated within the
ambit of various statutory guidelines and business
requirement, which are amended from time to time.
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Name of the Policy
Policy for Prevention of Fraud

Whistle Blower Policy
Code of Business Conduct and Ethics

Policy on Materiality of Related Party Transactions and
Dealing with Related Party Transactions

Policy on Criteria for determining Materiality of Events or
Information for disclosure to Stock Exchanges

Dividend Distribution Policy

Code of Conduct for prevention of Insider Trading, Policy for
determining legitimate purpose , Fair Disclosure of Unpublished
Price Sensitive Information and Policy and procedure for inquiry
in case of leak of UPSI

Corporate Social Responsibility and Sustainable Development
Policy

Preservation of documents and Archive Policy

Sexual Harassment Policy

Weblink

https://mstcindia.co.inf/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
FPF-MSTC.htm

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
Whistle_Blower_Scheme.htm

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
BOD/Model_code of business_conduct.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.inf/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
newpolicy/RELATEDPARTYTRANSACTIONS.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
newpolicy/POLICYFORDETERMINATIONOFMATERIA
LITYOFEVENTSORINFORMATION.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
newpolicy/DIVIDENDDISTRIBUTIONPOLICY.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.inf/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
newpolicy/THECODEOFINTERNALPROCEDURES
ANDCONDUCTFORPROHIBITIONOFINSIDER
TRADING.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/
CSR/MSTC_CSR_Policy.pdf

https://mstcindia.co.in/MSTC_Static_Pages/frontpage/

newpolicy/PreservationofdocumentsandArchivepolicies.pdf

www.mstcindia.co.in

No. Questions P

-
N O
& T

o U

o U
~ U
© U
© U

1 The company has not
understood the Principles - | -

2 The company is not at a stage
where it finds itself in a position
to formulate and

implement the policies on
specified principles - |-

3 | The company does not have
financial or manpower
resources available for the task| -- | -

4 It is planned to be done
within next 6 months = || =

b It is planned to be done
within the next 1 year -- | MSTC being a Govt.
company follows policies
issued by the Govt. of
India from time to time.
Company has relevant
system and procedure in
place related to the
principal.Policy will be
framed within the
financial year 2020-21.

6 Any other reason
(please specify) -

MSTC being a Govt.
company has system and

The Company complies with | - | --
applicable environmental
regulations in respect of its
premises and operations.
Further, the Company
participates in initiatives
towards addressing
environmental issues. Policy
will be framed within the
financial year 2020-21

applicable guidelines
issued of the Govt. of
India from time to time.
Policy will be framed
within the financial year
2020-21

procedure in place as per
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3. Governance related to BR

Indicate the frequency with which the Board of Directors, Annually
Committee of the Board or CEO to assess the BR performance

of the Company. Within 3 months, 3-6 months, Annually, More

than 1 year

Does the Company publish a BR or a Sustainability Report? The BR is a part of its Annual Report. The hyperlink of
What is the hyperlink for viewing this report? How frequently it is viewing annual report is
published? https://mstcindia.co.in/content/Financialperformance.aspx

SECTION E: PRINCIPLE-WISE PERFORMANCE
Principle 1: Ethics, Transparency and Accountability
1.1 Does the policy relating to ethics, bribery and corruption Yes. MSTC has signed an Integrity Pact (IP) with

cover only the company? Yes/ No. Does it extend to the Transparency International India (TIl). Further the The
Group/Joint Ventures/ Suppliers/Contractors/ Vigilance department also acts as a link between the
NGOs /Others? organisation and other anti-corruption agencies of State

Governments and Administrative Ministry etc. and guide
company in achieving the objective.

1.2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in ~ During the Financial Year 2019-20, 52 grievances in total were

the past financial year and what percentage was received from both internal and external stakeholders. Out of
satisfactorily resolved by the management? If so, provide  this, 50 grievances (96.15%) were disposed of and 2 are
details thereof, in about 50 words or so. under process. 22 grievances disposed of in favour of the

stakeholders and 10 grievances were rejected. Grievances of
the internal and external stakeholders and the comments of
the concerned region/branch and department were examined
by the Grievance Committee to pass the recommendation for
redressal of the grievances. According to the recommendation
of the Committee, concerned Region/Branch and
Departments have taken action to redress the grievances.

Principle 2 Business should provide goods and services that are safe and contribute to sustainability throughout their
life cyclye.

2.1 List up to 3 of your products or services whose design has MSTC is a ecommerce service provider company.
incorporated social or environmental concerns, risks
and/or opportunities. 1. E Commerce Platform

2. Digitization of e-governance
3. Jaivik Kheti portal for Agro Sector.

2.2 For each such product, provide the following details in E-commerce and E-Auction platform helps in reducing carbon
respect of resource use (energy, water, raw material etc.)  footprint and bring more transparency.
per unit of product(optional): Open auctions ensure competitive bidding, and eliminate the

possibility of cartelization and collusion between the interested
parties, for profit maximization in general, and against public
interest in particular.

Jaivik Kheti portal - encourages sustainable agricultural
practices and will help in long range to demolish the monopoly
enjoyed by the traders and commission agents.

2.3 Does the company have procedures in place for Not applicable
sustainable sourcing (including transportation)?

If yes, what percentage of your inputs was sourced
sustainably? Also, provide details thereof, in about 50

words or so.

2.4 Has the company taken any steps to procure goods and Yes, MSTC support and encourage the participation of local
services from local & small producers, including and small vendors and MSME and follows various policics
communities surrounding their place of work? and guidelines issued by the Govt. of India from time to time.
If yes, what steps have been taken to improve their Company has attended in workshop and development
capacity and capability of local and small vendors? programme conducted by govt. and MSME.

2.5 Does the company have a mechanism to recycle products MSTC is an e-commerce company and mainly providing
and waste? If yes what is the percentage of recycling of platform for sale and purchase. The company is basically
products and waste (separately as <5%, 5-10%, >10%). providing software and as a good corporate citizen adopted

Also, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so. focused approach to manage waste generation.

MSTC
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MSTC

The Company has a 100% Subsidiary namely Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited which carries out the business of process of
steel mills slag and other refuse and debris for the recovery
of iron and steel scrap and other metallic. Further company
has an associate company namely Mahindra MSTC Recycling
Pvt. Limited which is engaged in the business of collection,
segregating, processing, recycling and importing of ELVs and
end of life white goods and other materials.

Principle 3 Business should promote the well-being of all employees

3.1 Please indicate the Total number of employees.

3.2 Please indicate the Total number of employees hired on
temporary/contractual/casual basis.

3.3 Please indicate the Number of permanent women
employees.

3.4 Please indicate the Number of permanent employees
with disabilities

3.5 Do you have an employee association that is recognized
by management?

3.6 What percentage of your permanent employees is
members of this recognized employee association?

3.7 Please indicate the Number of complaints relating to
child labour, forced labour, involuntary labour, sexual
harassment in the last financial year and pending, as
on the end of the financial year.

3.8 What percentage of your under mentioned employees
were given safety & skill up- gradation training in the
last year?

(a) Permanent Employees

(b)  Permanent Women Employees

(c) Casual/Temporary/Contractual Employees
(d)  Employees with Disabilities

344 ason 31.03.2020
137 as on 31.03.2020
59 as on 31.03.2020
11 as on 31.03.2020
Yes

90% approximately

No. Category No. of complaints
filed during the
financial year

1 Child labour/ forced

labour/ involuntary labour Nil
2 Sexual harassment Nil
3 Discriminatory employment Nil
14.2%
20.00%
10.9%
2.00%

Principle 4 Business should respect the interest of and be responsive towards all stakeholders, especially those who

are disadvantaged, vulnerable and marginalized.

4.1 Has the company mapped its internal and external
stakeholders? Yes/No

4.2 Out of the above, has the company identified the
disadvantaged, vulnerable & marginalized stakeholders?

4.3 Are there any special initiatives taken by the company to
engage with the disadvantaged, vulnerable and
marginalized stakeholders. If so, provide details thereof,
in about 50 words or so.

Yes.
The key categories are

1. Employees

2. Customers

3. Government and Regulatory authorities
4. Investors

5. Local communities

Yes

Yes company through its CSR activities works in the field of
Education, Women empowerment, skill development and
Swachh Bharat Mission.

Principle 5 Business should respect and promote human policy

5.1 Does the policy of the company on human rights cover
only the company or extend to the Group/Joint Ventures/
Suppliers/Contractors/NGOs/Others?

The policy covers only to MSTC.

However, MSTC its subsidiary and associate companies are
committed to work with stakeholders in all sectors to promote
good corporate governance and to carried out business in
utmost transparency and ethical way.




5.2 How many stakeholder complaints have been received in
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During the Financial Year 2019-20, 52 grievances in total

received from both internal and external stakeholders. Out of
this, 50 grievances (96.15%) were disposed of and 2 are
under process.

Principle 6 Business should respect, protect and make efforts to restore the environment

6.1 Does the policy related to Principle 6 cover only the
company or extends to the Group/Joint Ventures/Suppliers/
Contractors/NGOs/others.

6.2 Does the company have strategies/ initiatives to address

global environmental issues such as climate change, global

warming, etc? Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for
webpage etc.

6.3 Does the company identify and assess potential

environmental risks? Y/N

6.4

into
Development Mechanism? If so, provide details thereof, in
about 50 words or so. Also, if Yes, whether any
environmental compliance report is filed?

Does the company have any project related to Clean

6.5 Has the company undertaken any other initiatives on —
clean technology, energy efficiency, renewable energy, etc.

Y/N. If yes, please give hyperlink for web page etc.

6.6 Are the Emissions/Waste generated by the company within
the permissible limits given by CPCB/SPCB for the

financial year being reported?

6.7 Number of show cause/ legal notices received from
CPCB/SPCB which are pending (i.e. not resolved to

satisfaction) as on the end of Financial Year.

The aspects outlined under this Principle are not relevant to
the nature of business of the Company. The Company
complies with applicable environmental regulations in respect
of its premises and operations. Further, the Company
participates in initiatives towards addressing environmental
issues. The Company is coordinating with Ministry of Steel for
introducing scrapage policy.

Yes. Company through its subsidiary and associate company
are working in this area.

Yes

MSTC through its Joint Venture company MMRPL forayed

the recycling sector. MMRPL is poised to set up one of the
organized state of the art auto shredding plant in India for
recycling ELVs and other white goods by converting these into
shredded scrap which is a vital raw material for steel plants.

Yes.

The Head office of the Company which is under construction
is proposed to be energy efficient and GRIHA 3 star rated
green building. The proposed building will result in less
consumption of electricity and help to keep environment
clean.

Not applicable

Principle 7 Business when engaged in influential public and regulatory policy, should do so in a responsible manner.

7.1 Is your company a member of any trade and chamber or
association?

If Yes, Name only those major ones that your business
deals with:

7.2 Have you advocated/lobbied through above associations
for the advancement or improvement of public good?
Yes/No; if yes specify the broad areas ( drop box:
Governance and Administration, Economic Reforms,
Inclusive Development Policies, Energy security, Water,

Food Security, Sustainable Business Principles, Others)

Yes,
1. Indian Chamber of Commerce (ICC)

2. Confederation of Indian Industry (ClI)

No

Principle 8 Business should support inclusive growth and equitable development

8.1 Does the company have specified programmes /
initiatives/projects in pursuit of the policy related to
Principle 8? If yes details thereof.

During the current financial year company does not taken up
any project however in earlier financial years company has
various projects and initiative defined in the CSR policy. Some
of the major initiative taken by the company in the earlier
financial years are as follows;

Literacy and Education;

» Support to schools imparting education in rural and tribal
areas.

» Construction and renovation of class rooms/ school building
in various schools across India.
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» Construction of Dining Space for mid-day meal scheme

Healthcare;

» Construction of toilet for girls in school.

» Purchase of Ambulance for rural areas

* Purchase of medical equipment for medical centers.
» Construction of ill baby care center.

Skill development and Women empowerment

» Construction of training center for youth.

» Organising skill development training for poor youth

» Construction of shelter home for marginalized women and
provide training

 Distribution of sewing machine to tribal women

» Purchase of computers and laboratory equipments for girls
school laboratory.

8.2 Are the programmes/projects undertaken through in-house MSTC take up various CSR activities in partnership with
team/own foundation/external NGO/Government NGOQO'’s, State/District Authorities and Trust . The CSR
structures/any other organization? activities are monitored by CSR committees and partnering

organisation.

8.3 Have you done any impact assessment of your initiative?  Impact assessment is not applicable to MSTC Limited

8.4 What is your company’s direct contribution to community During the current financial year company has only
development projects- Amount in INR and the details of the contributed ¥ 5.40 Million to the Prime Minister’s Citizen

projects undertaken? Assistance andRelief in Emergency Situations Fund ( PM
CARES Fund) for Covid 19.
8.5 Have you taken steps to ensure that this community The CSR Committee of the Company visits the projects on
development initiative is successfully adopted by the time to time basis and ensure that the development work
community? Please explain in 50 words, or so. carried by the CSR ream is adopted by the community.

Principle 9 Business should engage with and provide value to their customers and customers in a responsible manner

9.1 What percentage of customer complaints/consumer cases Negligible i.e. 4 out of around 250 pending cases are
are pending as on the end of financial year. consumer cases pending as on 31.03.2020.

Further 5.88 % of complaints are pending as on 31.03.2020.

9.2 Does the company display product information on the Not applicable
product label, over and above what is mandated as per
local laws? Yes/No/N.A. /Remarks(additional information)

9.3 Is there any case filed by any stakeholder against the No
company regarding unfair trade practices, irresponsible
advertising and/or anti-competitive behaviour during the
last five years and pending as on end of financial year.

If so, provide details thereof, in about 50 words or so.

9.4 Did your company carry out any consumer survey/ No
consumer satisfaction trends?

For & on behalf of the Board of Directors

Date: August 24, 2020
Place: Kolkata
(Surinder Kumar Gupta)

Chairman and Managing Director
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Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration)

Rules, 2014]
. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS
i) CIN:- L27320WB1964G01026211
i) Registration Date:- 09/09/1964
iii) Name of the Company:- MSTC Limited
iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company:- Company limited by shares/ Government Company
v) Address of the registered office and contact details:- 225C, Acharya Jagadish Chandra Bose Road,

Kolkata — 700020, West Bengal
Tel : +91-033-2281-3088

Email :cosec@mstcindia.co.in

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No:- Yes
vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and M/s Alankit Assignments Limited
Transfer Agent, if any:- 205-208, Anarkali Complex, Jhandewalan

Extension, New Delhi -110 055
Tel: +91-11-4254-1951/+91-22-4348-1200

E-mail: sarunraj@alankit.com/ saching@alankit.com

Il. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:-

SI. No. Name and Description of NIC Code of the Product/ service % to total turnover
main products / services of the company
Agency Business NA 33.30
2 Marketing NA 66.70

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

SI. No. NAME AND ADDRESS CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ % of shares Applicable
OF THE COMPANY ASSOCIATE held Section
1. Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited U27102CT1989G0I005468 Subsidiary 100 2(87) of the
Companies
Act, 2013
2. Mahindra MSTC Recycling U37100MH2016PTC288535 Joint Venture 50 2(6) of the
Private Limited Companies

Act, 2013
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i) Category-wise Share Holding
Number of shares held at the beginning Number of shares held at the end Change
of the year of the year During
the year
Category of Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
Shareholder shares shares
A. Promoters
(1) Indian
(a) Individual/ HUF 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(b) Central
Government 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75| 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75 0.00
(c) State
Government(s) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(d) Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(e) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(f) Any Other 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
Sub Total(A)(1) 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75| 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75 0.00
(2) Foreign
(a) NRIs-Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(b) Other - Individuals 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(c )Bodies Corporate 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(d) Banks/Fl 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(e) Any Other 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
Sub Total(A)(2) 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
Total Shareholding of
Promoter (A)=
(A)(1)+(A)(2) 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75| 4,55,80,800 0| 4,55,80,800 64.75 0.00
B. Public shareholding
1. Institutions
(a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0.00 7,400 0 7,400 0.01 0.01
Banks/FI 1,03,11,370 0| 1,03,11,370 14.65 1,06,641 0 1,06,641 0.15 | (14.50)
(c) Central Government 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(d) State Government(s) 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(e) Venture Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0.00 74,97,014 0 74,97,014 10.65 10.65
(9) Flls 13,52,435 0] 13,52,435 1.92 0 0 0 0.00 | (1.92)
(h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.00 0.00
(i) Other (specify)
Alternative Investment
Funds 0 0 0 0.00 91,500 0 91,500 0.13 0.13
Sub-Total (B)(1) 1,16,63,805 0| 1,16,63,805 16.57|  77,02,555 0| 77,02,555 10.94 | (5.63)
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Number of shares held at the beginning Number of shares held at the end Change
of the year of the year During
the year
Category of Demat Physical Total % of total Demat Physical Total % of total
Shareholder shares shares
2. Non-institutions
(a) Bodies Corporate
(i) Indian 35,12,332 6,83,475|  41,95,807 596 40,02,878 2,80,475| 42,83,353 6.08 0.12
(ii) Overseas 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
(b) Individuals
(i) Individual sharehol-
ders holding nominal
share capital up to
Rs 2 lakh 24,217,668 1,86,678|  26,14,346 3.71|  37,65,858 1,02,474|  38,68,332 5.49 1.78
(ii) Individual sharehol-
ders holding nominal
share capital in excess
of Rs. 2 lakh. 32,59,676 4,27,000|  36,86,676 5.24|  68,36,989 1,96,600| 70,33,589 9.99 4.75
(c) NBFCs registered
with RBI 0 0 0 0.00 2,300 0 2,300 0.00 0.00
(d) Others (specify)
(i) Qualified Foreign Investor 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000
(if) Trust & Foundations 0 0 0 0.00 0 0 0 0.0000
(iif) Non-Resident
Individuals 70,638 0 70,638 0.10 69,908 0 69,908 0.10| (0.01)
(iv) Non Resident Non
Repatriates 0 0 0 0.00 1,21,669 4,000 1,25,669 0.18 0.18
(v) Investor Education
& Protection Fund 3,07,200 0 3,07,200 0.44 3,15,520 0 3,15,520 0.45 0.01
(vi) MSTC Limited
Unclaimed Suspense
Account 19,17,153 0| 19,17,153 2.72|  10,38,237 0 10,38,237 1471 (1.25)
(vii) Clearing Member 2,32,681 0 2,32,681 0.33 1,32,082 0 1,32,082 0.19| (0.14)
(viii) Foreign Nationals 0 4,000 4,000 0.01 0 0 0 0.00| (0.01)
(ix) HUF 1,26,894 0 1,26,894 0.18 2,27,044 0 2,27,044 0.32 0.14
(x) Employees/ Office
Bearers 0 0 0 0.00 20,611 0 20,611 0.03 0.03
Sub-Total (B)(2) 1,18,54,242|  13,01,153| 1,31,55,395 18.69| 1,65,33,096 5,83,549 | 1,71,16,645 24.31 5.62
Total Public
Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+(B)(2) 2,358,047  13,01,153| 2,48,19,200 35.26| 2,42,35,651 5,83,549 | 2,48,19,200 35.26 0.00
C. Shares held by
Custodians for GDRs
& ADRs 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.00
GRAND TOTAL
(A)+(B)*+(C) 6,90,98,847|  13,01,153| 7,04,00,000 100| 6,98,16,451 5,83,549 | 7,04,40,000 100 0.00
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

SI No. Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning Shareholding at the end of the year
of the year the year
No. of % of total | % of Shares | No. of % of total | % of Shares | % change in
Shares Shares of Pledged / Shares | Shares of Pledged/ | shareholding
the company | encumbered the company| encumbered during
to total shares to total shares| the year
1 President of India 4,55,80,800 64.75 NIL 4,55,80,800 64.75 NIL 0.00

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):

Sl No. Particulars Shareholding at the Transactions during the year Cumulative Shareholding
Beginning of the year during the year
No. of the | % of the total Date Increase/Decrease Reason No. of the | % of the total
Shares | shares of the during the year Shares of Pledged / shares of
the Company
1. At the Beginning of the year | 45580800 64.75 - 0 - 45580800 64.75
2. At the end of the Year 45580800 64.75 - 0 - 45580800 64.75
(iv) Share holding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs):
SI No. Particulars Shareholding at the Beginning Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
For each of the Top Ten Shareholders No. of the Shares | % of the total shares |No. of the Shares | % of the total
of the Company Company
1. LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA
At the beginning of the year 7026976 9.98 7026976 9.98
Bought during the year NIL NIL 7026976 9.98
Sold during the year 310697 0.44 6716279 9.54
At the End of the Year NA NA 6716279 9.54
2, SURYAVANSHI COMMOTRADE PRIVATE
At the beginning of the year 1465809 2.08 1465809 2.08
Bought during the year NIL NA 1465809 2.08
Sold during the year NIL NA 1465809 2.08
At the End of the Year NIL NA 1465809 2.08
3. MSTC LIMITED UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT
At the beginning of the year 1917153 2.72 1917153 2.72
Bought during the year NIL NA 1917153 2.72
Sold during the year 878916 1.25 1038237 1.47
At the End of the Year NIL NA 1038237 1.47
4, THE NEW INDIA ASSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 780735 1.1 780735 1.11
Bought during the year NIL NA 780735 1.11
Sold during the year NIL NA 780735 1.11
At the End of the Year NIL NA 780735 1.1
58 MADHULIKA AGARWAL
At the beginning of the year 750462 1.06 750462 1.06
Bought during the year NIL NA 750462 1.06
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SI No. Particulars Shareholding at the Beginning Cumulative Shareholding
of the year during the year
For each of the Top Ten Shareholders No. of the Shares | % of the total shares [No. of the Shares | % of the total
of the Company Company
Sold during the year NIL NA 750462 1.06
At the End of the Year NIL NA 750462 1.06
6. ASHISH KACHOLIA
At the beginning of the year NIL NA NIL NA
Bought during the year 894758 1.27 894758 1.27
Sold during the year 200000 0.28 694758 0.98
At the End of the Year NIL NA 694758 0.98
7. STEELAUTHORITY OF INIDA LIMITED
At the beginning of the year 320000 0.45 320000 0.45
Bought during the year 320000 0.45 640000 0.91
Sold during the year NIL NA 640000 0.91
At the End of the Year NIL NA 640000 0.91
8. SANJAY KATKAR
At the beginning of the year NIL NA NIL NA
Bought during the year 557220 0.79 557220 0.79
Sold during the year NIL NA 557220 0.79
At the End of the Year NIL NA 557220 0.79
9. INVESTOR EDUCTAION AND PROTECTION FUND
At the beginning of the year 307200 043 307200 0.43
Bought during the year 8320 0.01 315520 0.44
Sold during the year NIL NA 315520 0.44
At the End of the Year NIL NA 315520 0.44
10. ABHINANDAN LEASING AND FINANCE PVT LTD
At the beginning of the year 69273 0.09 69273 0.09
Bought during the year 811609 1.15 880882 1.25
Sold during the year 580199 0.82 300683 0.42
At the End of the Year NIL NA 300683 0.42

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl No. Particulars IShareholding at the beginning of the year Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
For Directors and KMP No. of shares % of total shares No. of shares | % of total shares
of the company of the company
1. Shri Bam Bahadur Singh 160 Negligible 160 Negligible
2. Smt Bhanu Kumar 160 Negligible 160 Negligible
3. Shri Subrata Sarkar 160 Negligible 160 Negligible
4. Dr. Promodita Sathish 160 Negligible 160 Negligible
5. Shri Ajay Kumar Rai 160 Negligible 160 Negligible
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V. INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (% in Millions)
Sl No. Particulars Secured Loans Unsecured Loans Deposits Total
excluding deposits Indebtedness
1 Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 4612.77 1436.20 0 6048.97
ii) Interest due but not paid 0.13 0 0 0.13
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 788.90 0 788.90
Total ( i+ii+iii ) 4612.90 2225.10 0 6838.00
2 Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
i) Addition 0 0 0 0
ii) Reduction 3732.95 0 0 3732.95
Net Change 3732.95 0 0 3732.95
3 Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i) Principal Amount 879.95 1436.20 0 2316.15
ii) Interest due but not paid 0 0 0 0
iii) Interest accrued but not due 0 788.90 0 788.90
Total ( i+ii+iii ) 879.95 2225.10 0 3105.05
VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: (X in Millions)
Sl No. | Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/manager Total
Amount
Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta, Shri B.B.Singh, |Shri Subrata Sarkar | Smt. Bhanu Kumar
Chairman Cum Managing| Chairman Cum | Director (Finance) Director
Director (w.e.f 17.12.2019) | Managing Director (Commercial)
(Upto 30.11.2019)
1 Gross salary 1.20 4.06 3.91 4.67 13.84
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify:
Company’s contribution to CPF 0.06 0 0.59 0.87 1.52
Total (A) 1.26 4.06 4.50 5.54 15.36
B. Remuneration to other directors:
(% in Millions)
Sl No. Particulars of Remuneration Name of Director Name of Director | Name of Director Name of Director
Shri G. R. Aloria | Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan | Shri. R.S Yeli | Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi
1. Independent Directors
Fee for attending board / committee meetings
Commission Others, please specify 0.32 0.39 0.32 0.23
Total (1) 0.32 0.39 0.32 0.23
2. Other Non-Executive Directors
Fee for attending board / committee meetings
Commission Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (2) 0 0 0 0
Total (B)=(1+2) 0.32 0.39 0.32 0.23
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C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/WTD/MANAGER

(% in Millions)
Sl No. Particulars of Remuneration Key Managerial Personnel
Company Secretary CFO Total
Shri A. K. Rai Shri Subrata Sarkar

1 Gross salary 2.75 3.91 6.66
2 Stock Option 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0
5 Others, please specify: Company’s Contribution to CPF 0.49 0.59 1.08

Total 3.24 4.50 7.74

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL
Type Section of Brief Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal made, if any
the Companies Act Description Punishment/ Compounding | [RD / NCLT/ COURT] (give Details)
fees imposed

A. COMPANY
Penalty

Punishment N I L

Compounding
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment N I L
Compounding
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty

Punishment N I L

Compounding
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(B)
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(D)

(E)

(F)

2,

Pursuant to section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) guidelines, a Board level CSR
committee was constituted. As on March 31, 2020 the members of the Committee are as follows:-

This committee oversees the CSR activities of the Company as per Company’s CSR policy. Designated officers of the Company
implement the decisions taken by the Committee.

3.

4,

Since, Company has incurred losses in the financial year company 2018-19 and further as the Average Profit Before Tax is
¥ (203.36) crores, it was decided by the CSR Committee and Board that during the financial year 2019-20 there will not be any
budget for CSR expenditure.

The Committee and Board further decided that project which were not completed in the financial year 2018-19 will be reviewed by the
CSR Committee and based on the review of the CSR committee and approval of the Board, fund may be released to eligible project
on case to case basis.

Details of CSR expenditure during the Financial Year 2019-20:

ﬂ MSTC
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ANNEXURE -V
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR 2019-20

Brief outline of the Company’s CSR Policy:

Company has formulated a CSR and Sustainable Development Policy in line with the Companies Act, 2013 which has been
recommended by duly constituted CSR Committee of the Board and approved by the Board. The policy is available at
Company’s website www.mstcindia.co.in. The policy has been revised in 2018 which has been duly approved by the Board in
its 280th meeting held on 05.04.2018.

The vision of the Policy is blending responsible business with inclusive growth and Sustainable Development for protecting
environment, conserving resources and improving human health and education.

Board shall constitute a CSR Committee with an Independent Director as Chairman. Nodal officers shall implement the
decisions taken by the Committee. Company Secretary shall be secretary to the Committee.

The Committee shall recommend budget, the projects to be taken up, and the method of implementation. The Committee and
the Board shall ensure that at least 2% of the average Profit Before Tax (PBT) of preceding 3 years is the budget for the current
year.

Activities shall include all activities covered under Annexure to the CSR Policy of the Company which includes inter alia, items
as provided under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 and DPE guidelines. Additionally, any Govt. guidelines/
instructions shall be considered by the Committee/Board.

MSTC shall also encourage collaborative projects with other PSUs, Govt. agencies, NGOs, if required, on the basis of merit of
the project.

Composition of the CSR Commiittee:

1. Dr.T. V. Muralivallabhan, Chairman of CSR Committee
2. Dr.Promodita Sathish, Member

3. Dr.R.S.Yeli, Member

4. ShriSubrata Sarkar, Member

Average Profit Before Tax (PBT) of the Company for last three Financial Years (2016-17,2017-18,2018-19):
%(203.36) Crore.
Prescribed CSR expenditure budget for FY 2019-20 (two percent of the above amount):

(@) Totalamount spent for the financial year:¥54.00 lacs
(b)  Amountunspent, ifany : Nil

(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below: Contribution in Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Reliefin Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) for Covid 19.




ANNEXURE - VI
FORM NO. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2020

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the companies act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personal) rules, 2014]

To,
The Members,
MSTC Limited

| have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provision and the adherence to good corporate
practices by MSTC Limited (CIN: L27320WB1964G01026211) (hereinafter called the company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in
a manner that provides me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing my
opinion thereon.

Based on my verification of the MSTC Limited’s books, paper, minute books, forms, and return filed and other records maintained by
the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents and authorized representative during the conduct
of secretarial audit and as per the explanations given to me and the representation made by the management, | hereby report that in
my opinion, the company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March , 2020 generally complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that company has proper Board process and compliance mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter :

| have examined books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records made available to me and maintained by the
MSTC Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2020 according to the applicable provision of:

i. The CompaniesAct,2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made there under, as applicable;

ii. The Securities contract (regulation)Act, 1956 (‘'SCRA’) and the rules made there under;

iii. The DepositoryAct, 1996 and the regulation and Bye-laws framed there under;
NOTAPPLICABLE

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign Direct
investment, Overseas direct Investment and External Commercial borrowing;

v. The following regulations and guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,1992(‘SEBI
Act’):

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

-~ 0o a0 T p

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;
vi. Otherlaws applicable to the company as per the representations made by the Management.
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i.  Secretarial standers of the Institute of Company Secretaries of India with respect board and general meetings are yet to be
specified under the Act by the Institute.

i. TheListingagreements entered into by company with BSE limited and National Stock Exchange of India limited.

During the period under review and as per the explanations and clarifications given to me and the representation made by
management, the company has generally complied with the provision of the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, etc. mentioned
above. However, with respect to the following matters my observations are as follows:

- With respect to constitution of Board of Directors of the Company, there exists shortage in the number of Independent Director
on and from 1st July, 2019 to 31st March, 2020.
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With respect to filing of forms to Registrar of Companies some forms were filed after the due dates.

With respect to transfer of shares to IEPF and filing of Form IEPF 4, the shares were not transferred to IEPF since the shares
were under lock-in period till 27/03/2020 as per the terms and conditions of IPO and hence Form IEPF 4 could not be filed
within 31st March, 2020.

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in
compliance with the provision of the Act. Adequate notice was given to all Directors. Agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent
in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the
meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Decisions at the board meeting, as represented by the management, were taken unanimously.

| further report as per the explanation given to me and the representation made by the management and relied upon by me there are
adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to the monitor and
ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

| further report that during the audit period the company has not taken any actions having a major bearing on the Companies affair in
pursuance of the above applicable laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, standards etc referred to above.

Place: Kolkata CS SAUMAYO JYOTI SEAL
Date: 26/06/2020 FCS: 9766
C.P.No. 11169

UDIN: F009766B000385889

This reportis to be read with my letter of even date which is annexure Aand forms an integral part of this report.

To,

‘Annexure A’

The Members,
MSTC Limited

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.
2.

Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

| have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of
the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. | believe that the process and practices, | followed provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

| have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the company.

Wherever required, | have obtained the management representative about the compliance of laws, rules, and regulations and
happening of events etc.

The Compliance of the provision of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulation, standards is the responsibility of
management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedure on test basis.

I have relied upon the information, extracts, declarations etc as provided by the Company for this Secretarial Audit, considering
the COVID 19 pandemic & lockdown the information and confirmation were received digitally.

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.
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ANNEXURE - VII(A)

Management Replies to Comments/Observations of the Statutory Auditors on the Standalone
Ind AS Financial Statement of MSTC Ltd. for the financial year ending on March 31, 2020.

Sl.
No.

Qualified Opinion/ Observation

Management’s Replies

i(c)

The title deed of the Company’simmovable properties have been found to
be held in the name of the company except a flat at Mumbai (book value:
gross /net¥ 0.74 /3 0.44 million respectively) for which no title deed could
be made available for verification.

The Company holds clear title over the asset in question. Due to very old
nature the relevant papers could not be shown during audit. Efforts are on
toretrieve title deed of the property.

viii

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of dues to banks,
except subjudice cases of loans from Standard Chartered Bank and
Indian Overseas Bank ¥ 1436.20 million and ¥ 13.80 million as mentioned
in Note No. 20(a) and 20(b) of the notes to the standalone financial
statements.

Both the matters are subjudice in various forums and have been
adequately disclosed in Note No.20 of the Notes on Accounts.

The Company falls short of exercising internal control system for
customer acceptance, credit evaluation and establishing credit limits for
sales, which could potentially result in the Company recognizing revenue
without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

The trading business model of Cash and Carry Business was approved by
Board and was in vogue since previous decades. In the past MSTC has
fully realized hefty dues in respect of Ispat Industries Ltd, Haldia
Petrochemicals Ltd and many other cases. There is a Marketing Manual
which describes the set of rules and procedures for handling day-to-day
operations and which covers other relevant aspects of Marketing
operations. Over and above, there is a Board approved Risk Management
policy in place which inter alia provides guidelines for customer selection,
credit evaluation and establishing credit limits for customers etc. and the
same is also reviewed and modified from time to time with Board approval.
Besides, Company has insulated default risk significantly by introducing
trading business with new customers only by accepting Bank Guarantee
for 110% of value of materials. The Company has already closed business
with customers under the ‘Cash and Carry’ model with effect from this
financial year. In this line the company has also decided to taper down other
models to finally discontinue the trading business w.e.f2021-22.

There is a system of regular follow up with customers for timely realization
of dues. Reminders are sent in case of occurrence of any default and
further procurements are restricted. Rigorous follow up is also done over
phone and representatives from the parties are called to meet
directors/CMD at periodical intervals. Month wise reports are generated
inter alia showing transactions, realizations, outstanding and age wise
analysis thereof. Monthly reports are sent to the Ministry of Steel in this
regard also detailing the current status related to outstanding receivables.
The trading business is also reviewed regularly by Audit committee of the
Board and suggestions are implemented.

Pt.
6(b)

In the process of maintaining safe custody of pledged stock of raw
materials procured by the company on behalf of its customers under the
Company appointed custodian, it has been observed that there is
inadequacy of required internal control.

The Company had engaged Central Rail side Warehousing Corporation
Ltd.,a CPSE as a custodian for pledged stock w.e.fF.Y 18-19, replacing the
earlier custodian. In addition to this there is a system of physical verification
of stock through third party inspection agency at periodic intervals and
same is being strengthened. However, shortages, if any, arising out of the
said verification are immediately addressed by recovering the same
wherever feasible, else police complaints are lodged immediately, and
other legal steps are taken against the defaulting customer.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(S. K. Gupta)
Chairman and Managing Director
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ANNEXURE - VII(B)

Management Replies to Comments/Observations of the Statutory Auditors on the Consolidated
Ind AS Financial Statement of MSTC Ltd. for the financial year ending on March 31, 2020.

Sl
No.

Qualified Opinion/ Observation

Management’s Replies

Other Regulatory Requirement Pt 8(f) (Annexure A)

Pt.
6(a)

The Holding Company falls short of exercising internal control system for
customer acceptance, credit evaluation and establishing credit limits for
sales, which could potentially result in the Holding Company recognizing
revenue without establishing reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

The trading business model of Cash and Carry Business was approved by
the Board of Holding Company (Company) and was in vogue since
previous decades. In the past Company has fully realized hefty dues in
respect of Ispat Industries Ltd, Haldia Petrochemicals Ltd and many other
cases. There is a Marketing Manual which describes the set of rules and
procedures for handling day-to-day operations and which covers other
relevant aspects of Marketing operations. Over and above, there is a Board
approved Risk Management policy in place which inter alia provides
guidelines for customer selection, credit evaluation and establishing credit
limits for customers etc. and the same is also reviewed and modified from
time to time with Board approval. Besides, Company has insulated default
risk significantly by introducing trading business with new customers only
by accepting Bank Guarantee for 110% of value of materials. The
Company has already closed business with customers under the ‘Cash
and Carry’ model with effect from this financial year. In this line the
company has also decided to taper down other models to finally
discontinue the trading business w.e.f2021-22.

There is a system of regular follow up with customers for timely realization
of dues. Reminders are sent in case of occurrence of any default and
further procurements are restricted. Rigorous follow up is also done over
phone and representatives from the parties are called to meet
directors/CMD at periodical intervals. Month wise reports are generated
inter alia showing transactions, realizations, outstanding and age wise
analysis thereof. Monthly reports are sent to the Ministry of Steel in this
regard also detailing the current status related to outstanding receivables.
The trading business is also reviewed regularly by Audit committee of the
Board and suggestions are implemented.

Pt.
6(b)

In the process of maintaining safe custody of pledged stock of raw
materials procured by the Holding Company on behalf of its customers
under the Company appointed custodian, it has been observed that there
is inadequacy of required internal control.

The Holding Company had engaged Central Rail side Warehousing
Corporation Ltd., a CPSE as a custodian for pledged stock w.e.fF.Y 18-19,
replacing the earlier custodian. In addition to this there is a system of
physical verification of stock through third party inspection agency at
periodic intervals and same is being strengthened. However, shortages, if
any, arising out of the said verification are immediately addressed by
recovering the same wherever feasible, else police complaints are lodged
immediately, and other appropriate legal steps are taken against the
defaulting customer.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(S. K. Gupta)
Chairman and Managing Director
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To The Members of MSTC Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial

Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial
statements of MSTC Limited (“‘the Company”), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and
the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity,
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs
of the Company as at March 31st, 2020, profit and other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements’ section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
standalone financial statements under the provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and the Rules made there under, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter
2. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the
following:
a. Attention is drawn to Note No 44 of the standalone
financial statements, as regards the Managements

evaluation of COVID 19 impact on the future
performance of the company.

b. Attention is drawn to Note No. 36 of the standalone
financial statements regarding Non Provision of
Deferred Tax Asset of ¥ 1,565.54 Million on Provision
for Doubtful Debts of T 4480.13 Million made after
01.04.2018.

c. The title deed of a freehold flat in Mumbai having gross
block of ¥ 0.74 million as at 31.03.2020 could not be
furnished before the audit.

Key Audit Matters

3. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements of the current
period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined
the matters described below to be the key audit matters to
be communicated in our report.

Sl.

Key Audit Matters

Auditor’s Response

Recoverability of Trade
Receivables:

As at 31st March 2020, trade
receivables Gross is
T 21,834.48 million (Net
% 12334.44 million). Out of
which ¥ 10,428.42 million
was unsecured and
provision of ¥ 9,500.04
million for bad and doubtful
debts has been made by the
Company.

In the event of insolvency of
customers, the Company is
exposed to potential risk of
financial loss when the
customers fail to meet their
contractual obligation in
accordance with the
requirements. The
recoverable amount was
estimated by management
based on their specific
recoverability assessment
on individual debtor with
reference to the ageing
profile and credit worthiness
of the customer.

The disclosures related to
Trade Receivables of the
Company are provided in
Note 8 to the accompanying
standalone financial
statement

Examining details of
receivables and
transactions during the year
ended 31st March 2020. We
have observed the nature of
the trade receivables, the
sustainability and the
likelihood of recoverability of
receivables.

Since Company’s obtaining
of balance confirmations
from Parties is an ongoing
process (Refer note 42),
substantive audit
procedures have been
followed to ensure accuracy
of balances. We have
assessed the recoverability
of the unsettled receivables
on a sample basis through
our evaluation of
management’s assessment
with reference to the credit
profile of the customers and
their historical payment
pattern, wherever
applicable, along with the
latest correspondences with
the customers, read with the
company’s existing risk
management policy.
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i. ITSystems & Control:

Preparation and|Wehave planned, designed

4. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the

presentation of Financial|and carried out the desired

Statements are dependent
on Company’s supporting
software and hardware
controls involving risk
management exercise for
maximum elimination of
erroneous data. Thus quality
of audit outcome and its
authenticity are dependent
on the extent of IT controls
and systems.

Assessment of allowance
for Bad and Doubtful
Advances and Contingent
Liabilities:

Assessment of allowance
for Bad and Doubtful
Advances and Contingent
liabilities require
assessment of probable
outcomes and cash flows.
The identification and
quantification require
estimation and judgment by
the management. The
disclosure related to
allowance for Bad and
Doubtful Advances and
Contingent liabilities are
provided in Note No 30 & 35
(a) to the accompanying
Standalone Financial
Statements.

. [Impact of COVID 2019 :

audit procedures and
sample checks, which in our
opinion are adequate to
provide reasonable
assurance on the adequacy
of IT controls in place.

We have carried out the
validation of the information
provided by the
management by performing
the following procedures:-

-Evaluating
reasonableness of the
underlying assumptions.

- Understanding the current
status of the litigations.

- Examining the relevant
documents on available
records.

- Reviewing legal opinion /
industry practices
wherever necessary.

- Verification of various
disclosures made by the
management.

- Obtaining Management’s
Representation as per
guidelines of the ICAL.

As a result of COVID 19
Pandemic situation
prevailing in the country, we
had to encounter difficulties /
delay in the process of
collection of data and
analysing the same to come
to an audit conclusion
without compromising the
maintenance of quality of
audit as desired by the
regulatory authorities.

preparation of other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management
Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report including
Annexure to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and
Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the
standalone financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge
obtained during the course of our audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for Standalone Financial Statements

5. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
standalone financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
IND AS specified under section 133 of the Act. This
responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of
the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgements and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone financial
statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements,
management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
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and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
SO.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis ofthese standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

» |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the company has
adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of
the standalone financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
eventsinamanner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the standalone

financial statement that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decision of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statement may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone
financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

7. The Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2019 were audited by the other
auditor under Companies Act, 2013 who, vide their report
dated May 29, 2019 expressed an unmodified opinion on
those financial statements.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. As required by the Companies (Auditor’'s Report) Order,




2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A”, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4
ofthe Order, to the extentapplicable.

9. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from
our examination of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including other comprehensive income), the statement of
changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with
relevant Rules thereto.

(e) As per notification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated 5th June, 2015
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, section 164(2) of
the Companies Act, 2013 regarding disqualification of the
Director is not applicable to the Company, since it is a
Government Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Reportin “Annexure B”.

(9) The company being a Government Company, provisions of
section 197 (16) of the companies Act 2013 regarding
managerial remuneration is not applicable to the Company
as per notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated 05 June 2015
issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending
litigations on its financial position in its standalone
financial statements - Refer Note 35(a) to the
standalone financial statements.

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts
including derivative contracts for which there were any
material foreseeable losses.

iii. There was delay in transferring unpaid Interim
Dividend of Rs. 1.01 million to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund (declared on 30.12.2011 for FY
2011-12) and the amount was deposited on
09.04.2019.

10. Asrequired by section 143(5) of the Act the directions and
sub-directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor
General of India, we give our comments in the standalone
financial statements in “Annexure-C” annexed herewith.

For S Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN- 302184E/E300007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner

M.No.060084

UDIN : 20060084AAAAAW5652

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29.06.2020
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Annexure-A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 8 under ‘Report on Other Legal & Regulatory Requirement’ of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details and situation of fixed
assets.

(b) The Company has physically verified its fixed assets during the year. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) Thetitle deed of the Company’simmovable properties have been found to be held in the name of the company except a flat
at Mumbai (book value : gross/net3 0.74 /3 0.44 million respectively) for which no title deed could be made available for
verification.

(i)  The company does not hold any Inventory as at the year end. Therefore the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the order are not
applicable to the company.

(iii)  As perinformation and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan, secured or unsecured to Companies,
Firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the Register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (iii) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(iv) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loan or provided any
guarantee/security and hence Section 185 of the Act is not applicable. The company has not made any investment during the
year under section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (iv) of the order are not applicable to the Company.

(v)  According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits from the public and
hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed there under. Therefore, the provision of Clause 3(v) of the Order is
not applicable on the Company

(vi) Asinformed to us, the maintenance of Cost Records has not been specified by the Central Government under sub-section (1)
of Section 148 of the Act. Therefore, the provision of Clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable on the Company

(vii) (a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and any other statutory dues as applicable with the appropriate authorities.
According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amount payable in respect of aforesaid dues
were outstanding as at 31st march, 2020 for a period of more than six months from the date of becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, and the records of the Company examined by us, the

particulars of dues of income tax, service tax, sales tax, value added tax, duty of customs, etc as at 31st March, 2020
which has not been deposited on account of a dispute are as follows:

SI No | Name of the Statute Nature of Dues Period to Amount Forum where the dispute
which the (X in Million) is pending
amount
relates (FY)
1 UP VAT Act 2008 Claim by Sales Tax 2001-02 0.19 High Court Allahabad
Authority
UP VAT Act 2008 2004-05 0.17 Commercial Tax Tribunal Bench,
Ghaziabad.
2 WB VAT Act 2003 Claim by Sales Tax 2009-10 42.63 Appellate Revision Board, Kolkata
Authority
WB VAT Act 2003 2012-13 51.72 Senior Joint Commissioner,
Commercial Taxes, Kolkata
3 AP VAT Act 2005 Claim by Sales Tax 1998-99 2.25 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
Authority (STAT) , Visakhapatnam
AP VAT Act 2005 1999-00 4.1 ADC-Appeals Vijayawada .
AP VAT Act 2005 2004-05 0.91 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
(STAT) , Visakhapatnam




R

SINo | Name of the Statute | Nature of Dues Period to Amount Forum where the dispute
which the (% in Million) | is pending
amount
relates (FY)
AP VAT Act 2005 2005-06 0.37 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
(STAT) , Visakhapatnam
AP VAT Act 2005 2006-07 0.08 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
(STAT) , Visakhapatnam
AP VAT Act 2005 2008-13 7.93 High Court of Judicature at
Hyderabad
AP VAT Act 2005 2008-13 5.62 Appellate Joint Commissioner
(Appeals),Vijayawada
4 J&K Sales Tax Act Claim by Sales Tax 2015-16 0.03 Commercial Tax Circle-N, Jammu
1962 Authority
5 CST (CENTRAL Claim by Sales Tax 2009-10 24.90 Sales Tax Appellate Tribunal
SALES TAXACT) Authority (STAT) , Visakhapatnam
CST (CENTRAL 2015-16 1.43 CTO-Suryabagh circle
SALES TAX ACT)
6 Orissa Sales Tax Act | Claim by Sales Tax 1986-87 26.90 High Court Orissa
Authority
7 Gujarat VAT Act 2003 | Claim by Sales Tax 2002-03 5.22 Pre-Audit Deptt. Ahmedabad
Authority
Gujarat VAT Act 2003 2004-05 21.80 Appeal filed in Gujarat Value
Added Tax Tribunal against DC
(Appeal Order)
Total of Sales Tax Dues 196.26
8 Customs Act 1962 Claim by Custom 1995-96 26.63 Madras High Court
Department
Customs Act 1962 2001-02 20.38 High Court Calcutta
Customs Act 1962 2012-13 63.57 CESTAT Bangalore or CESTAT
Chennai
Customs Act 1962 2013-14 8.35 CESTAT Bangalore or CESTAT
Chennai
Total of Custom Dues 118.93
9 Finance Act 1994 Service Tax Demand 2005-07 149.01 CESTAT Kolkata
(Service Tax)
Total of Service Tax Dues 149.01
10 Income Tax Act 1961 | Income Tax Demand 2004-05 0.1 CIT Appeals Kolkata
Income Tax Act 1961 2011-12 213 Commissioner Appeals Kolkata
Income Tax Act 1961 2012-13 22.11 Commissioner Appeals Kolkata
Income Tax Act 1961 2013-14 0.99 Commissioner Appeals Kolkata
Income Tax Act 1961 2016-17 0.24 Commissioner Appeals Kolkata
Income Tax Act 1961 2015-16 0.99 Commissioner Appeals Kolkata
(TDS)
Total of Income Tax Dues 26.57
TOTAL TAX DUES 490.77
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In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment
of dues to banks, except subjudice cases of loans from Standard Chartered Bank and Indian Overseas Bank Rs. 1436.20
million and Rs. 13.80 million as mentioned in Note No. 20(a) and 20(b) of the notes to the standalone financial statements.

The company did not have any loans or borrowings from financial institutions or Government and has not issued any
debentures.

Based upon the information and explanations given by the management, the company has not raised any money by way of
initial public offer or further public offer including debt instruments. Further Money raised by way of term loan was applied for
the purpose for which it was raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and record of the company, carried out in accordance with the generally
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud on
or by the Company or no fraud by the officers and employees of the company has been noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of any such case by the management.

Section 197 of the Act regarding managerial remuneration is not applicable to the Company by virtue of Notification No. G.S.R
463(E)dated 05 June 2015, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Govt. of India.

As per information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provision of clause 3 (xii)
of the Orderis not applicable to the Company.

As per information and explanations given to us, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with section 177 and
188 of Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Note No 39 to the Standalone Financial Statements as
required by the applicable Indian accounting standards.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully/partly convertible debentures during
the year. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Based upon the audit procedures performed and according to the information and explanations given by the management, the
company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with them as referred to in
Section 192 of Companies Act 2013. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xv) of CARO is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not required to be registered
under section 45 |A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provision of clause 3 (xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

ForS Ghose & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN-302184E/E300007

CARanjan Kumar Paul

Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29.06.2020 M.No0.060084
UDIN : 20060084AAAAAWS5652
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Annexure - B to the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 9(f) of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of MSTC Limited on the
Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1.  We have audited the internal financial controls over Financial Reporting of MSTC Limited as at 31st March, 2020 in conjunction
with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
CompaniesAct, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountant of India (“ICAI”) and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with the ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

4. Acompany's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and
procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
ofthe assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or Fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Qualified Opinion
6. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit, the following weaknesses have been
identified as at 31st March 2020:-
a. The Company falls short of exercising internal control system for customer acceptance, credit evaluation and establishing

credit limits for sales, which could potentially result in the Company recognizing revenue without establishing reasonable
certainty of ultimate collection.

b. In the process of maintaining safe custody of pledged stock of raw materials procured by the company on behalf of its
customers under the Company appointed custodian, it has been observed that there is inadequacy of required internal
control.

However the Company has already introduced a separate Audit for Audit of its Internal Financial Control System and the reportis yet
to be submitted.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the weaknesses described herein above, the Company has maintained, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over
financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2020, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForS Ghose & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN-302184E/E300007

CARanjan Kumar Paul
Place: Kolkata Partner
Date: 29.06.2020 M.No.060084
UDIN : 20060084AAAAAWS5652




Annexure — C to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, based
on the verification of records of the Company and according to information and explanation given to us, we report as
under:

Directions

Auditor’s Reply

Whether the Company has system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with
the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

The matter has adequately been dealt with in our report of
even date. (Para 3 (ii) Key Audit Matter)

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by
a lender to the Company due to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

No, there is no instance of restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver / write off of debts/ loans / interest etc. made
by a lender to the company due to company’s inability to
repay the loan.

Whether funds received / receivable for specific schemes
from Central / State agencies were properly accounted for /
utilised as per its term and conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

No, there is no such case of funds being received/ receivable
during Financial Year 2019-20 for specific schemes from
central/state agencies.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29.06.2020

ForSGhose & CoLLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN-302184E/E300007

CARanjan Kumar Paul

Partner
M.No.060084
UDIN : 20060084AAAAAW5652




COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF
INDIA UNDER SECTION 143(6)(b) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MSTCLIMITEDFOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of financial statements of MSTC Limitedfor the year ended 31 March 2020
in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 (Act)
is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor appointed by the
Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(5) of the Act is responsible for expressing
opinion on these financial statements under section 143 of the Act based on independent audit in
accordance with the standards on auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to
have been done by them vide their Audit Report dated 29 June2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of MSTC Limitedfor the year ended 31March
2020under section 143(6)(a) of the Act. This supplementary audit has been carried out
independently without access to the working papers of the statutory auditorand is limitgd
primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditor and company personnel and a selective examination

of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to statutory auditors’ report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

Place: Kolkata
Date: ) C oy
7 b AUs 0

A
WL
(Suparna M
Director Géneral AuditT®Mines)

Kolkata

MSTC
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MSTC

Standalone Balance Sheet as at 315t March 2020

ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment
) Capital Work in Progress
) Leasehold Land
) Intangible assets

(e) Financial assets
(i) Investments
(@) In Subsidiary
(b) In Joint Venture
Other financial assets
Non-Current tax assets
) Deferred tax assets (net)
) Other non current assets
Total non- current assets
(2) Current assets
(a) Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables
(i) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) - Other Bank Balances
(iv) Other financial assets
(b) Other current assets
Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital
(b)  Other equity
Total equity
(2) Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings
(i) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of
a) Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises
(i) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-current liabilities
Total non- current liabilities
(3) Current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings
(i) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of
a) Micro & Small Enterprises
b) Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises
(iiiy -~ Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

=

——
S

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.

In terms of our report of even date.

In terms of our report of even date
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30000

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner
M. No : 060084

Dated : 29.06.2020
Place : Kolkata

Notes

DN

~No o ww

10
"
12

13
14

20

21

22
23
24

(S. K. Gupta)
CHAIRMAN-CUM-
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN- 08643406

(S K Barnwal)
ADDL GENERAL MANAGER
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

As at 315t Mar 2020

79.23
289.23
71.57

12,334.44
604.56
1,106.94
131.16
20.81
14,197.91
17,836.51

704.00
2,094.31
2,798.31

33.91

2.64
5.70
165.98
63.25
271.48

2,282.24

0.75
5,916.39
6,463.13

25.17
79.04
14,766.72
15,038.20
17,836.51

For MSTC LIMITED

(Amount in ¥ million)
As at 31t Mar 2019

51.68
204.62
72.32
4.60
333.22

158.10

17,200.05
960.27
2,429.95
365.68
20.88
20,976.83
24,749.10

704.00
1,376.83
2,080.83

9.35

2.64
7.45
118.31
80.55
218.30

6,039.62

0.48
9,047.77
7,165.68

9.65

186.77
22,449.97
22,668.27
24,749.10

(Subrata Sarkar)
DIRECTOR FINANCE
DIN- 8290021

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No : F5627
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Standalone Statement of Profit & Loss for the period 315t March 2020
(Amount in ¥ million)
Particulars
Note Forthe year ended For the year ended
31.03.2020 31.03.2019
ASSETS
| Revenue from operations 25 8,307.08 29,270.04
Il Other Income 26 615.00 415.28
Il Total Revenue (I + 1) 8,922.08 29,685.32
IV EXPENSES
(a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 27 5,663.12 25,426.34
(b) Employee benefit expense 28 711.54 598.83
(c) Finance costs 29 274.56 569.37
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2 20.35 12.46
(e) Other expenses 30 957.60 5,770.41
Total Expenses 7,627.17 32,377.41
V  Profit before tax (lll- V) 1,294.91 (2,692.09)
VI Tax Expense 36
(@) Current tax 238.24 338.75
(b) Deferred tax 304.64 213.81
Total tax expense 542.88 552.56
VIl Profit for the year (V- VI) 752.03 (3,244.65)
VIl Other comprehensive income
(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 40 (51.73) 2.00
(b) Income tax on above 17.18 (3.30)
(34.55) (1.30)
IX Total comprehensive income for the year (VII + VIII) 717.48 (3,245.95)
X Earnings per equity share (face value ¥10each): 37
(@) Basic (ing) 10.68 (46.09)
(b) Diluted (in%) 10.68 (46.09)
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.
In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30000
CA Ranjan Kumar Paul (S. K. Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021
DIN- 08643406
Dated : 29.06.2020 (S K Barnwal) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS M. No : F5627
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 315t March 2020
(Amount in ¥ million)
Particulars
Nos. Face Value (%) (X Million)
A. Equity Share Capital
Equity shares of 310 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
Nos Face Value ) Amount (% Million)
Balance as at March 31, 2018 3,52,00,000 10 352.00
Bonus Shares issued in the ratio1:1 3,52,00,000 10 352.00
Balance as at March 31, 2019 7,04,00,000 10 704.00
Balance as at March 31, 2020 7,04,00,00 10 704.00
B. Other Equity
General Reserve Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at March 31, 2018 4,961.60 314.01 5,275.61
Profit for the year - (3,244.65) (3,244.65)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (1.30) (1.30)
Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Earning - - -
Final Dividend FY 17-18 - (260.48) (260.48)
Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend FY 17-18 - (40.35) (40.35)
Issue of Bonus Shares - (352.00) (352.00)
Balance as at March 31, 2019 4,961.60 (3,584.77) 1,376.83
Profit for the year ended 31st March 2020 - 752.03 752.03
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - (34.55) (34.55)
Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Earning - - -
Balance as at March 31, 2020 4,961.60 (2,867.29) 2,094.31
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.
In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30000
CA Ranjan Kumar Paul (S. K. Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021
DIN- 08643406
Dated : 29.06.2020 (s K Barnwal) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS M. No : F5627
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Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the Year ended 315t March 2020

(Amount in ¥ million)

Particulars
For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
31st Mar 2020 31st Mar 2019
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit Before Tax for the year 1,294.91 (2,692.09)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation /Amortisation Expenses 21.10 13.21
Dividend Income (60.70) (64.20)
Interest Income (75.53) (346.06)
Finance Cost 274.56 569.37
Loss on sale of Property Plant and Equipments 1.06 0.36
Provision no Longer Required Written Back (474.94) -
Bad Debt Witten Off 373.99 1,100.81
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Advances 339.91 4,320.02
Operating profit before Working Capital changes 1,694.36 2,901.42
Adjustments for changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Movement in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Other Receivables 4,864.88 15,823.38
(Increase)/decrease in Other Assets 32.89 (0.79)
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables & Others Financial Liabilities (3,835.27) (17,728.53)
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities (125.03) 35.03
Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions 11.46 (36.44)
Cash generated from Operations 2,643.29 994.07
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund) (310.05) (394.68)
Net cash from Operating Activities 2,333.24 599.39
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds of Property Plant and Equipment (Net) (140.36) (169.03)
Investment In Fixed Deposits 1,323.01 870.98
Investment in Joint Venture - (80.00)
Interest received 75.20 355.52
Dividend Income 60.70 64.20
Net cash (used) in Investing Activities 1,318.55 1,041.67
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds/(Repayment) of Short Term Borrowings (2,031.84) (1,230.05)
Interest Paid (274.69) (569.94)
Dividend Paid - (260.48)
Tax on Dividends - (40.35)
Net cash used in Financing Activities (2,306.53) (2,100.82)
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents(A+B+C) 1,345.26 (459.76)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Period (741.94) (282.18)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Period 603.32 (741.94)
Note :
(1) Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
(2) Statement Showing Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Period 604.56 960.27
Less : Over Draft Balances at the end of the Period (1.24) (1,702.21)
Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Period 603.32 (741.94)

Note : Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Indirect Method as per Indian Accounting Standard~7: Statement of Cash Flows.
The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.

In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30000

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul (S. K. Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021

DIN- 08643406

Dated : 29.06.2020 (s K Barnwal) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS M. No : F5627
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MSTC

Notes to Standalone financial statements for
the year ended 31st March, 2020

1.A General Information

MSTC Limited (the “Company”) is a Miniratna Category-I
Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
on 9th September, 1964. It is domiciled in India, having
registered office at 225 C AJC Bose Road Kolkata 700020 and
limited by shares (CIN:L27320WB1964G01026211).
Pursuant to Initial Public Offer equity shares of MSTC Limited
are listed and traded on both BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. March 29, 2019. The
Company undertakes trading activities, e-commerce and also
disposal of ferrous and non-ferrous scrap, surplus stores,
minerals, agri and forest produces etc. mostly from Public
Sector Undertakings and Govt. Departments. The core activity
of the Company has been divided into two Operational
Divisions, i.e. e-Commerce and Trading. The e-Commerce
division undertakes disposal of Scrap, surplus stores, e-sales
of minerals, agri and forest produces, and e procurement. The
list of Principals includes Ministry of Defence, State
Governments, PSUs like Indian Qil Corporation Ltd., Oil and
Natural Gas Corporation Ltd, Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd,
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. etc. The mode of
disposal includes e-auction, e-tender, e-reverse auction etc.
Besides, MSTC also e-auctions coal from Coal India Ltd,
Singareni Coalfields Ltd etc.Apart from these MSTC also
provides e-procurement solution. The trading division handles
import/export and domestic trade of mainly bulk industrial raw
material. It looks after sourcing, purchase and sales of
industrial raw materials like Heavy Melting Scrap, Low Ash
Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Crude Oil, Naptha, Coking Coal,
Steam Coal etc. for supply to Indian industries. The end
customers are Coal/Steel Industries, Oil sector, State owned
Power Companies etc.

1.BRECENTACCOUNTING DEVELOPEMENTS

Ind As 116 —“Leases” has been made applicable w.e.f. 1st
April, 2019, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and application of the same does not
have any significant impact on the financial result of the
Company.

1.C SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

1.C.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period by Ind ASs. The financial
statements of the Company have been preapared to comply
with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind ASs’), including the
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act2013.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability atthe measurement date.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (%)
which is the Company's functional currency for all its
operations. All financial information presented in Indian
Rupees (%) has been rounded to the nearest Million, unless
otherwise stated.

Current and Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance
sheet based on current/ non-current classification. All assets
and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as
per the Company's normal operating cycle and other criteria
set outin the schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind
AS 1-—"‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of accounts in accordance with Ind ASs
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
accounts and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the
accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the
Company’s accounting policies arise in relation to property,
plant and equipment, current asset provisions, deferred tax,
retirement benefits. The detailed accounting policies,
including underlying judgments and methods of estimations
for each of these items are discussed below. All of these key
factors are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
estimates are revised and any future periods affected.

1.C.2 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION

In preparing the financial statements of the Company,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of




the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Exchange
differences arising on retranslation on non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in statement of profit and loss
for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the
customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange
gain/loss are not recognised in the books of the Company.

1.C.3(a) PROPERTY, PLANTAND EQUIPMENT

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the company and its cost can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the
costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance
costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the
Statement of Profitand Loss as incurred. When a replacement
occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Included in property, plant and equipment are loose plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related
to their expected useful lives and estimated scrap value and
also spares, against which impairment provisions are made
where necessary to cover slow moving and obsolete items.

Land has an indefinite ecomomic life. The Company can enjoy
the part of the life restricted to years of lease.The lease rent
paid in advance is being amortised over the period of lease.

1.C.3 (b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line
basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment to their
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residual value. These charges are commenced from the date
the assets are available for their intended use and are spread
over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives of
assets and residual values are reviewed regularly and, when
necessary, revised. No further charge is provided in respect of
assets that are fully written down but are still in use.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant
and equipment, net of their residual values, over their useful
life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.
The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property,
plantand equipmentare:

Type of Asset Estimated Useful life (Years)
Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furnitures and Fixtures 10
Partition and Cubicles 10
Building 60
Air Conditioners 10
Computers 3
Servers 6

Assets in the course of construction are included under capital
work in progress and are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Such capital work-in-progress, on
completion, is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plantand equipment.

1.C.3(c) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
are having zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e.
zero residual value.

Softwares acquired separately are capitalised as
software.These are amortized over a period of their license. In
case of perpetual licences the cost is amortized over a period
of five years.

1.C.4Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
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that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication, the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amountis the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. Animpairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. Areversal of animpairment loss
is recognised in profitand loss immediately.

1.C.5Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint venture

Investment in subsidiaries and Joint venture are carried at
cost. Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying
amount of the investment is assessed and written down
immediately to its recoverable amount. On disposal of
investments in subsidiaries and joint venture, the difference
between net disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are
recognised in Statement of Profitand Loss.

1.C.6 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

a) Financial assets
I Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised

cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Il Financial assets measured at fair value through
Other comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially
at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, the interest income, losses and reversals, and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

lll.  Financial assets measured at fair value through
profitand loss

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
through profitand loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial
instruments whose credit risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected creditlosses is recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and
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rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained
interest in the assets and an associated liability for amounts it
may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and
also recognizes a collateralised borrowing of the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its
liabilities. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are being
accounted as a deduction from equity.

Financial Liabilities

The Company’s financial liabilities include Trade and other
payables and borrowings including bank overdrafts are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Company derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

1.C.7 CASHAND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at
bank, and bank overdraft and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

1.C.8 INVENTORIES

Stock in trade including material-in-transit is valued at cost or
estimated netrealisable value whicheveris less.

1.C.9 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation
towards transfer of goods and services to a customer is
satisfied.

SALES

i) High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of
issuance of high sea sale letter. As regards value, sales
are booked either at contracted forward exchange rates,
if booked, or provisionally on the basis of FEDAI spot
exchange rates prevailing on the last date of the
financial year, where forward cover was not taken,
which includes C&F / CIF price, usuance interest
followed by final adjustment on due date of payment in
subsequentfinancial year.

ii) In case of indigenous material, sales are accounted for
on the basis of date of transport documents and as
regards value, based on the value of invoices. In case of
sale on door delivery basis sales are booked on sales
invoice dates.

i)  Incase of export, sales are accounted for on the basis of
date of shipment. As  regards value, sales are booked
either at contracted forward exchange rates, if booked,
or at the FEDAI rate on the date of shipment as per
custom clearance document, followed by final
adjustment on actual realisation of export proceeds.

SERVICE CHARGES

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting
sales/procurement on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions,
tenders, or any other means, are accounted for as service
charges.

(a) Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on:

i. Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.

ii. Onsatisfactory completion of e-sales.

In respect of (i) & (ii), service charges are accounted
for on bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on
the basis of actual delivery by the Principals, in case
service charges are payable on percentage basis.

ii. On occurrence of event, in case of service contract on
eventbasis.

iv. In case of E -Procurement Service charges are
booked, where service charges are collectable from
the Principal, on completion of event.
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(b) E Procurement transaction fees collected from bidders
are accounted on successful conduct of event.

(c) Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on the
basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt / lorry receipt
as the case may be. For imported materials, value is
ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI spot
rate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year. Final
adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis of
actual payment at contracted rate.

E-AUCTION REGISTRATION

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is
considered as income of the current year if the validity of
registration is upto one year. In case of life long registration,
the amount so collected is distributed in five years equally.

OTHERINCOME

Revenue is recognised on accrual basis except in the
following items which are accounted on actual realization
since realisibility of such items is uncertain in accordance with
the provisions of the accounting standards:

i) Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

i) Interest on overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain.

iii) Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

iv) Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest
thereon.

v) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive
paymentis established

PURCHASES

(i) Imported materials are accounted for as purchase on the
basis of date of bill of lading. As regards value, purchase
are booked on the basis of actual remittance and where
such remittance are outstanding at the close of the year,
on the basis of contracted forward exchange rates, if
booked, or FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the
last date of the financial year, in case forward cover is not
taken, as the case may be. Purchase value includes
material value freight, insurance etc. and usuance interest
followed by final adjustments on actual payment in
subsequent financial year.

(ii) Incase of indigenous materials, purchases are booked on
the basis of transport documents and as regards value,
based on the value of invoices.

1.C.10 BORROWING COST

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of

those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit and loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

1.C.11  EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
(@) Shortterm benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered by the employees are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Leaveencashment

The liabilities for earned leave and commuted leave are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 month after the end of
the period in which the employees render related service.
They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made inrespect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end
of the reporting period that have terms of approximating to the
terms of related obligations. Remeasurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit and loss.The facility is
funded through LIC of India.

(c) Post-employmentobligation
Defined Contribution Plan -i.Provident Fund

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognised by
Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund is
charged to revenue. Pensioner’s Benefits are secured through
Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995.

Defined Contribution Plan -ii.Pension

Pension plan is administered through an independent trust
and contribution to this Fund is charged to revenue.The fund is
being managed through Life Insurance Corporation of India
The contribution amount is governed by Ministry of Steel
directives in terms of DPE guidelines.

Defined Benefit Plan - i. Service Gratuity

The liabilities or assets recognised in the Balance Sheet in
respect of defined gratuity plan is the present value of the
defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefits
obligations are calculated annually by actuaries using
projected unit credit method. The present value of defined
benefits obligations is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that are




terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discounted
rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profitand loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
resulting from amendments and curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. The Gratuity
obligation is funded through Group Gratuity Life Assurance
Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India and is
administered through a separate irrevocable trust created by
the Company for this purpose.

Defined Benefit Plan - ii. Post Retirement medical benefit

The Company provides post retirement healthcare benefits to
their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to the
retirement age and the completion of minimum service period.
The expected cost of these benefits is accrued over the period
of employment using the same accounting methodology as
used for defined benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The
fund is administered through a separate trust created for this
purpose.

1.C.12 TAXATION
Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.
(i) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax for the year as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Company’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the
Company operates by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities are the amount of income taxes
payable in future periods in respect of taxable temporary
differences.Deferred tax assets are the amount of income tax
recoverable in in future in respect of deductible temporary
differences, carry forward of unused tax losses and carry
forward of unused tax credits. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
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profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Company will pay normal income tax during the
specified period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance
Sheet date and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is
written down to the extent there is no longer a convincing
evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal
income tax during the specified period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatiitis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

1.C.13 PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
CONTINGENT ASSETS

Provisions are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits which can be
reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When appropriate,
provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an
entity’s actions whereby an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities; and as a result, the entity has
created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
thatit will discharge those responsibilities.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current estimate of management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

1.C.14 SEGMENT REPORTING

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information about operating
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segments and related disclosures. The Company undertakes
trading activities, and also acts as e-commerce service
provider. Based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in
Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates Company’s performance and allocates resources
on an analysis of various performance indicators by operating
segments. In terms of above the Company has identified
Marketing and e-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable
Business Segments. Revenue and identifiable operating
expenses in relation to segments are categorised based on
items that are individually identifiable to that segment. Rest of
the items of revenue and expenses, which cannot be
specifically allocated under specific segments are separately
disclosed as unallocated.

1.C.15 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES,
ASSUMPTIONS AND JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results
of operations during the reporting period end. Although these
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(i) Useful economic lives and impairment of other assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
(PPE) and intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and
other economic factors (such as known technological
advances).

The Company reviews the useful life of PPE and intangibles at
the end of each reporting date and any changes could affect
the depreciation rates prospectively.

The Company also reviews its property, plant and equipment
for possible impairment if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property,
plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Company's
business plans and changes in regulatory environment are
taken into consideration.

(i) Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may
arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the
Company. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be
probable and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute
can be made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings, the Company does not
expect them to have a materially adverse impact on the
Company’s financial position or profitability.

(iii) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Company's liability towards defined
benefit obligation to employees is made through independent
actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other
comprehensive income. Such valuation depend on
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand factors in the employment market.

(iv) Fair Value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Company's assets and liabilities are measured at
fair value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Company engages third party
valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

(v) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward
tax losses and unused tax credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability of the Company's
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

1.C.16 PROVISION OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Company has a provision policy in place which provides
for quarterly review and provision as per the policy.
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2. Property, Plantand Equipment

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars Freehold Office | Office Air |Furnitureand |Office Partition EDP | Vehicles | TotalTangible
Buildings | Equipment |Conditioner fixtures & Cubicles |Equipments Assets

Gross Block as at March 31, 2018 10.50 1.86 4.57 13.42 9.39 24.23 2.09 66.06
Additions 0.77 2.52 0.19 047 0.00 24.49 0.00 28.44
Disposals 0.00 0.35 0.52 0.29 0.00 10.06 0.00 11.22
Gross Block as at March 31, 2019 11.27 4.03 4.24 13.60 9.39 38.66 2.09 83.28
Additions 0.00 0.92 0.69 0.31 0.74 37.98 0.00 40.64
Disposals 0.00 1.22 0.87 0.23 2.56 20.98 0.00 25.86
Gross Block as at Mar 31, 2020 11.27 3.73 4.06 13.68 7.57 55.66 2.09 98.06
Depreciation as at March 31,2018 0.79 0.93 2.52 9.02 5.74 15.54 0.56 35.10
Charge for the year 0.27 0.53 0.45 0.78 0.33 4.40 0.25 7.01
Disposals 0.00 0.35 0.48 0.29 0.00 9.39 0.00 10.51
Depreciation as at March 31,2019 1.06 1.1 2.49 9.51 6.07 10.55 0.81 31.60
Charge for the year 0.29 0.65 0.28 0.47 0.38 9.43 0.25 11.75
Disposals 0.00 1.16 0.79 0.22 243 19.92 0.00 2452
Depreciation as at Mar 31, 2020 1.35 0.60 1.98 9.76 4.02 0.06 1.06 18.83
Netbook value as at March 31,2019 10.21 2.92 1.75 4.09 3.32 28.11 1.28 51.68
Netbook value as at Mar 31,2020 9.92 313 2.08 3.92 3.55 55.60 1.03 79.23
Particulars Capital Work in Leasehold Land Software Licence Trade Mark Total Intangible
Progress Assests

Gross Block as at March 31, 2018 64.80 73.07 14.22 0.00 14.22
Additions 139.82 0.00 1.09 0.04 113
Disposals* 0.00 0.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Block as at March 31, 2019 204.62 72.32 15.31 0.04 15.35
Additions 84.61 0.00 15.39 0.00 15.39
Disposals* 0.00 0.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Block as at Mar 31, 2020 289.23 71.57 30.70 0.04 30.74
Depreciation as at March 31, 2018 0.00 0.00 5.30 0.00 5.30
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00 544 0.01 5.45
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Depreciation as at March 31, 2019 0.00 0.00 10.74 0.01 10.75
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00 8.58 0.02 8.60
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Depreciation as at Mar 31, 2020 0.00 0.00 19.32 0.03 19.35
Net book value as at March 31, 2019 204.62 72.32 4.57 0.03 4.60
Net book value as at Mar 31, 2020 289.23 71.57 11.38 0.01 11.39

* Disposal of Leasehold land represents amortisation of Prepaid Lease Payment.

All Freehold buildings are under attachment by the order of DRT , Mumbai.
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Amountin ¥ million

Particulars

No. of Shares

Amount in ¥ Millions

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

31st March 2020 |31st March 2019

(a) Investement in Wholly Owned Subsidiary Company

Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited (Face Value %10/- each) 3,20,00,000 | 3,20,00,000 158.10 | 158.10
(b) Investement in 50:50 Joint Venture Company
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (Face Value ¥ 10/- each) 1,86,00,000 1,86,00,000 186.00 186.00

Notes:

1) During F.Y 2019-20 MSTC Limited have invested Nil (Previous Year ¥ 80 Million) towards equity contribution in Mahindra

MSTC Recycling Private Limited.

4 . Other Financial Assets (Non Current)

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Security deposits 8.11 8.24
(b) Loans to employees 41.82 4511
(c) Interest accrued on loans to employees 0.14 0.15
(d) Balance with scheduled banks in deposit accounts

Term Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 0.05 0.03

Total 50.12 53.53

5.Non-Current Tax Assets
Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Advance payment of Taxes 6,474.68 6,164.63

Less: Provision for Taxation 5,953.11 5,714.87

Total 521.57 449.76
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6 . Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Through Profit or Loss
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets:
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities
EFBS Scheme (0.64) (0.69)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities (0.64) (0.69)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property,
Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets 0.00 1.22
Allowances for doubtful debts / advances 1754.15 1857.31
Disallowances under Section 40(a)(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 150.38 137.92
Unabsorbed Business loss 0.00 179.12
MAT credit Entitlement 304.16 337.82
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 2,208.69 2,513.39
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 2,208.05 2,512.70
(b) Through Other Comprehensive Income
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 37.00 19.80
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 37.00 19.80
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 2,245.05 2,532.50
7 .Other Assets (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Advance with public bodies
Sales Tax 0.69 29.56
Other government authorities
(b) Advance for Building Construction 23.66 27.88
(c) Other Advances
(i) Prepaid expenses 1.65 1.25
(i) Others 0.34 0.47
Total 26.34 59.16
8. Trade Receivables (Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Trade receivables
(a) Secured considered good 11,406.06 16,492.58
(b) Unsecured, considered good 928.38 707.47
(c) Credit Impaired 9,500.04 9,635.07
Less: Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables 9,500.04 9,635.07
Total 12,334.44 17,200.05
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Notes:
8.1 Trade Receivables

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, Considered good 3696.75 3572.73
Unsecured, Considered good 530.99 261.71
Credit Impaired 9500.04 9635.07
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 9500.04 9635.07
4,227.74 3,834.44
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, Considered good 7709.31 12919.85
Unsecured, Considered good 397.39 445.76
8,106.70 13,365.61
Total 12,334.44 17,200.05
"8.2: Trade Receivables include an amount of ¥ 1478.20million ( prev year 1478.20 million) on account of exports of Gold

Jewelleries undertaken by the Company during the year 2008-09. The said Receivables were purchased by Standard
Chartered Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement . In terms of the said Agreement, SCB would purchase
the bills raised by MSTC on the foreign buyers on account of the exports made to such buyers and pay off MSTC 95% of
the bill amount and the foreign buyers would be making payments against the bills directly to SCB on the respective due
dates. The said export transactions for the Company were also insured by SCB along with MSTC as co-insured, with ICICI
Lombard General Insurance Company. On non-receipt of the proceeds of the bills on the due dates from the foreign
buyers, SCB claimed the amounts from the Insurance Company, who, however, wrongfully repudiated the claim of SCB.
On such repudiation, SCB unilaterally converted the receivables purchased by it from MSTC into debts of MSTC and filed
the case being Original Application in the Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai. MSTC had been and is contesting the claims
of SCB before various forums including before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court , the DRT and DRAT, Mumbai including
the Misc. Appeal filed by MSTC against an interim Order dated 16th September 2017 passed by the DRT, Mumbai against
MSTC. SCB had filed a Summary Suit against ICICI Lombard for the recovery of the unrealised debts under the
insurance policy , before the Bombay High Court which is pending.Pending final disposal of such cases including the
Appeal Misc. Appeal filed by MSTC before the DRAT, Mumbai challenging the validity of the Order dated 16th
September 2017 passed by the DRT, Mumbai, the disputed claim of SCB against MSTC has been shown as Unsecured
Borrowings (vide note no 20 )and Trade Receivables, without adjustments, in the books of the Company for accounting
and disclosure purposes butare not acknowledged as debts .

8.3: Trade receivables are generally secured either by way of stocks pledged by the customers with the Company or Bank
Guarantees or by liability where there is back to back arrangement with the associate suppliers. In case there is a
significant depletion in realizable value of such pledged stock against the book value of the corresponding receivables,
the differential amount has been shown under ‘Unsecured’.

8.4(a): Trade Receivable includes ¥ 988.30 million (Previous year ¥ 1096.47 million) due from M/s Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for
procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of present outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years.
During the last financial year an amount of¥108.19 million (net) has been realized from the party. There exists a provision
of¥ 315.70 million against the receivables. In terms of provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for this party.

8.4(b): Trade Receivable includes ¥ 1037 million (Previous year ¥1037 million) due from M/s Topworth Steels & Power Pvt. Ltd.
(“the Customer”, hereinafter ) for procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of the present outstanding is overdue
for a period of more than three years. The Provisional Liquidator appointed by the Hon’ble Bombay High Court in the
Winding Up petition filed by MSTC against the Customer, had taken over the control of the affairs of the Customer in
terms of the earlier orders of the High Court. On an application filed by the Director/promoter of the Customer/Company in
the said Winding Up petition filed by MSTC, the High Court allowed the application of the Director/promoter, transferring,
subject to specified conditions, the pending Winding Up petition filed by MSTC to the NCLT, Mumbai where the State
Bank of India, a financial creditor of the Customer has filed an application under Section 7 of IB Code, 2016 against the
Customer for initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution process against it . Accordingly, MSTC has filed its claim before
the NCLT, Mumbai on 22/11/2019. The application of SBI was allowed by the NCLT, Mumbai by its Order dated




o

29/01/2020, ordering the start of moratorium, appointment of the Interim Resolution Professional(IRP). IRP so appointed
had issued public notice inviting claims from the creditors against the Customer and MSTC had duly re-submitted its
Proof of Claim with the IRP. Placed in the position as aforestated , the chances of recovery being doubtful, an amount of
917 million has so far been provided in the books due to uncertainties in realization of the Trade Receivables.In terms of
provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for this party.

8.4(c): Trade Receivable includes ¥ 378 Million (Previous year ¥ 378 Million) due from M/s Crest Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. for
procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of present outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years.
The party has been referred to NCLT under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code. RP has been appointed to take over the
management control. MSTC also filed its claim before RP. There exists a provision of ¥ 299 Million against the
receivables. In terms of provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for this party.

8.5: Trade Receivables include I 6537.58 Million ( Previous Year ¥ 9074.44 Million), against business done in facilitator
mode(net of provision) .

8.6: Trade Receivables include (net of provision) ¥ 695.00 Million (Previous Year ¥ 613.09 Million ),against E-Commerce
business (net of provision).

9.Cashand Cash Equivalents
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Cash and Cash Equivalents
(a) Balances with banks
Balance with scheduled banks

In Current Account 604.56 960.27
Total 604.56 960.27
10 . Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalents
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Earmarked Balances with banks
() In Unclaimed dividend account 8.03 10.48
(i) Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1,098.91 2,419.47
Total 1,106.94 2,429.95

10.1  The above deposits include I 424.65 Million ( Previous Year X 2288.93 Million ) pledged with banks against over draft

facility.Margin against guarantee ¥ 106.24 Million ( Previous Year ¥ 105.93 Million ).

11. Other financial assets (Current)

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Security deposits 115.81 354.38
(b) Other loans and advances
(i) Loans to employees 5.32 5.57
(i) Recoverable Advances to employees 0.98 2.07
(iii) Receivable from third party 6.49 0.00
(iv) Other Advances 1.81 3.21
(c) Interest accrued on
(i) Term deposits 0.72 0.39
(i) Loans to employees 0.03 0.06
Total 131.16 365.68
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R

MSTC

ﬂ LIMITED
METC 5k Gt -2 il il

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Advance with public bodies
GST, Service Tax & Sales Tax 9.24 9.79
(b) Other Advances
(i) Advances to employees 11.08 9.71
(i) Prepaid expenses 043 1.32
(iiiy Others 0.06 0.06
Total 20.81 20.88
13. Share Capital
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Authorised:
15,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up :
704,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 704.00 704.00
704.00 704.00
13(a)(i) Statement of Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Number Face Value Amount Number | Face Value Amount
) (X Million) ) (% Millions)
Opening Balance 7,04,00,000 10 704.00 3,52,00,000 10 352.00
Add:
Issue of Bonus Shares 3,52,00,000 10 352.00
Closing Balance 7,04,00,000 10 704.00 7,04,00,000 10 704.00

13(a)(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.
The Company has only one class of ordinary shares ('Equity Shares') having a par value of 10 each. Each holder of ordinary
shares ('Equity Shareholders') is entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if any,

in the event of winding up.

13(a)(iii) : 88,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2016-17 in the ratio of 1:1

13(a)(iv) : 1,76,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2017-18 in the ratio of 1:1
13(a)(v) : 3,52,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2018-19 in the ratio of 1:1
13(a)(vi) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of the company.

Name of the Shareholder 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. of shares held % of holding | No. of shares held % of holding
President of India 45580800 64.75% 45580800 64.75%
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 6716279 9.54% 7026976 9.98%

The Government of India has divested its 25.10 % stake in MSTC Ltd through IPO during March 2019. Equity shares of MSTC
Limited are listed and traded on both BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. March 29, 2019. Change in

shareholding pattern post IPO is as following:

Shareholders Pre IPO% Post IPO%
Government of India 89.85% 64.75%
Others 10.15% 35.25%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
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14 . Other Equity

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) General Reserve
Opening balance 4,961.60 4,961.60
Closing Balance 4,961.60 4,961.60
(2) Retained Earnings
Opening balance (3,584.77) 314.01
Add: Profit for the year 752.03 (3,244.65)
Other Comprehensive income for the year (34.55) (1.30)
Less: Final Dividend: FY 17-18 (260.48)
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 17-18 (on final dividend) (40.35)
Less: Issue of Bonus Shares (352.00)
Closing Balance (2,867.29) (3,584.77)
Total Other Equity(1+2) 2,094.31 1,376.83
15. Trade payables (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Creditors for supplies and services
- Dues to micro and small enterprises - -
- Others 2.64 2.64
Total 2.64 2.64

As at March 31, 2020 there is no outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. As at March 31,

outstanding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.

16 . Other financial liabilities (Non Current)

2019 there were no

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Liability under EFBS Scheme 5.70 7.45
Total 5.70 7.45
17 . Provision (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Provision for Post Retirement Medical Scheme 119.79 53.84
(b) Provision for Leave Encashment 29.48 41.30
(c) Provision for Gratuity 16.71 23.17
Total 165.98 118.31
18 . Other liabilities (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Advance from customers 63.25 64.56
(b) Others - 15.99
Total 63.25 80.55
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Amountin ¥ million

aw

19 - Borrowings (Non Current)

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Secured Borrowings

House Building Loan from SBI 33.91 9.35

Total 33.91 9.35

The amount represents the loan obtained from State Bank of India for the construction of Office Building at Newtown, Rajarhat kolkata. Out of the total
sanctioned amount of ¥ 300 Million, ¥ 60.76 Million has been disbursed on 29/09/2018 and ¥ 73.23 Million has been disbursed on 29/02/2020 which shall be
repaid in Quarterly Installments of ¥ 12.50 Million commencing from 30th June 2019. The amount is secured by way of mortgage of the proposed office building.
The loan is repayable is 24 Quarterly EMI commencing from 30th June 2019 and last installment falling due on 31st March 2025. Interest is computed on daily
balance method and is payable on monthly rest basis from the date of disbursement. Prepayment charges as applicable shall be payable in case of prepayment
of Termloan installments.

20 -Borrowings (Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

A. Secured Borrowings
(@) Repayable on Demand

From Banks

(i) Working Capital Demand Loans# 794.11 2,851.20

(i) Overdraft against lien on FDR* 1.24 1,702.21
(b) House Building Loan from Bank (Refer Note No. 19) 50.69 50.00

Total Secured Borrowings 846.04 4,603.42

B. Unsecured Borrowings
Repayable on Demand

From Banks 1,436.20 1,436.20
Total Unsecured Borrowings 1,436.20 1,436.20
Total(A+B) 2,282.24 6,039.62

a) LoanfromIndian Overseas Bank (I0B) amounting to< 13.8 Million : (lying since 19.9.2011) This amount represents legal fees paid by the bank in defending
their claims to which the Company has lodged its protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta against 10B for ¥ 365.6
Million (whichincludes X 279.8 Million towards debit of LC value & ¥ 85.8 Million as debit towards legal expenses).

b) The above amount represents ¥ 1436.20 million (Previous year ¥ 1436.20 million) towards payment made by Standard Chartered Bank (SCB), after
purchase of export bills of MSTC raised on foreign buyers against export of Gold Jewelleries to the buyers during 2008-09, under a Receivable Purchase
Agreement. Under the said Agreement, SCB paid 95% of the value of export bills to MSTC and the foreign buyers on whom the bills were raised by MSTC
would be paying against the bills directly to SCB on respective due dates mentioned in the bills. Payment failures, if any from the foreign buyers against the
bills raised by MSTC was covered by SCB through an insurance Policy taken from ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company with MSTC as co-insured.
On non receipt of the proceeds from the foreign buyers against the bills, SCB submitted claims with the Insurance Company, who, however, wrongfully
repudiated the claim of SCB. Thereafter, SCB converted the receivables purchased from MSTC under the Receivables Purchase Agreement into loans /
debts as if owing by MSTC, claimed the amount from MSTC and filed a case, being the Original Application in the Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai(DRT) in
the year 2012, which MSTC has denied and disputed. The validity of the claim of SCB in such proceedings including against an Interim Order passed by the
DRT, Mumbai on 16th September, 2017 have been challenged by MSTC by filing a Misc. Appeal before the Debt Recovery Appellate Tribunal, Mumbai,
which are currently pending. Other proceedings challenging the claim of SCB are also pending before various forums including the Hon'ble High Court,
Bombay and in the Civil Court at Alipore, Kolkata initiated by MSTC both against SCB and the Insurance Company. Subsequently, SCB also filed a
Summary Suitin late 2012 in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court against ICICI Lombard claiming the same amount under the Policy from ICICI Lombard on
account of the repudiation of the claim of SCB by ICICI Lombard. The claim of SCB is contingent upon the outcome of the legal cases. Pending final
disposal of all such court cases where the matters are currently pending, MSTC has disclosed the amount simultaneously as Unsecured Borrowings and
as Trade Receivables (vide Note No. - 8.2) without adjustments. For accounting and disclosure purposes but are not acknowledged as debts.
Appropriate disclosure has been made as contingent liabilities for the interest claimed by SCB on the above mentioned amount of claim as per INDAS-37."

#  Securedagainst CurrentAssets.
*  Securedbylienon FDRforF.Y.2019-20is ¥ 424.65 Million ( Previous Year¥ 2288.93 Million).
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21 .Trade payables (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Creditors for supplies and services
- Dues to micro and small enterprises 0.75 0.48
- Others # 5,805.54 8,956.14
- Accrued wages and salaries* 110.85 91.63
Total trade payables 5,917.14 9,048.25

*Includes ¥28.06 Millionin FY 2019-20 (Previous Year ¥ 25.36 Million) towards provision for pension benefit of employees,and ¥ 47.36 Million in FY 2019-20

(Previous YearZ 47.27 Million ) towards wage revision of the employees due from 01.01.2017.
# Trade Payable includes 484.32 Million (Previous Year< 996.79 Million ) backed by Letter of credit.

As at March 31, 2020 there is no interest outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. As at March 31, 2019 there were no interest outstanding dues to

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises.

22 . Other Financial Liabilities (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Interest payable
(i) Interest accrued and due on borrowings - 0.13
(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 788.90 788.90
(b)  Unclaimed dividends 8.03 10.48
(c) Creditors for other liabilities
(i) Security deposits/EMD 4,537.99 3,554.07
(i) Deposits received from customers 1,109.14 2,788.70
(iii) Deposit under EFBS 8.27 12.76
(iv) Payable under EFBS Deposit schemes 1.89 2.67
(v) Others 8.91 7.97
Total 6,463.13 7,165.68
23. Provision (Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Provision for Post Retirement Medical Scheme - 9.65
Provision for Provident Fund 2517 -
Total 2517 9.65

* This represents the provision for ¥ 25.17 Million (Previous Year - Nil ) towards the contribution for deficit in income of PF Trust for the FY 2019-20 (Refer

Note No. -40)

24 . Other Liabilities (Current)

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Statutory Dues
(i) Service Tax & GST payable 29.50 97.31
(ii) Tax deducted and collected at source 9.73 51.89
(b) Advance from customers 39.81 37.58
Total 79.04 186.77




25.Revenue from operations
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Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Sale of Goods 5,703.60 25,683.00

(b) Service Charges 1,903.75 2,645.19

(c) Other Operating Revenues 699.73 941.85
Total 8,307.08 29,270.04

(@) During the year, anamount 0fI48.12 Million ( Previous Year¥ 55.54 Million) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total collection of current
year, an amount of ¥ 38.50 Million ( Previous Year I44.42 Million ) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in subsequent four years, since related
registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on 31.03.2020 is ¥ 103.07 Million ( Previous Year ¥102.14 Million).
Balance amount for which registration is valid upto one year is accounted for as income during the current period.

(b) Other Operating Revenues also include Interest from customers ¥ 586.73 Millionin currentyear ( Previous YearZ 851.17 Million).

(c) Taxdeducted atsource on Service Charge and Interestincome amounts to¥126.67 Millionin currentyear (Previous Year ¥ 175.11 Million).

26 .Otherincome

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Interestincome
(1) Intereston FDR 75.53 346.06
(2) Interest on Employee Advances 3.23 3.34
(b) Dividend Income
From investment in subsidiaries 60.70 64.20
(c) Provision no longer required written back 474.94 0.00
(e) Miscellaneous income 0.60 1.68
Total 615.00 415.28

Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits amounted to ¥ 7.54 Million ( Previous Year ¥34.57 Million).

27 .Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 5,663.12 25,426.34
Total 5,663.12 25,426.34
28 . Employee Benefit Expense
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Salaries and Wages 615.50 510.27
(b) Contribution to Provident and other funds 54.27 48.95
(c) Staff welfare expenses 41.77 39.61
Total 711.54 598.83
29 .Finance costs
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Interest expense
(i) Interest on Short term borrowings from Banks 217.72 112.63
(i) Interest Paid to Customers 56.70 456.03
(iii) Interest on account of EFBS Deposits 0.14 0.71
Total 274.56 569.37
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30.Other expenses

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Repairs and Maintainance 43.87 28.80
(b) EDP Expenses 14.72 12.87
(c) Insurance charges 0.38 342
(d) Rent 35.02 35.88
(e) Rates and taxes 7.08 7.57
() Bank Charges 7.89 72.27
(9) Travelling Expenses 24.36 34.71
(h) Foreign Travelling Expenses - 3.78
(i) Car Hire Charges 12.70 12.41
() Meeting and Conference 5.43 12.52
(k) Training 5.26 2.38
(I) Directors' Sitting Fees 1.25 0.99
(m) Statutory Auditor's Remuneration
(i) Audit Fees 0.90 0.88
(i) Tax Audit Fees 0.10 0.10
(iii) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 0.41 0.37
(n) Stock Yard Expenses 9.80 14.51
(0) Telex, Postage and Telegram 4.09 5.20
(p) Electricity 11.47 11.42
(q) Printing and Stationery 3.80 3.78
() Entertainment 2.02 2.70
(s) Telephone Charges 3.14 3.24
(t) Advertisement 5.19 23.28
(u) Legal Expenses 18.47 9.41
(v) Consultancy Charges 5.69 8.40
(w) Internal Audit fees 0.28 0.20
(x) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 0.63 0.48
(y) Staff Recruitment Expenses 0.71 3.76
(z) Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 0.24 0.25
(aa) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No- 41) 5.40 20.00
(ab) Auction Tender Expenses 9.99 3.38
(ac) Bad Debts Written off 373.99 1,100.81
(ad) Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Advances * 339.91 4,320.02
(ae) Miscellaneous Expenses 2.66 9.87
(af) Plot Rent 0.75 0.75
Total 957.60 5,770.41
*Notes

1) The Company has formulated Provisioning policy on Trade Receivables which has been implemented from the third quarter accounts ending
31stDecember 2019. Party wise provisions made under the Provisioning policy on Trade Receivables for the F.Y. 2019-20 are as under : (% Million)

Party Balance as on 31.03.2020 Balance as on 31.03.2019 | Cumulative Provision under Policy
Balasore Alloys Ltd. 166.13 2434 19.71

Maa Mahamaya Industries Ltd. 104.10 163.77 11.55

Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd. 432.37 556.60 308.65

2)  Trade Receivable includes ¥ 432.37 Million (Previous year ¥ 556.60 Million) due from M/s Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd. for procuring and supply of materials.
During the year during physical verification of pledged stock huge shortages were noticed. Necessary steps have been taken against the same. In
terms of provisioning policy ¥ 308.65 Million has been provided for this shortages in pledged stock against this receivable. The company has been
referred to NCLT by a petition filed by one of its creditors namely SBI under section 7 of IBC. Accordingly the management of the affairs of the Corporate
Debtor has been taken over by IRP. Oninvitation from IRP, MSTC has filed its claim.
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Note 31 : Statement of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock for the year ended 31st March 2020
(Qty ‘000 MT/MTR) Amountin ¥ million

Description of materia Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value
Coke / Coal 2019-20 - - 548.92mt | 2,398.94 548.92 mt 2,417.77 - -
2018-19 - - 1328.47 mt| 19,126.43 132847 mt | 19,343.70 - -
Pipes & Tubes 2019-20 - - 4413 mtr | 3,261.69 44.13 mtr 3,283.34 - -
2018-19 - - 331.42mtr | 6,299.91 331.42 mtr 6,339.30 - -
Sub Total 2019-20 - - - 5,660.63 - 5,701.11 - -
2018-19 - - - 25,426.34 - 25,683.00 - -
Add : 2019-20 Final Bill Adjustment - 249 - 249 -
2018-19 - - - - -
Closing 2019-20 5,663.12 - 5,703.60 - -

Note 32 :In addition to Note no. 31, the Company have also purchased material as facilitator as per details below:

(Qty ‘000 MT/MTR) Amountin ¥ million

Description of material Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
Coke / Coal 2019-20 132.33 236.85 4.40
2018-19 1,314.85 11,929.31 158.99
Iron Ore / Pellete 2019-20
2018-19 8,071.48 24,958.36 291.05
Tower 2019-20 397 93.61 0.94
2018-19
Misc Items 2019-20 396.26 642.79 11.05
2018-19 901.95 1,712.02 17.60
TMT Bar 2019-20 2,942.83 2,094.74 30.51
2018-19 257.69 5,845.65 63.03
Chrome Ore 2019-20 17.65 1,430.64 13.19
2018-19 88.43 789.24 7.92
Channel 2019-20 22.19 1,045.13 9.02
2018-19 56.83 2,067.87 16.66
Electrical Equipment/Project Materials 2019-20 364.00 315.85 3.18
2018-19 161.71 3,268.25 47.31
Total 2019-20 3,879.23 5,859.61 72.29
2018-19 10,852.94 50,570.70 602.56
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Note 33 : Segmental Reporting as perIndAS 108:

Interms of INndAS 108 the Company has identified Marketing and E-Commerce as its two Primary Reportable Business Segments.

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars Year Marketing E-Commerce Others (unallocated) Total
Total Revenue 2019-20 6,463.57 2,019.99 438.52 8,922.08
2018-19 27,482.79 2,133.32 69.21 29,685.32
Total expenses 2019-20 6,295.14 24.71 1,307.31 7,627.17
2018-19 31,502.75 16.24 858.42 32,377.41
Result (Profit/Loss(-) before Tax) 2019-20 168.42 1,995.28 (868.79) 1,294.91
2018-19 (4,019.96) 2,117.08 (789.21) (2,692.09)
Tax expenses 2019-20 542.88
2018-19 552.56
Profit/ Loss(-) for the period 2019-20 752.03
2018-19 (3,244.65)

Assets and liabilities used in the Company's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments,as these are used interchangably between the
segments. Hence the Management believes, thatitis currently not practicable to provide segment disclosure related to assets and liabilities.

Information about major customers

The revenues from tranactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity's revenues are given below:-

Amount in ¥ million

Major Customer (Customer having more than 10% revenue) 2019-20 2018-19
Total Revenue 6293.32 25683.00
No. of Customers 2 3
% of Total Revenue 70.54 88.00
Product Segment Marketing Marketing
34 (a) Expenditure incurred in Foreign Currency :
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Import of Goods 201.25 21800.77
Travelling Expenses & other 0.00 0.94
Total 201.25 21801.71
34 (b) Earnings in Foreign Currency :
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
E auction Registration fees 0.00 0.42
Total 0.00 0.42
35. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments
(a) ContingentLiabilities
Amountin ¥ million
SINo. Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
1 Sales Tax & Customs 315.19 346.83
2 Money Suits 1567.84 1468.91
3 Arbitration 3.02 3.02
4 Income Tax 26.57 240.38
5  Service Tax 149.01 158.62
6 Outstanding Bank Guarantees 140.55 135.83
Total 2202.18 2353.59
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SINo. Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
1 Construction of New Office Building at New town Kolkata 160.92 101.47
Total 160.92 101.47
36. TaxExpenses
(I) Income Tax Recognised in Profit or Loss
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Current tax

- For the period 183.34 337.82
- For earlier years 54.90 0.93
238.24 338.75
(2) Deferred tax 304.64 213.81
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 542.88 552.56

() The income tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit (loss) as follows:
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Profit before tax for the period 1,294.91 (2,692.09)
(2) Income tax expense calculated at 34.944 % 452.49 -
(3) Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 14.82 128.09
(4) Effect of income that is exempt from tax 20.66 21.88
(5) Tax for earlier years 54.90 0.93
(6) Carry Forward of Business Loss - 179.12
(7) Reversal of MAT credit - 222.54
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 542.88 552.56

The tax rate used for the year 2019-20 and 2018-19 in the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of 34.944% (30% plus
surcharge @ 12% and education cess @ 4 %) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the Indian tax law.
For Deferred Tax calculation of financial year 2019-20, income tax rate of 34.944% (30% plus surcharge @ 12% and education
cess @4 %).

However the company has a MAT credit of ¥ 304.16 Million ( Previous Year - ¥ 337.82 Million) for which company is entitled to credit
in next assessment years against tax payable on income for those years. The Company feels that it will earn sufficient profit in
coming years. Accordingly deferred tax assets has been recognised for carry forward of MAT credit entittement. However no
Deffered tax asset has been created on the provision for Doubtful Debts of Rs.339.91 Million (Previous Year - Rs. 4140.22 Million) as
aconservative approach.

The company has opted for Vivad Se Vishwas Scheme (VSVS) as per "The Direct Tax Vivad Se Vishwas Act 2020" for AY
2009-10 and AY 2015-16 and deposited ¥ 5.42 Million and ¥ 4.83 Million respectively. Accordingly differential provision has
been made in the books for that years.

The company has not adopted new Income Tax Rate specified under section 115BAA and it continued to apply normal Income
Tax Rate.
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() Disclosure interms of IndAS-8

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2019
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the company reported earlier 745.81
Adjustments for Prior period items:

MAT credit reversed in Tax Expenses (222.54)
MAT credit reversed in Deffered Tax Assets 222.54
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the company reported 745.81
Deferred Tax Assets 2,972.14
Adjustment for MAT credit reversal (222.54)
Net 2,749.60
Non Current Tax Assets 171.29
Adjustment for MAT credit reversal 222.54
Net 393.83

(IV) Movementin Deferred Tax

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2019 Charge/ (credit) 31st March 2020
for the Year
Through Profit or Loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities
Employee Family Benefit Scheme 0.69 (0.05) 0.64
0.69 0.05) 0.64
Deferred Tax Assets
Property, Plant & Equipment and Intangible Assets 1.22 (1.22) -
Provison against other expenses 137.92 12.46 150.38
Allowance for Doubtful Debts & Advances 1,857.31 (103.16) 1,754.15
Unabsorbed business loss 179.12 (179.12) -
MAT Credit Entitlement 337.82 (33.66) 304.16
Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,513.39 (304.69) 2,208.69
Total Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,512.70 (304.64) 2,208.05
Through Other Comprehensive Income
Deferred Tax Assets
Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 19.80 17.20 37.00
Gross Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,532.50 (287.44) 2,245.05
37. Earnings Per Share
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Profit for the year 752.03 (3,244.65)
Profit attributable to Shareholders 752.03 (3,244.65)
Weighted average No. of Shares for Basic EPS 7,04,00,000 7,04,00,000
Nominal value of Ordinary Shares (Z) 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (% Per Share) 10.68 (46.09)
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38. Disclosures on financial instruments

“This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Company and provides additional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments.The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in notes to the standalone financial statements."

(1) Categories of Financial Instruments

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at the year end. The
Fair valueis equivalentto the Carrying value.

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 Measured at
< in Million < in Million

Financial assets

Trade Receivables 12,334.44 17,200.05 Amortised cost

Other Financial Assets 181.28 419.21 Amortised cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents 604.56 960.27 Amortised cost

Other Bank Balances 1,106.94 2,429.95 Amortised cost

Investments 344.10 34410 Amortised cost

Total Financial Assets 14,571.33 21,353.59

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 2,316.15 6,048.97 Amortised cost

Trade Payables 5,919.03 9,050.41 Amortised cost

Other Financial Liabilities 6,468.83 7173.13 Amortised cost

Total Financial Liabilities 14,704.01 22,272.51

(2) Capital Management

The Company manages its capital to ensure thatthe Company is able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

(3) Financial risk management objectives

The Company's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the company . These risks include market
risk (like- currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and exposure
limits is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Company does not enter into or trade of financial instruments,
including derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

(a) MarketRisk

The Company's activities exposes it ,primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates . On a case to
case basis, the Company enters into Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk.

(a) Interestrate risk management

At present company has converted maximum of its loan to MCLR based, hence the rate is firm for a contract period
usually for a year. Further Interest on Overdraft facility is linked with interest of Fixed deposits, which are usually firm for one
year.

(b) Foreign Currency risk management

The foreign currency exposure of the Company is due to import liabilities. Transactions are on back to back basis with
customers . The gain and loss if any is passed on to the customers. Some times forward cover is taken to hedge the
related foreign currency exposure in terms of discussion with the customers.Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are
to be borne by the customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/loss are not recognized in the books of
the Company.
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(b) Creditrisk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in fianacial loss to the Company .
The Company has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties , where appropriate, as a means of mitigating
the risk of financial loss from defaults. The Company only transact with entities that are rated by agencies where available and if not
available , the company uses other publicly available financial information and its own past records to rate its major customers. The
Company's exposure and the credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored and the aggregated value of transactions concluded
is spread amongst approved counterparties. Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by
the Senior management committee.

(c) Liquidity risk management
The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows,and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liablities.

The table below provides details regarding the contractual undiscounted cash obligations of financial liabilities including estimated
interest payments for the period 31st March 2020.

Financial Liabilities 31st March 2020
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
< in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million
Borrowings 2,316.15 2,316.15 2,282.24 33.91 -
Trade payables 5,919.03 5,919.03 5,916.39 - 2.64
Other financial liabilities 6,468.83 6,470.66 6,264.92 154.62 51.12
14,704.01 14,705.84 14,463.55 188.53 53.76
Financial Liabilities 31st March 2019
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
< in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million
Borrowings 6,048.97 6,050.38 6,039.62 10.76 -
Trade payables 9,050.41 9,050.41 9,047.77 2.64 -
Other financial liabilities 7,173.13 7,173.13 7,162.93 7.90 2.30
22,272.51 22,273.92 22,250.32 21.30 2.30

(d) Fairvalue Measurement
None of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.
39. Related Party Disclosure
(i) Name ofthe related parties and description of relationship:
1) Subsidiary Company
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
2) JointVenture
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited

3) KeyManagerial Personnel

Sri Surinder Kumar Gupta (From 17.12.2019) Chairman cum Managing Director
SriBambahadur Singh (Upto 30.11.2019) Chairman cum Managing Director
SriSubrata Sarkar Director (Finance)

SmtBhanu Kumar Director (Commercial)
SriA.KBasu (upto 30.11.2018) Director (Finance)

SriA.K.Rai Company Secretary

SriS.KRay (upto 27.07.2018) Company Secretary

Sri GangaramAloria Independent Director




Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli
Smt. Pravati Parida (Upto 01.04.2019)
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi
Dr. TV Muralivallabhan

(ii) Transaction with Related Parties

(a) Compensastion to Key Managerial Personnel

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Remuneration (Z in Million)

Particulars Nature of related Short Term | Post Employment | Other Long Total
party / relationship Benefit Benefits Term Benefits
(a) Compensastion to Key Managerial Personnel
For the year ended March 31st,2020
Sri Surinder Kumar Gupta (From 17.12.2019) Chairman cum 1.20 0.06 - 1.26
Managing Director
Sri Bambahadur Singh (Upto 30.11.2019) Chairman cum 4.06 - - 4.06
Managing Director
Sri Subrata Sarkar Director (Finance) 3.91 0.32 0.27 4.50
Smt Bhanu Kumar Director (Commercial) 4.67 0.36 0.51 5.54
Sri A K.Rai Company Secretary 2.75 0.11 0.38 3.24
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director *0.32 - - 0.32
Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli Independent Director *0.32 - - 0.32
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi Independent Director *0.23 - - 0.23
Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan Independent Director *0.39 - - 0.39
Remuneration (3 in Million)
Particulars Nature of related Short Term | Post Employment | Other Long Total
party / relationship Benefit Benefits Term Benefits
(a) Compensastion to Key Managerial Personnel
For the year ended March 31st,2019
Sri Bambahadur Singh Chairman cum 7.36 0.22 - 7.58
Managing Director
Sri Subrata Sarkar (From 01.12.2018 ) Director (Finance) 1.85 0.15 0.22 2.22
Smt Bhanu Kumar Director (Commercial) 5.88 0.11 0.09 6.08
Sri A.K Basu(From 01.04.2018 To 30.11.2018) Director (Finance) 5.17 - - 517
Sri A.K.Rai(From 27.07.2018 ) Company Secretary 2.01 0.09 - 2.10
Sri S.K Ray (upto 27.07.2018) Company Secretary 0.48 - - 0.48
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director 0.27* - - 0.27
Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli Independent Director 0.21* - - 0.21
Smt. Pravati Parida Independent Director 0.09* - - 0.09
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi (From 14.12.2018) Independent Director 0.08* - - 0.08
Dr. T. V. Muralivallabhan Independent Director 0.34* - - 0.34

Note :* Itindicate Director's Sitting Fees.

(a) Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the company to the Directors, such facility has not been

considered as benefit/perquisite.

(b) Theabove includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis.
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(b) Transaction with FSNL Limited (100% Subsidiary)

(% in million)
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Payment of Custodian Service for the Warehouse Management - 1.98
Payment for Valuation Service 0.09 -
Amount Received for providing E-Auction Service 0.27 0.06
(c) Transaction with Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (50:50 Joint Venture)
(% in million)
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Investment in Joint Venture - 80.00
Amount received towards reimbursement of expenditure 0.66 0.73
Amount paid towards reimbursement of expenditure 0.61 0.22
Amount Received for providing E-Auction Service 0.23 0.13

40 . Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

1.

Provident Fund
12% of Basic pay and dearness allowance contributed to the providend fund trust by the company.
Pension

In terms of Ministry of Steel Directives Pension scheme for the employees of MSTC has been formulated , under Defined
Contribution Plan. The company contributes annually to LIC of India through a trust. LIC will provide the pension to the
employees from the corpus created on account of employees, by way of contribution from MSTC (The Employer)."

Defined Benefits Plans

1.

Gratuity:

The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who
render continious service for a minimum period of 5 years.The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one month's wages last drawn
by the employee for every completed year of service in excess of 30 years in case of non executives only. The maximum amount
of Gratuity payable to employee is ¥ 2 Million. In case of non executive joined on or before 01.07.2014, the gratuity is celing
less.The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India.The Company contributes in the fund every year as premium on the basis of
demand raised by LIC of India.

Post Retirement Medical Benefit:

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. The members will
be covered through Mediclaim Insurance of the Insurance Company. This is available to superannuated employees at any
hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy. In addition to this expenses incurred in domicilliary treatment is also reimbursed
as per prescribed ceiling. The benefits are funded through a separate trust formed for this purpose. The Company provides the
corpus for this. Deficit, if any, is being compensated by the company.

Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is

determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the plan in India, it has a
relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments. Further,
the overseas plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real
estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund considers it
appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in
real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.




Interest risk Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by
anincrease inthe return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.

(a) The company has recognised an amount of ¥90.25 Million ( Previous YearZ 61.93 Million) in Statement of Profitand Loss for the
currentyear as expenses under defined contribution plans.

Benefit (Contribution to) 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million Zin Million
Provident Fund* 62.19 36.62
Pension 28.06 25.31
Total 90.25 61.93

* This represents the provision for¥ 25.17 Millions (Previous Year - Nil ) towards the contribution for deficit in income of PF Trust for
the FY 2019-20 (Refer Note No. - 23)

(b) The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :

i. Funded
a. Gratuity
b. Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme
c) Details of the Gratuity Plan are as follows :
For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
b. Estimated rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
c. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%
2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Gratuity are as follows:
For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
a. Current service cost 15.38 8.64
b. Service Cost 15.38 8.64
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1.51 2.66
d. Cost recognized in P&L 16.89 11.30
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:
a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience (6.09) 6.42
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 11.49 1.73
c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 5.40 8.15
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (0.94) (0.71)
e. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 4.46 7.44
f. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 4.46 7.44
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3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item in
the standalone statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation under IndAS 19.

4. The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million < in Million

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 188.74 189.68
b.  Current Service Cost 15.38 8.64
c. Interest Cost on DBO 13.51 12.86
d. Past Service Cost- Plan Ammendment -
e. Acquisitions ( credit)/cost 1.07
f. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 1.73
g. Actuarial (gains) and losses arising from experience adjustments 5.40 6.42
h.  Benefits paid from plan asset (20.81) (31.65)
i. Closing defined benefit Obligation 202.22 188.74

6. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million < in Million

a. Fair value of the assets at end of prior period 165.56 121.02
b. Interest Income on plan assets 12.00 10.20
c. Employer Contributions 27.81 65.28
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 0.94 0.71
e. Benefits paid (20.81) (31.65)
f.  Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 185.50 165.56

6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
Effect of a 1% change in discount rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (10.94) (10.92)
(i) closing balance of obligation 191.28 177.82
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 11.50 12.48
(i) closing balance of obligation 213.72 201.22
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Zin Million < in Million
Effect of a 1% change in salary escalation rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 5.42 6.32
(i) closing balance of obligation 207.64 195.06
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (5.10) (6.27)
(ii) closing balance of obligation 197.12 182.47
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7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

(d) Details of the Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows :

Description For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

2. Amounts recognised in standalone statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Post Retirement Medical Benefit
Scheme are as follows:

Description For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million Zin Million
a. Current service cost 4.62 4.65
b. Service Cost 4.62 4.65
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 4.39 4.71
d. Cost recognized in P&L 9.01 9.36
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:
e. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 12.60 (10.74)
f. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 23.36 3.04
g. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 35.96 (7.70)
h. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 11.31 (1.75)
i.  Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 47.27 (9.45)

j. Adjustments for limit on net assets -
k. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 47.27 (9.45)

3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense’ line
itemin the standalone statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

Description For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million < in Million

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 171.39 172.45
b.  Current Service Cost 4.62 4.65
c. Interest Cost 12.22 12.38
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 35.96 (10.74)
e. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments - 3.04
f.  Benefits paid directly by the Company (11.65) (10.38)
g. Closing defined benefit Obligation 212.54 171.39




MSTC

T e ,_|-' :.:I mEEd
fafire LIMITED
N AN WP agTe i Dt - rechis Enieprism

6. Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows:-

Description For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
a. Fairvalue of the assets at end of prior period 107.90 108.86
b. Interest Income on plan assets 7.82 7.67
c. Employer Contributions -
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate (11.31) 1.75
e. Benefits paid (11.65) (10.38)
f. Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 92.76 107.90

7. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Description 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Zin Million < in Million

Effect of a 1% change in discount rate

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (24.64) (18.63)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 187.90 152.76

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 26.57 23.00

(i) closing balance of obligation 239.11 194.39

Description 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million

Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate

Increase

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 18.37 15.61

(i) closing balance of obligation 230.91 187.00

Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (16.90) (12.57)

(ii) closing balance of obligation 195.64 158.82

41 . Expenditure Incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

(a) Grossamountrequired to be spent by the company during the year¥5.40 Million

(b) Inaccordance to section 135 of Companies Act 2013, the company has incurred ¥ 5.40 Million (Previous Year¥ 20.00 Million ), as

CSR expenditure.
< in Million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Construction/ Rennovation of assets 15.19

(2) Construction of Toilets Blocks 0.50

(3) Tube Wells 0.00

(4) Contribution to PM Cares Fund 5.40 0.00

(5) Other 4.31
5.40 20.00

Above figures are disclosed separately in note no. 30
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42 . Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances includes balances subject to confirmation/reconcilliation and
consequential adjustment, if any. Reconcilliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions,wherever considered
necessary, have been made.

43 . The current assets of the company are under charge with consortium bank against sanction of credit facilities to the company.

44 . During the last quarter of F.Y. 2019-20, an exceptional phenomenon occurred in the form of COVID 19 virus attack. Nationwide
lockdown was imposed in the Country to counter this. As a result of which the business operations across the Country were
affected, with MSTC being no exception to it. Majority of the revenue of MSTC comes from E commerce segment. The E
commerce services were fully functional during this period providing services to our valued customers. The Company continued
with its development and planning activities during the period. MSTC assumes that there will not be any further exigency due to
this phenomenon and the business will grow to reach at normal level. The Company has considered the possible effects that may
result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19.There has been impact on revenue during the last quarter of F.Y. 2019-20. The
financial implications on the business operations due to COVID 19 are yet to be ascertained.

45 .The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable.

46 . The Board of Directors of the Company in its 298th Meeting held on 29.06.2020 has proposed a final dividend in respect of year
ending 31st March 2020 , @ 33% on equity share capital which is¥ 704.00 Million as on date. The payment of Dividend is subject
to approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting. If approved it will result in a cash outflow 0f ¥ 232.32 Million.

In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S Ghose & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 302184E/E300007

(CA Ranjan Kumar Paul) (S K Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021

DIN - 08643406

Date: 29/06/2020 (S K Barnwal) Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL. GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of MSTC Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial

Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements of MSTC Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”), and considered
financial statements of subsidiary (Holding Company and
its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”) and Joint
Venture audited by other auditor, which comprise the
consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2020, and
the Consolidated statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
statement of Changes in Equity, Consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information
required by the Act in the manner so required and give a
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated
state of affairs of the Group and its Joint Venture as at
March 31, 2020, their consolidated profit and other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that
date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We
are independent of the Group and its joint venture in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by The Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl), together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
consolidated financial statement under the provision of the Act
and the Rules made there under, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Emphasis of Matter

2. Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to the
following:

a. Attention is drawn to Note No 45 of the consolidated
financial statements, as regards the Managements
evaluation of COVID 19 impact on the future performance
of the company.

b. Attention is drawn to Note No. 37 of the consolidated
financial statements regarding Non Provision of Deferred
Tax Asset of T 1,565.54 Million on Provision for Doubtful
Debts 0f¥4480.13 Million made after 01.04.2018.

c. The title deed of a freehold flat in Mumbai of Holding
Company having gross block of ¥ 0.74 million as at
31.03.2020 could not be furnished before the audit.

Key Audit Matters

3. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matters described below
to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report.

Sl. Key Audit Matters Auditor’s Response

i. |Recoverability of Trade
Receivables:

As at 31st March 2020, trade |[Examining details of

receivables Gross is|{receivables and
T 21,834.48 million (Net|transactions during the year

% 12334.44 million). Out of
which ¥ 10,428.42 million
was unsecured and
provision of ¥ 9,500.04
million for bad and doubtful
debts has been made by the
Holding Company.

In the event of insolvency of
customers, the Holding
Company is exposed to
potential risk of financial loss
when the customers fail to
meet their contractual
obligation in accordance
with the requirements. The
recoverable amount was
estimated by management
based on their specific
recoverability assessment
on individual debtor with
reference to the ageing
profile and credit worthiness
of the customer.

ended 31st March 2020. We
have observed the nature of
the trade receivables, the
sustainability and the
likelihood of recoverability of
receivables.

Since Holding Company’s
obtaining of balance
confirmations from Parties is
an ongoing process (Refer
note 43), substantive audit
procedures have been
followed to ensure accuracy
of balances. We have
assessed the recoverability
of the unsettled receivables
on a sample basis through
our evaluation of
management’s assessment
with reference to the credit
profile of the customers and
their historical payment
pattern, wherever
applicable, along with the
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The disclosures related to
Trade Receivables of the
Holding Company are
provided in Note 9 to the
accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

i. (ITSystems & Control:

Preparation and
presentation of Financial
Statements are dependent
on Holding Company’s
supporting software and
hardware controls involving
risk management exercise
for maximum elimination of
erroneous data. Thus quality
of audit outcome and its
authenticity are dependent
on the extent of IT controls
and systems.

Assessment of allowance
for Bad and Doubtful
Advances and Contingent
Liabilities:

Assessment of allowance
for Bad and Doubtful
Advances and Contingent
liabilities of Holding
Company require
assessment of probable
outcomes and cash flows.
The identification and
quantification require
estimation and judgment by
the management. The
disclosure related to
allowance for Bad and
Doubtful Advances and
Contingent liabilities are
provided in Note No 33 & 36
(a) to the accompanying
Consolidated Financial
Statements.

iv. [Impact of COVID 2019 :

latest correspondences with
the customers, read with the
Holding Company’s existing
risk management policy.

We have planned, designed
and carried out the desired
audit procedures and
sample checks, which in our
opinion are adequate to
provide reasonable
assurance on the adequacy
of IT controls in place.

We have carried out the
validation of the information
provided by the
management by performing
the following procedures:-

- Evaluating
reasonableness of the
underlying assumptions.

- Understanding the
current status of the
litigations.

- Examining the relevant
documents on available
records.

- Reviewing legal opinion/
industry practices
wherever necessary.

Verification of various
disclosures made by the
management.

- Obtaining Management'’s
Representation as per
guidelines of the ICAI.

As a result of COVID 19
Pandemic situation
prevailing in the country, we
had to encounter difficulties /
delay in the process of
collection of data and
analysing the same to come
to an audit conclusion

Vi.

Subsidiary’s other auditor
has reported that —

Revenue Recognition in
Books of Subsidiary: Refer|
note no. 1.C.9 to the
Consolidated Financial
Statement, Unbilled
Revenue of Bhilai unit of
I 652.50 million that is
considered as revenue in
the financial statement of the
company & trade
receivables outstanding as
on 31.03.2020 against such
unbilled revenue is ¥ 856.50
million (Out of which
3 204.00 Million is related to
2018-19).

The application of the new
revenue accounting
standard involves certain
key judgments relating to
identification of distinct
performance obligations,
determination of transaction
price of the identified
performance obligations,
the appropriateness of the
basis used to measure
revenue recognized over a
period. Additionally new
revenue accounting
standards contains
disclosures which involve
information in respect of]
disaggregated revenue and
periods over which the
remaining performance
obligations will be satisfied
subsequent to the balance
sheetdate.

Carrying value of Trade
Receivables of
Subsidiary:

Trade Receivables
comprise a significant
portion of the liquid assets of
the company and serve as

without compromising the
maintenance of quality of
audit as desired by the
regulatory authorities.

» Subsidiary’s other auditor
reported that they have
read the accounting
policy for revenue
recognition of the
company and assessed
compliance of the policy
in terms of principles
enunciated under IND AS
115.

Assessed the disclosures
made by the
management
incompliance of IND AS
115.

Read the wunderlying
contracts with Bhilai Steel
Plant.

Tested Managements
Control for evaluation of
recoverability of
receivables.

» Tested on asample basis,
the subsequent invoicing
by the company and
collections from
customers to identify, if
there were any indicators
of impairment of the
contract assets.

Subsidiary’s other
auditor evaluated and
tested the subsidiary
company’s control
process for the trade
receivables and unbilled
contract revenue
including the
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security for a majority of the
company’s short term debt.
As per the financial
statement as at 31.03.2020,
Trade Receivables of
subsidiary amounts to
T 2291.90 Million (Net of
Provision).

Bad Debts and Provision
for Doubtful Debts /
Expected Credit Loss for
Trade Receivable of the
subsidiary - The Subsidiary
Company has come up with
its own policy to make
provision of doubtful debts
which shall be effective from
the fourth quarter of the F.Y
2019-20 i.e. from
01/01/2020 to 31/03/2020
Refer to note no. 1.C.16 to
the consolidated financial
statement. The valuation of
allowance for impairment of
trade receivables requires
significant management
judgement and specific
factors, management
considers the age of the
balance, existence of
disputes, recent historical
payment patterns and any
other available information
concerning the
creditworthiness of
counterparties.
Management uses this
information to determine
whether a write off /
provision for impairment is
required either for a specific
transaction or for a
customer’s balance overall,
Refer to note no. 1.C.6 to the
Consolidated Financial
Statements.

provisioning and
collection process.
Where there were
indicators that trade
receivables were
unlikely to be collected
within contracted
payment terms they
have assessed the
adequacy of the
allowance for
impairment of trade
receivables.

They have assessed the
ageing of trade
receivables quantum of
other contract assets,
contract performance,
disputes with customers,
and past payment and
credit history of the
customers;

Considered the historical
accuracy of forecasting
the allowance of
impairment of trade
receivables.

Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

4.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is
responsible for the preparation of the other information.
The other information comprises the information
included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’'s Report,
Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Information,
but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
thisregard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

5.

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are
responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the
requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position,
consolidated financial performance, consolidated total
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity,
and consolidated cash flows of the Group including its
Joint Venture in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the
companies included in the Group and of its Joint Venture
are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding the assets of the Group and its joint venture
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and




fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for
the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as
aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group and its Joint Venture are responsible for
assessing the ability of the Group and its Joint Venture’s
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group including its Joint Venture
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
todoso.

The respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group and of its Joint Venture are also
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of the Group and of its Joint Venture.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

6. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about

whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
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appropriate in the circumstances. Under section
143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system
in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group and
its Joint Venture to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause
the Group and its Joint Venture to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in amanner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group and its Joint Ventures entities
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial
statements of such entities included in the consolidated
financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatement in the
consolidated financial statement that, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decision of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statement
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate
the effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated
financial statements.
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We communicate with those charged with governance of the
Holding Company and such other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

Other Matters

7.(a)We have considered information from the financial
statements of one subsidiary, namely, Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited, whose financial statement have been
audited by other auditor, which reflect total assets of
34407.04 Million as at 31st March, 2020, Total Revenues
of ¥ 4098.96 Million, total net profit after tax of ¥ 305.76
Million, total comprehensive income of ¥ 241.98 Million
and cash outflows (net) of ¥ 172.58 Million for the year
ended on that date, as considered in the consolidated
financial statements. The consolidated financial
statements also include the Holding Company’s share of
netloss of ¥ 26.94 Million and total comprehensive loss of
% 26.74 Million in respect of Joint Venture namely
Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt Ltd for the year ended
31st March, 2020 whose financial statements have been
audited by other auditor.

The financial statements of Joint Venture Company,
namely, Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt Ltd, have been
audited by other auditor whose audit reports have been
furnished to us by the Holding Company’s Management
and our opinion on the consolidated financial statements,
in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures
included in respect of subsidiary and joint venture and
our report in terms of sub-sections (3) and (11) of section
143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid
subsidiary and joint venture, is based solely on the

reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on consolidated financial statements and our
report on other legal and regulatory requirements below,
is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports
of the other auditors and the financial statements certified
by the Management.

(b) The Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended March 31, 2019 were audited by the other auditor
under Companies Act 2013 who, vide their report dated
May 29, 2019 expressed an unqualified opinion on those
financial statements.

(c) Subsidiary’s other auditor has mentioned that they have
done audit without physical visit to the unit. Subsidiary’s
other auditor has expressed their opinion based on the
information, facts and inputs made available to them
through electronic means by the units of the subsidiary
company. They have informed that due to the COVID-19
induced restrictions on physical movement and strict
timelines, they could not visit the units except Bhilai unit
for undertaking the required audit procedures as
prescribed under ICAI issued Standards on Auditing,
including but not limited to:

* Inspection, observation, examination and
verification of the original documents/ files.

» Physical verification of stocks of spares items
including adequate internal controls thereof.

* Physical verification of fixed assets (movable &
immovable), vehicle movement records and their
including adequate internal controls thereof.

*  Observation with regard to internal controls.

* Adequate audit procedures for various assertion
specified in CARO Reports.

»  Examination of vouchers and invoices of expenses
etc.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

8. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the
extentapplicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by
law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears
from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditors.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (including other




(d)

(e)

(f)

(h)

comprehensive income), consolidated statement of
changes in Equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with
the relevant books of account maintained for the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant Rules thereto.

As per natification no. G.S.R 463(E) dated 5th June,
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, section
164(2) of the Companies Act, 2013 regarding
disqualification of the Director is not applicable to the
Holding Company since it is a Government Company. In
respect of Subsidiary and Joint Venture, the other
auditors have mentioned that none of the Directors are
disqualified as on 31.03.2020 from being appointed as a
Director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

In respect of the issues of adequacy of internal financial
controls over financial reporting of the Group and Joint
Venture, and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, please refer to our separate reportin “Annexure
A’

The Holding Company being a Government Company,
provisions of section 197 (16) of the companies Act 2013
regarding managerial remuneration is not applicable to
the company as per notification no. G.S.R. 463(E) dated
05 June 2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs. On
the basis of the reports of the other auditors of its
subsidiary and joint venture, the remuneration paid by
the respective companies to their directors during the
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197
ofthe Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the
Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014 (as
amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i The consolidated financial statements disclose the
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group and Joint Venture -
Refer Note no 36 (a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

ii.  The Holding Company and its joint venture did not
have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses. The subsidiary’s other auditor
has mentioned that subsidiary company has made
provision, as required under the applicable laws or
accounting standards, for material foreseeable

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29.06.2020

.

losses; if any, on long term contracts including
derivative contracts.

ii. There was delay in transferring unpaid Interim
Dividend of ¥ 1.01 million to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund (declared on 30.12.2011 for
FY 2011-12) and the amount was deposited on
09.04.2019 by the Holding Company. In respect of
Subsidiary and Joint Venture, no amounts were
required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by those companies.

As required by section 143(5) of the Act the directions

and sub-directions issued by the Comptroller & Auditor

General of India we give our comments in the

consolidated financial statements in “Annexure-B”

annexed herewith.

For S Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN- 302184E/E300007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner

M.No.060084

UDIN : 20060084AAAAAW5652

MSTC
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Annexure -Ato the Independent Auditor’s Report

Referred to in paragraph 8(f) of the Independent Auditor’s
Report of even date to the members of MSTC Limited on
the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
March 31, 2020.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls over
Financial Reporting of MSTC Limited (hereinafter
referred to as “the Holding Company”), and considered
financial statements of subsidiary (Holding Company
and its subsidiary together referred to as “the Group”)
and Joint Venture, (which is a company incorporated in
India as of that date) audited by other auditors, as at 31st
March, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial

Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding
Company and its subsidiary company and joint venture
are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the
respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to respective
companies’ policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the Group
and the joint venture based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by ICAl and the Standards
on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit
of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical

4.

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls over financial reporting was
established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over consolidated financial reporting and
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the internal financial controls system over
consolidated financial reporting of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary company and joint venture.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over
consolidated Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial
control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's
assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting

5. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over consolidated financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Qualified Opinion

6. According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on our audit, the following weaknesses have
beenidentified as at 31st March 2020 :-

a. The Holding Company falls short of exercising
internal control system for customer acceptance,
credit evaluation and establishing credit limits for
sales, which could potentially result in the Holding
Company recognizing revenue without establishing
reasonable certainty of ultimate collection.

b. In the process of maintaining safe custody of
pledged stock of raw materials procured by the
Holding Company on behalf of its customers under
the Company appointed custodian, it has been
observed that there is inadequacy of required
internal control.

However the Holding Company has already introduced a
separate Audit for Audit of its Internal Financial Control System
and the reportis yet to be submitted.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the
weaknesses described herein above, the Group and its joint
venture, which are companies incorporated in India, have
maintained in all material aspects, an adequate internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and such
internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31 March 2020, based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by
the respective Companies considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

Other Matters

i. Our aforesaid report u/s 143(3)(i) of the Act on the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal
financial control over financial reporting in so far as it
relates to its one subsidiary company and one joint
venture, which are Companies incorporated in India, is

™ A

based on the corresponding reports of the auditors of
such companies incorporated in India.

ii. Further subsidiary’s other auditor would like to draw
attention of stakeholders in respect of hiring of equipment
on rent by the subsidiary company. CVO has observed
that the notice inviting tender is not being published in the
official website of the company. Also limit of turnover and
work experience required to get empanelled for the same
is too restrictive for many other vendors to participate.
These observations are recorded in minutes of 178"
meeting of directors held on 12th November 2019.

On sample checking of work orders, tendering process and
bills of equipment on rent, subsidiary’s other auditor had found
that only limited vendors are empanelled for the above
contracts and the contracts awarded by the customers on
nomination basis are sub-contracted to them in the form of
“Hiring of Module of Equipments and Manpower”. The
Expense under this head amounts to ¥ 1510.4 Million as
against total turnover of ¥ 4099.00 Million. Subsidiary
Company has proposed certain changes in their Purchase
and Stores manual regarding system improvement in their
purchase procedures. The Subsidiary’s other auditor has
informed that they are unable to form an opinion on this, as
they do not have access to all the documents and records
related to the above matter.

For S Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN- 302184E/E300007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Place: Kolkata
Date: 29.06.2020

Partner
M.No.060084
UDIN : 20060084AAAAAW5652
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Annexure — B to the Independent Auditors’ Report

Directions issued by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, based
on the verification of records of the Company and according to information and explanation given to us, we report as
under:

Directions

Auditor’s Reply

Whether the Company has system in place to process all the
accounting transactions through IT system? If yes, the
implications of processing of accounting transactions
outside IT system on the integrity of the accounts along with
the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

In Case of Holding Company :

The matter has adequately been dealt with in our report of
evendate. (Para 3 (ii) Key Audit Matter)

In case of the subsidiary, the subsidiary’s other auditor
reported that :

The Subsidiary Company process all accounting transaction
through integrated Accounting package i.e. FAST Package.

The company has 2 separate IT package for

(1) Payroll & (2) Inventory are integrated in Accounting
Package Jvs.

Complete financial data with respect to Payroll & Inventory
are incorporated in Accounting Package i.e. in FAST
Package

Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by
a lender to the Company due to the company’s inability to
repay the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

In Case of Holding Company :

No, there is no instance of restructuring of an existing loan or
cases of waiver / write off of debts/ loans / interest etc. made
by a lender to the Company due to company’s inability to
repay the loan.

In case of the Subsidiary, the subsidiary’s other auditor
reported that :

The subsidiary company has not taken any loan during the
F.Y.2019-2020.

Hence there is no restructuring of any loan or cases of waiver
/write off of debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the
company due to the company's inability to repay the loan.

Whether funds received / receivable for specific schemes
from Central / State agencies were properly accounted for /
utilised as per its term and conditions? List the cases of
deviation.

In Case of Holding Company :

No, there is no such case of funds being received/ receivable
during Financial Year 2019-20 for specific schemes from
central/state agencies.

In case of subsidiary, the subsidiary’s other auditor reported
that:

During the F.Y. 2019-2020 subsidiary company has not
received any fund for specific schemes from Central/state
agencies.

Place: Kolkata
Date: 29.06.2020

For S Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN-302184E/E300007

CARanjan Kumar Paul

Partner
M.No.060084
UDIN : 20060084AAAAAW5652
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COMMENTS OF THE COMPTROLLER AND AUDITOR GENERAL OF INDIA UNDER
SECTION 143(6)(b) READ WITH SECTION 129(4) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ON
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MSTC LIMITED FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2020

The preparation of consolidated financial statements of MSTC Limited for the year ended 31
March 2020 in accordance with the financial reporting framework prescribed under the Companies
Act, 2013 (Act) is the responsibility of the management of the company. The statutory auditor
appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India under Section 139(S)read with section
129(4) of the Act is responsible for expressing opinion on these financial statements under section
143read with section 129(4) of the Act based on independent audit in accordance with the standards gin
auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act. This is stated to have been done by them vide
their Audit Report dated 29 June 2020.

I, on behalf of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India, have conducted a
supplementary audit of the consolidated financial statements of MSTC Limited for the year
ended 31March 2020under Section 143(6)(a) read with section 129(4) of the Act. We conducted a
supplementary audit of the financial statements of MSTC Limited and its subsidiary company
Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited for the year ended on that date. Further, section 139(5) and
143(6)(a) of the Act are not applicable to Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited being
private _entity for appointment of their Statutory Auditor and for conduct (;f

supplementary audit. Accordingly, Comptroller & Auditor General of India has neither
appointed the Statutory Auditors nor conducted the supplementary audit of this company.

This supplementary audit has been carried out independently without access to the working
papers of the statutory auditors and is limited primarily to inquiries of the statutory auditors and

company personnel and a selective examination of some of the accounting records.

On the basis of my supplementary audit nothing significant has come to my knowledge
which would give rise to any comment upon or supplement to sfatutory auditors’ report under

section 143(6)(b) of the Act.

For and on the behalf of the

Place: Kolkata

Date: 98 Aye 2020

Director General Audit (Mines)
Kolkata
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as on 31st March 2020

(Amount in ¥ million)

Notes As at 315t Mar 2020 As at 315t Mar 2019
ASSETS
(1) Non-current assets
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 2 876.19 750.58
(b) Capital Work in Progress 2 293.42 231.81
(c) Leasehold Land 2 71.57 72.32
(d) Intangible assets 2 12.21 11.53
1,253.39 1,066.24
(e) Financial assets
(i) Investment In Joint Venture 3 112.07 138.81
(i) Trade receivables 16 - -
(iii)  Other financial assets 4 348.47 272.42
()  Non-Current tax assets 5 588.19 582.42
(9) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 2,296.96 2,615.31
(h) Other non-current assets 6 26.39 59.24
Total non- current assets 4,625.47 4,734.44
(2) Current assets
(@) Inventories 8 70.00 60.35
(b) Financial assets
(i)  Trade receivables 9 14,626.40 18,697.26
(i)  Cash and cash equivalents 10 606.76 962.21
(iii) - Other Bank Balances " 1,725.14 3,204.72
(iv) Other financial assets 12 231.91 483.03
(c) Other current assets 13 96.22 104.30
17,356.43 23,511.87
Assets classified as held for sale 27 29.60 30.76
Total current assets 17,386.03 23,542.63
TOTAL ASSETS 22,011.50 28,277.07
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
(1) Equity
(@) Equity share capital 14 704.00 704.00
(b) Other equity 15 4,035.22 3,175.69
Total equity 4,739.22 3,879.69

(2) Non-current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 21 33.91 9.35
(i) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of

a) Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 17 2.64 2.64

(iii) - Other financial liabilities 18 5.70 745

(b) Provisions 19 827.90 706.23
(c) Other non-current liabilities 20 63.25 80.55
Total non- current liabilities 933.40 806.22

(3) Current liabilities
(@) Financial liabilities
(i)  Borrowings 22 2,552.61 6,137.15
(i) Trade payables
Total Outstanding dues of

a) Micro & Small Enterprises 23 0.75 048

b) Creditors other than Micro & Small Enterprises 23 6,536.02 9,522.99

(iii)  Other financial liabilities 24 6,616.12 7,329.62

(b) Provisions 25 403.15 314.46
(c) Other current liabilities 26 221.77 284.48
16,330.42 23,589.18

16,330.42 23,589.18

Liabilities classified as held for sale 27 8.46 1.98
Total current liabilities 16,338.88 23,591.16
Total liabilities 17,272.28 24,397.38
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 22,011.50 28,277.07

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.

In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul (S. K. Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021
DIN- 08643406
Dated : 29.06.2020 (S K Barnwal) (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY

FINANCE & ACCOUNTS M. No : F5627
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Consolidated Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March 2020

Particulars

ASSETS
| Revenue from operations
[l Other Income
Il Total Revenue (I + 1)

IV EXPENSES
(@) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade/Operational Consumables & Spares
(b) Employee benefit expense
(c) Finance costs
(d) Depreciation and amortisation expense
(e) Other expenses
V Total Expenses
VI Profit before share of profit/(loss) of Joint Ventures and tax (Il - V)
VII Share of profit/(loss) of Joint Ventures
VIl Profit before tax (VI + VII)
IX Tax Expense
(a) Current tax
(b) Deferred tax
Total tax expense
X Profit for the period (VIII - IX)

X

Other comprehensive income
A (i) Items that will not be reclassifed to profit or loss
(i) Income tax on above
B Share of Other Comprehensive Income of Joint Venture

XIl Total comprehensive income for the period (X + XI)

XlIlEarnings per equity share (face value of * 10 each):
(1) Basic (in %)
(2) Diluted (in %)

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.

In terms of our report of even date
For 8. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner
M. No : 060084

Dated : 29.06.2020
Place : Kolkata

Note

28
29

30
31
32

33

37

41

38

For the year ended

(S. K. Gupta)
CHAIRMAN-CUM-
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN- 08643406

(s K Barnwal)
ADDL GENERAL MANAGER
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

31.03.2020

12,313.99
645.99
12,959.98

6,151.98
1.828.05
287.22
166.15
2,832.21
11,265.61
1,694.37
(26.94)
1,667.43

361.75
335.54
697.29
970.14

(136.96)
38.63
0.20
(98.13)

872.01

13.78
13.78

For MSTC LIMITED

(Amount in T million)

For the year ended
31.03.2019

32,919.97
483.25
33,403.22

25,914.28
1,690.13
578.05
146.86
7,419.30
35,748.62
(2,345.40)
(29.07)
(2,374.47)

499.34
197.23
696.57

(3,071.04)

(64.30)
19.87
(0.12)

(44.55)

(3,115.59)

(43.62)
(43.62)

(Subrata Sarkar)
DIRECTOR FINANCE
DIN- 8290021

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No : F5627
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March 2020

A. Equity Share Capital
Particulars
Balance as at March 31, 2018
Bonus Shares issued in the ratio1:1
Balance as at March 31, 2019
Balance as at March 31, 2020

B. Other Equity
Balance as at March 31, 2018

Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Eamning

Issue of Bonus Shares
Final Dividend FY 17-18

Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend FY 17-18

Balance as at March 31, 2019
Profit for the year
Other Comprehensive Income for the year

Transfer to General Reserve/(From) Retained Earning

Dividend Distribution Tax on Final Dividend FY 18-19

Balance as at March 31, 2020

In terms of our report of even date
For S. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner
M. No : 060084

Dated : 29.06.2020
Place : Kolkata

Nos
35,200,000
35,200,000
70,400,000
70,400,000

Capital Reserve

341.60

341.60

341.60

Face Value (%)
10

General Reserve Retained Earnings
6,482.50 133.20
(3,071.04)

(44.55)

(352.00)
(260.48)
- (53.54)
6,482.50 (3,648.41)
970.14
(98.13)

- (12.48)
6,482.50 (2,788.88)

For MSTC LIMITED

(S. K. Gupta)
CHAIRMAN-CUM-
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN- 08643406

(S K Barnwal)
ADDL GENERAL MANAGER
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

(Amount in  million)

Amount (%) Million
352.00
352.00
704.00
704.00

Total
6,957.30
(3,071.04)
(44.55)

(352.00)
(260.48)
(53.54)
3,175.69
970.14
(98.13)

(12.48)
4,035.22

(Subrata Sarkar)
DIRECTOR FINANCE
DIN- 8290021

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No : F5627
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31st March 2020

Particulars

A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit for the year
Adjustments for:
Depreciation / Amortisation of non-current assets
Loss from Investment in JV
Loss/(Gain) on disposal of Property Plant and Equipment
Finance Cost
Interest Income recognised in profit & loss
Provision no Longer Required Written Back
Bad Debt Witten Off
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Advances/Debts
Operating profit before Working Capital changes
Adjustments for changes in Operating Assets & Liabilities
Adjustments for (increase) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Movement in working capital:
(Increase)/decrease in Trade and Other Receivables
(Increase)/decrease in Other Assets
(Increase)/ decrease in Inventories
Adjustments for increase / (decrease) in Operating Liabilities:
Increase/ (decrease) in Trade Payables & Others Financial Liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in Other Liabilities
Increase/ (decrease) in Provisions
Cash generated from Operations
Direct Taxes Paid (Net of Refund)
Net cash from Operating Activities
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for Property, Plant & Equipment
Proceeds from disposal of Property Plant & Equipment
Investment In Fixed Deposits
Investment in Joint Venture
Interest received
Net cash (used) in Investing Activities
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from Short term borrowings
Interest Paid
Dividend Paid
Tax on Dividends Paid
Net cash used in Financing Activities
Net increase/(decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalents(A+B+C)
Cash and Cash equivalents at the beginning of the Year
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year
Note :
(1) Figures in brackets indicate outflows.
(2) Statement Showing Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year
Less : Over Draft Balances at the end of the year
Net Cash and Cash equivalents at the end of the Year

For the Year Ended
31st Mar 2020

1,667.43

166.90
26.94
144
287.22
(140.85)
(482.51)
373.99
387.36
2,287.92

3,950.22
42.08
(9.65)

(3,701.84)
(73.53)
73.40
2,568.60
(346.07)
2,222.53

(387.78)
32.29
1479.58

157.74
1,281.83

(2,031.85)
(287.35)
0.00
(12.48)
(2,331.68)
1,172.68
(837.53)
335.15

606.76
271.61
335.15

Note : Statement of Cash Flows is prepared using Indirect Method as per Indian Accounting Standard~7: Statement of Cash Flows.

The accompanying notes forms an integral part of the financial statements.
In terms of our report of even date.

In terms of our report of even date
For 8. Ghose & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 302184E/E30007

CA Ranjan Kumar Paul
Partner
M. No : 060084

Dated : 29.06.2020
Place : Kolkata

(S. K. Gupta)
CHAIRMAN-CUM-
MANAGING DIRECTOR
DIN- 08643406

(S K Barnwal)
ADDL GENERAL MANAGER
FINANCE & ACCOUNTS

For MSTC LIMITED

(Amount in ¥ million)

For the Year Ended
31st Mar 2019

(2,374.47)

147,61
29.07
(0.08)

578.05

(424 50)

(29.58)

1,100.81

4,320.02

3,346.94

16,033.28
6.88
(18.75)

(17,743.39)
25.02
(149.65)
150033
(487.02)
1,013.30

(392.23)
4633
584.68
(80.00)
439.47
598.25

(1,275.44)
(578.62)
(260.48)

(53.54)

(2,168.08)
(556.53)
(281.00)
(837.53)

962.21
1,799.74
(837.53)

(Subrata Sarkar)
DIRECTOR FINANCE
DIN- 8290021

(Ajay Kumar Rai)
COMPANY SECRETARY
M. No : F5627
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Notes to Consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31st March, 2020

1.A General Information

MSTC Limited (the “Company”) is a Miniratna Category-I
Company was incorporated under the Companies Act, 1956
on 9th September, 1964. It is domiciled in India, having
registered office at 225C AJC Bose Road, Kolkata 700020 and
limited by shares (CIN:L27320WB1964G01026211).
Pursuant to Initial Public Offer equity shares of MSTC Limited
are listed and traded on both BSE Limited and National Stock
Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. March 29, 2019. The
Company undertakes trading activities, e-commerce and also
disposal of ferrous and non-ferrous scrap, surplus stores,
minerals, agri and forest produces etc. mostly from Public
Sector Undertakings and Govt. Departments. The core activity
of the Company has been divided into two Operational
Divisions, i.e. e-Commerce and Trading. The e-Commerce
division undertakes disposal of Scrap, surplus stores, e-sales
of minerals, agri and forest produces, and e procurement. The
list of Principals includes Ministry of Defence, State
Governments, PSUs like Indian Oil Corporation Ltd., Oil and
Natural Gas Corporation Ltd, Bharat Sanchar Nigam Ltd,
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Ltd. etc. The mode of
disposal includes e-auction, e-tender, e-reverse auction etc.
Besides, MSTC also e-auctions coal from Coal India Ltd,
Singareni Coalfields Ltd etc.Apart from these MSTC also
provides e-procurement solution. The trading division handles
import/export and domestic trade of mainly bulk industrial raw
material. It looks after sourcing, purchase and sales of
industrial raw materials like Heavy Melting Scrap, Low Ash
Metallurgical Coke, HR Coil, Crude Oil, Naptha, Coking Coal,
Steam Coal etc. for supply to Indian industries. The end
customers are Coal/Steel Industries, Oil sector, State owned
Power Companies etc.

It is having wholly owned subsidiary company, Ferro Scrap
Nigam Limited (FSNL) with CIN: U27102CT1989G0I1005468,
having registered office at Bhilai, Chattisgarh which was
incorporated on 28th March 1979. FSNL undertakes the job of
recovery and processing of scrap from slag and refuse
generated during iron and steel making at Steel Plants. They
offers specialised services for Dig and Haul of Blast Furnaces
and Steel Melting Shop Slag at slag yards, processing of iron
and steel skulls, Mill rejects and Maintenance scrap as per
customer’s requirement. FSNL also offers scarfing of slabs,
crushing and screening of LD slag to be used in sinter plant,
blast furnace, steel melting shop and rail ballast. It removes
sludge and ash deposit from sludge compartments and ash
ponds. They also handle and neutralise Acid Sludge in open
Hearth Muck Dump.

1.BRECENTACCOUNTING DEVELOPEMENTS

Ind As 116 —“Leases” has been made applicable w.e.f. 1st
April, 2019, as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
(MCA) in the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard)
Amendment Rules, 2019 and application of the same does not

have any significantimpact on the financial result of the Group.
1.C Significant Accounting Policies
1.C.1(a) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention with the exception of certain assets
and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period by Ind ASs. The financial
statements of the Group have been preapared to comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind Ass’), including the
rules notified under the relevant provisions of the Companies
Act2013.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date, regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated using
another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an
asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date.

Functional Currency and Presentation Currency

The financial statements are prepared in Indian Rupees (Rs.)
which is the Group's functional currency for all its operations.
All financial information presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.) has
been rounded to the nearest Million, unless otherwise stated.

Currentand Non-Current Classification

The Group presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet
based on current/ non-current classification. All assets and
liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per
the Group's normal operating cycle and other criteria set outin
the schedule lll to the Companies Act, 2013 and Ind AS 1 —
‘Presentation of Financial Statements’.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of
assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Group has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Use of estimates and critical judgements

The preparation of accounts in accordance with Ind ASs
requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
accounts and reported amounts of income and expenses
during the period.

Actual results could differ from those estimates. The most
significant techniques for estimation are described in the
accounting policies below. Critical accounting judgments and
the key sources of estimation or uncertainty in applying the
Group’s accounting policies arise in relation to property, plant
and equipment, current asset provisions, deferred tax,
retirement benefits. The detailed accounting policies,
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including underlying judgments and methods of estimations
for each of these items are discussed below. All of these key
factors are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which
estimates are revised and any future periods affected.

1.C.1(b) Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements relate to MSTC Ltd (‘the
Company’) and its subsidiary company Ferro Scrap Nigam
Ltd.and Joint Venture Mahindra MSTC Recycling Pvt Ltd. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
following basis:

A. The financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiary has been combined on a line by line basis by
adding together like items of assets, liabilities, equity,
incomes, expenses and cash flows, after fully eliminating
intra-group balances and intra-group transactions.

B. Profits or losses resulting from intra-group transactions
that are recognised in assets, such as inventory and
property, plantand equipment, are eliminated in full.

C. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s
investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of
equity of each subsidiary.

D. The difference between the proceeds from disposal of
investment in subsidiary and the carrying amount of its
assets less liabilities as on the date of disposal is
recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss being the profit or loss on disposal of investment in
subsidiary.

E. Non Controlling Interest's share of profit / loss of
consolidated subsidiaries for the year is identified and
adjusted against the income of the group in order to arrive
at the net income attributable to shareholders of the
Company.

F.  Non Controlling Interest's share of net assets of
consolidated subsidiary is identified and presented in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet separate from liabilities and
the equity of the Company’s shareholders.

G. Investment in Joint Venture has been accounted under
the equity method as per Ind AS 28 - Investments in
Associates and Joint Ventures.

Equity method

Under the equity method, the investments are initially
recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of
other comprehensive income of the investee. Dividends
from joint venture are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has

incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Company
and its joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of equity accounted investees have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity accounted investments is
tested forimpairment in accordance with the policy.

1.C.2 Foreign currency translation

In preparing the financial statements of the Group,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency
are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on the date of
the transaction. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on retranslation of monetary items are included in
the Statement of Profit and Loss for the period. Exchange
differences arising on retranslation on non-monetary items
carried at fair value are included in statement of profit and loss
for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.

Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are to be borne by the
customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange
gain/loss are not recognised in the books of the Group.

1.C.3 (a) Property, plant and equipment

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an
asset if it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and its cost can be
measured reliably. This recognition principle is applied to the
costs incurred initially to acquire an item of property, plant and
equipment and also to costs incurred subsequently to add to,
replace part of, or service it. All other repair and maintenance
costs, including regular servicing, are recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. When a replacement
occurs, the carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Cost
includes all direct costs and expenditures incurred to bring the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.




The gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is determined
as the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset, and is recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

Included in property, plant and equipment are loose plant and
tools which are stated at cost less amounts written off related
to their expected useful lives and estimated scrap value and
also spares, against which impairment provisions are made
where necessary to cover slow moving and obsolete items.

Land has an indefinite ecomomic life. The Company can enjoy
the part of the life restricted to years of lease.The lease rent
paid in advance is being amortised over the period of lease.

Capital work-in-progress is valued at cost and includes
equipment in transit and the cost of fixed assets that are not
ready for theirintended use at the reporting date.

In case of subsidiary, “Assets classified as held for sale” is
under “Non-current Asset” at their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction, rather than
through continuing use and a sale is considered highly
probable. They are measured at the lower of their carrying
amount and fair value less cost to sell, except for asset such as
Deferred Tax Asset, Assets arising from employee benefits,
Financial Assets which are specifically excempt from this
requirement. Further, where the management expects that
any part of said assets is likely to be disposed off within one
year on the Balance Sheet date, the same are classified as
current assets.

In case of subsidiary, “Assets classified as held for sale” is
classified under “Non-current Asset” at their net written down
value since these assets have already been retired from
normal continuing operations and is held only for sale/ auction.

In case of subsidiary, “Assets classified as held for sale” are
presented separately from the other assets in the balance
sheet. The liabilities classified as held for sale are presented
separately from the other liabilities in the balance sheet.

1.C.3(b) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided so as to write off, on a straight-line
basis, the cost of property, plant and equipment to their
residual value. These charges are commenced from the date
the assets are available for their intended use and are spread
over their estimated useful economic lives. The estimated
useful lives of assets and residual values are reviewed
regularly and, when necessary, revised. No further charge is
provided in respect of assets that are fully written down but are
stillin use.

Depreciation on assets under construction commences only
when the assets are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is provided to allocate the costs of property, plant
and equipment, net of their residual values, over their useful
life as specified in Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

The estimated useful lives for the main categories of property,
plantand equipment are:

TH T A H

| Type of Asset Estimated Useful |
life(Years)

Office Equipment 5
Vehicles 8
Furniture and Fixtures 10
Partition and Cubicles 10
Building 60
Air Conditioners 10
Computers 3
Servers 6
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum
used for Hot Slag handling
Dozer
Excavators 1.2 to 5 Cum Not
used for Hot Slag handling 7
Cranes 15
Magnetic Separators 15
All assets under “Plant and Machinery|
except assets mentioned above 9.19
Solar Plant 10
Assets with value less than
Rupees Five Thousand 100 %

Assets in the course of construction are included under capital
work in progress and are carried at cost, less any recognized
impairment loss. Such capital work-in-progress, on
completion, is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plantand equipment.

1.C.3 (c) Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortization
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortization method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Computer software is amortised over its estimated useful life
of 6 years (without any residual value) on a straight line basis.

An intangible asset is de-recognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Further, the management estimates that the intangible assets
are having zero carrying cost at the end of its useful life i.e.
zeroresidual value.

Softwares acquired separately are capitalised as
software.These are amortized over a period of their license. In
case of perpetual licences the cost is amortized over a period
of five years.
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1.C.4Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets to determine whether there is any indication
that the carrying amount of those assets may not be
recoverable through continuing use. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is reviewed in
order to determine the extent of impairment loss (if any).
Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
asset belongs. Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life
are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication, the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted. An impairment loss is recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its recoverable amount.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or cash
generating unit) in prior years. Areversal of animpairment loss
is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

1.C.5Investment in Subsidiaries and Joint venture

Investment in subsidiary and Joint venture are carried at cost.
Where an indication of impairment exists, the carrying amount
of the investment is assessed and written down immediately to
its recoverable amount. On disposal of investments in
subsidiary and joint venture, the difference between net
disposal proceeds and carrying amounts are recognised in
Statement of Profitand Loss.

1.C.6 Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets and liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value measured on initial recognition of
financial asset or financial liability. The transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
immediately recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

a) Financial assets

I Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost if these financial assets are held within a business model
whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR) method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial instrument and of allocating
interest income or expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts future
cash receipts or payments through the expected life of the
financial instrument, or where appropriate, a shorter period.

Il. Financial assets measured at fair value through Other
comprehensive income

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within
a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows or to sell these financial
assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets meeting these criteria are measured initially
at fair value plus transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at fair value with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income.
However, the interest income, losses & reversals, and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in the Statement of
Profitand Loss.

lll. Financial assets measured at fair value through profit
orloss

Financial asset not measured at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income is carried at fair value
through profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

Loss allowance for expected credit losses is recognised for
financial assets measured at amortised cost and fair value
through other comprehensive income.

Loss allowance equal to the lifetime expected credit losses is
recognised if the credit risk on the financial instruments has
significantly increased since initial recognition. For financial
instruments whose credit risk has not significantly increased
since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to twelve months
expected creditlosses is recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it
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transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity. If the
Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognizes its retained interest in
the assets and an associated liability for amounts it may have
to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the
Group continues to recognize the financial asset and also
recognizes a collateralised borrowing of the proceeds
received.

b) Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. Transaction costs of an equity transaction are being
accounted as a deduction from equity.

Financial Liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include Trade and other
payables and borrowings including bank overdrafts are initially
measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expire.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the Balance Sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis or realize the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right
must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event
of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the counterparty.

1.C.7 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalent includes cash on hand, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, cash at
bank, and bank overdraft and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the Balance
Sheet.

1.C.8Inventories

Stock in trade including material-in-transit is valued at cost or
estimated netrealisable value whicheveris less.

In case of subsidiary:

(i) Inventories other than non-moving inventories are valued
at cost of estimated net realizable value whichever is less.
The cost includes purchase cost and other direct
expenses but exclude excise duty on such goods where
the company is eligible to take cenvat credit in accordance
with rule 3(1) of the Cenvat Credit Rules 2004.

(ii) The inventory items, which have not moved for more than
three years, are considered as non-moving inventories.
Non-moving inventories are valued at cost reduced by ten
percent of cost every year from the year 2001-02.

(iii) The scrapped/redundant stores items are valued at cost of
estimated netrealizable value whicheveris lower.

1.C.9 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized when the performance obligation
towards transfer of goods and services to a customer is
satisfied.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration
received or receivable and recognised on accrual basis.

Interest Income is reported on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method.

SALES

I) High sea sales are booked on the basis of date of
issuance of high sea sale letter. As regards value, sales
are booked either at contracted forward exchange rates, if
booked, or provisionally on the basis of FEDAI spot
exchange rates prevailing on the last date of the financial
year, where forward cover was not taken, which includes
C&F / CIF price, usance interest followed by final
adjustment on due date of payment in subsequent
financial year.

ii) Incase of indigenous material, sales are accounted for on
the basis of date of transport documents and as regards
value, based on the value of invoices. In case of sale on
door delivery basis sales are booked on sales invoice
dates.

ii) In case of export, sales are accounted for on the basis of
date of shipment. As regards value, sales are booked
either at contracted forward exchange rates, if booked, or
at the FEDAI rate on the date of shipment as per custom
clearance document, followed by final adjustment on
actual realisation of export proceeds.

SERVICE CHARGES

Remuneration for transaction in Marketing Department
through facilitator mode and for conducting

sales/procurement on behalf of Principals, by way of auctions,
tenders, or any other means, are accounted for as service
charges.
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(a) Service charges are accounted for as income at
contracted rates on:

i. Tender/Auction sale on behalf of Public Sector
Undertakings, Defence and other Government
Departments on issuance of sale orders / delivery
orders.

i. On satisfactory completion of e-sales.

In respect of (i) & (ii), service charges are accounted
for on bid price of auction with adjustments, if any, on
the basis of actual delivery by the Principals, in case
service charges are payable on percentage basis.

iii. Onoccurrence of event, in case of service contract on
eventbasis.

iv. In case of E -Procurement Service charges are
booked, where service charges are collectable from
the Principal, on completion of event.

(b) E Procurement transaction fees collected from bidders are
accounted on successful conduct of event.

(c) Service charges accrued in respect of purchase as
facilitator are accounted for at the contracted rate on the
basis of date of bill of lading / railway receipt / lorry receipt
as the case may be. For imported materials, value is
ascertained either at forward cover rate or at FEDAI spot
rate prevailing on the last date of the Financial Year. Final
adjustment is made on actual payment. In case of
indigenous materials, value is ascertained on the basis of
actual payment at contracted rate.

(d) In case of subsidiary, service charges represent the
income earned for processing of scrap and other items,
custodian services for warehouse management and
service related to valuation of assets done by the company
at the rates agreed with/offered to the respective Steel
Plants and other parties.

E-AUCTION REGISTRATION

E-auction Registration fees collected from buyers is

considered as income of the current year if the validity of

registration is upto one year. In case of life long registration,

the amount so collected is distributed in five years equally.

OTHERINCOME

Revenue is recognised on accrual basis except in the

following items which are accounted on actual realization

since realisibility of such items is uncertain in accordance with

the provisions of the accounting standards:

i) Decrees pending for execution/contested dues and
interest thereon, if any.

i) Interest on overdue recoverables where realisability is
uncertain.

iii) Liquidated damages on suppliers or contractors.

iv) Refund of Income-Tax/Sales Tax/VAT and interest
thereon.

v) Dividend income is recognised when right to receive
paymentis established

PURCHASES

(i) Imported materials are accounted for as purchase on the
basis of date of bill of lading. As regards value, purchase
are booked on the basis of actual remittance and where
such remittance are outstanding at the close of the year, on
the basis of contracted forward exchange rates, if booked,
or FEDAI spot exchange rates prevailing on the last date of
the financial year, in case forward cover is not taken, as the
case may be. Purchase value includes material value
freight, insurance etc. and usuance interest followed by
final adjustments on actual payment in subsequent
financial year.

(i) In case of indigenous materials, purchases are booked on
the basis of transport documents and as regards value,
based on the value of invoices.

1.C.10 Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for theirintended use or sale.

Other income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

1.C.11  Employee benefits
(@) Shortterm benefits

Short term employee benefits are accounted for at their
undiscounted amount in the accounting period in which the
services are rendered by the employees are recognised as an
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period
in which the employee renders the related service.

(b) Leaveencashment

The liabilities for earned leave and commuted leave are not
expected to be settled wholly within 12 month after the end of
the period in which the employees render related service.
They are therefore measured as the present value of expected
future payments to be made in respect of services provided by
employees up to the end of the reporting period based on
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method.

The benefits are discounted using the market yield at the end
of the reporting period that have terms of approximating to the
terms of related obligations. Remeasurement as a result of
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.The facility is
funded through LIC of India.

(c) Post-employmentobligation

Defined Contribution Plan -i. Provident Fund

Provident Fund is administered by a Trust recognised by




Income Tax Authorities and contribution to this Fund is
charged to revenue. Pensioner’s Benefits are secured through
Employees’ Pension Scheme 1995.

Defined Contribution Plan -ii. Pension

Pension plan is administered through an independent trust
and contribution to this Fund is charged to revenue.The fund is
being managed through of Life Insurance Corporation of India
The contribution amount is governed by of Ministry of Steel
directives in terms of DPE guidelines in this regard.

Defined Benefit Plan —i. Service Gratuity

The liabilities or assets recognised in the Balance Sheet in
respect of defined gratuity plan is the present value of the
defined benefits obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefits
obligations are calculated annually by actuaries using
projected unit credit method. The present value of defined
benefits obligations is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows by reference to market yields at
the end of the reporting period on Government bonds that are
terms approximating to the terms of the related obligations.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discounted
rate to the net balance of defined benefit obligation and the fair
value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit
expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience
adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
recognised in the period in which they occur, directly in other
comprehensive income. They are included in retained
earnings in the statement of changes in equity and in the
balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligation
resulting from amendments and curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost. The Gratuity
obligation is funded through Group Gratuity Life Assurance
Scheme of Life Insurance Corporation of India and is
administered through a separate irrevocable trust created by
the Group for this purpose.

Defined Benefit Plan —ii. Post Retirement medical benefit

The Group provides post retirement healthcare benefits to
their retirees. The entitlement to these benefits is usually
conditional on the employee remaining in service up to the
retirement age and the completion of minimum service period.
The expected cost of these benefits is accrued over the period
of employment using the same accounting methodology as
used for defined benefit plans. Re-measurement gains and
losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions are charged or credited in other
comprehensive income in the period in which they arise. The
fund is administered through a separate trust created for this
purpose.

1.C.12 Taxation

Tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax.

TH T A H

(i) Currenttax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax for the year as
reported in the Statement of Profit and Loss because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax
is calculated using tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted in the country where the
Group operates by the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Deferredtax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable
on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. In contrast, deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised.

Minimum Alternate Tax credit is recognised as deferred tax
asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence
that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified
period. Such asset is reviewed at each Balance Sheet date
and the carrying amount of the MAT credit asset is written
down to the extent there is no longer a convincing evidence to
the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the
specified period.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent thatitis
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset to the extent that
they relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority and there
are legally enforceable rights to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities within that jurisdiction.

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or
income in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

1.C.13 Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

Provisions are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the
Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, which is expected to result in an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits which can be
reliably estimated. Each provision is based on the best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the Balance Sheet date. When appropriate,
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provisions are measured on a discounted basis.

Constructive obligation is an obligation that derives from an
entity’s actions whereby an established pattern of past
practice, published policies or a sufficiently specific current
statement, the entity has indicated to other parties that it will
accept certain responsibilities; and as a result, the entity has
created a valid expectation on the part of those other parties
that it will discharge those responsibilities.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed by way of notes. These are
reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current estimate of management.

Contingent assets are not recognised but disclosed in the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

1.C.14 Segmentreporting

Ind AS 108 establishes standards for the way that public
business enterprises report information about operating
segments and related disclosures. The Group undertakes
trading activities, and also acts as e-commerce service
provider. Based on the ‘management approach’ as defined in
Ind AS 108, the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM)
evaluates Group’s performance and allocates resources on
an analysis of various performance indicators by operating
segments. In terms of above the Group has identified
Marketing, E-Commerce and Scrap Recovery & allied jobs as
its three Primary Reportable Business Segments. Revenue
and identifiable operating expenses in relation to segments
are categorised based on items that are individually
identifiable to that segment. Rest of the items of revenue and
expenses, which cannot be specifically allocated under
specific segments are separately disclosed as unallocated.

1.C.15 Critical accounting estimates, assumptions and
judgments

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with
Ind AS requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income, expenses, and disclosures of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the results
of operations during the reporting period end. Although these
estimates are based upon management's best knowledge of
current events and actions, actual results could differ from
these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed in the paragraphs that follow.

(I) Useful economic lives and impairment of other assets

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment
(PPE) and intangible asset is based on a number of factors
including the effects of obsolescence, usage of the asset and
other economic factors (such as known technological
advances).

The Group reviews the useful life of PPE and intangibles at the
end of each reporting date and any changes could affect the
depreciation rates prospectively.

The Group also reviews its property, plant and equipment for
possible impairment if there are events or changes in
circumstances that indicate that the carrying value of the
assets may not be recoverable. In assessing the property,
plant and equipment for impairment, factors leading to
significant reduction in profits, such as the Group's business
plans and changes in regulatory environment are taken into
consideration.

(i) Contingencies and commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may
arise from litigation, taxation and other claims against the
Group. Where an outflow of funds is believed to be probable
and a reliable estimate of the outcome of the dispute can be
made based on management's assessment of specific
circumstances of each dispute and relevant external advice,
management provides for its best estimate of the liability. Such
liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in
the financial statements.

Although there can be no assurance regarding the final
outcome of the legal proceedings, the Group does not expect
them to have a materially adverse impact on the Group’s
financial position or profitability.

(iii) Actuarial Valuation

The determination of Group's liability towards defined benefit
obligation to employees is made through independent
actuarial valuation including determination of amounts to be
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss and in other
comprehensive income. Such valuation depend on
assumptions determined after taking into account inflation,
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors such as supply
and demand factors in the employment market.

(iv) FairValue measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group's assets and liabilities are measured at fair
value for financial reporting purposes. In estimating the fair
value of an asset or a liability, the Group uses market-
observable data to the extent it is available. Where Level 1
inputs are not available, the Group engages third party
valuers, where required, to perform the valuation. Information
about the valuation techniques and inputs used in determining
the fair value of various assets and liabilities are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.




(v) Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried
forward tax losses and unused tax credit

The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is
based on an assessment of the probability of the Group's
future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets
can be utilised. In addition significant judgement is required in
assessing the impact of any legal or economic limits.

1.C.16 PROVISION OF TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Company has a provision policy in place which provides
for quarterly review and provision as per the policy.

In case of subsidiary, the quantum of provision will be made
against trade receivables in the books of accounts as narrated
below:

Age of Debtors Amount of provisioning
Upto 2 Years No provision

More than 2 years and upto 3 years 20%

More than 3 years and upto 4 years 30%

More than 4 years 50%
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Amountin¥ Million
2. Property, Plant and Equipment
Particulars Freehold Office Office Air|  Furniture | Office Partition EDP | Plantand | Vehicles |Total Tangible
Buildings | Equipment | Conditioner |and fixtures & Cubicles | Equipments | Equipment Assets
Gross Block as at March 31,2018 41.20 14.40 4.60 18.70 9.30 24.20 881.40 | 29.10 1,022.90
Additions 5.79 5.25 0.19 1.19 0.00 24.49 182.35 1.99 221.26
Disposals 0.00 0.38 0.52 0.29 0.00 10.06 9.91 0.13 21.29
Gross Block as at March 31,2019 46.99 19.27 4.27 19.60 9.30 38.63 | 1,053.85| 30.97 1,222.87
Additions 3.12 2.09 0.69 0.51 0.74 37.98 238.95 1.70 285.78
Disposals 0.00 1.30 0.87 0.23 2.56 20.98 1.73 0.18 27.85
Gross Block as at March 31, 2020 50.10 20.06 4.09 19.88 7.48 55.63 | 1,291.07 | 32.49 1,480.80
Depreciation as at March 31, 2018 8.10 7.20 2.60 10.30 5.60 15.50 288.90 7.60 345.80
Charge for the year 249 2.87 0.45 1.27 0.33 440 125.23 3.76 140.81
Disposals 0.00 0.37 0.48 0.29 0.00 9.39 3.78 0.00 14.31
Depreciation as at March 31,2019 10.59 9.70 2.57 11.28 5.93 10.51 410.35 11.36 472.29
Charge for the year 2.89 2.66 0.28 1.03 0.38 943 136.81 3.73 157.21
Disposals 0.00 1.16 0.79 0.22 243 19.92 0.24 0.13 24.89
Depreciation as at March 31, 2020 13.48 11.19 2.06 12.09 3.88 0.02 546.92 | 14.97 604.61
Net book value as at March 31, 2019 36.40 9.57 1.70 8.32 337 28.12 643.50 | 19.60 750.58
Net book value as at March 31, 2020 36.62 8.87 2,03 7.79 3.60 55.61 74415 | 17.52 876.19
Particulars Capital Work in | Leasehold Land | Computer Software | Intangible Assests |Total Intangible Assets
Progress under Development including intangible
under development
Gross Block as at March 31, 2018 104.40 73.07 16.60 2.90 19.50
Additions 166.69 0.00 1.49 2.80 4.29
Disposals* 39.28 0.75 0.00 0.00 0.00
Gross Block as at March 31, 2019 231.81 72.32 18.09 5.70 23.79
Additions 86.60 0.00 15.39 0.00 15.39
Disposals* 24.99 0.75 0.08 5.70 5.78
Gross Block as at March 31, 2020 293.42 71.57 33.40 0.00 33.40
Depreciation as at March 31, 2018 0.00 0.00 6.20 0.00 6.20
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00 6.05 0.00 6.05
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Depreciation as at March 31, 2019 0.00 0.00 12.25 0.00 12.25
Charge for the year 0.00 0.00 8.94 0.00 8.94
Disposals 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Depreciation as at March 31, 2020 0.00 0.00 21.19 0.00 21.19
Net book value as at March 31, 2019 231.81 72.32 5.83 5.70 11.53
Net book value as at March 31, 2020 293.42 71.57 12.21 0.00 12.21
* Disposal of Leasehold land represents amortisation of Prepaid Lease Payment in Holding Company.
All Freehold buildings of Holding Company are under attachment by the order of DRT , Mumbai.
In case of Subsidiary estimated useful life of Excavators has been reviewed by the management considering used in Hot Slag handling or otherwise. The
change in estimate resulted additional depreciation of Rs.8.83 Million has been accounted for during FY. 2018-19.
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Amountin ¥ million

Particulars

No. of Shares

Amount (in ¥ Millions)

31st March 2020 | 31st March 2019

31st March 2020 |31st March 2019

(a) Investement in 50:50 Joint Venture Company

Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (Face Value Z10/- each) 18,600,000 | 18,600,000 186.00 | 186.00
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Opening Value of Investment 138.81 88.00
Investment During the Year - 80.00
Decrease in Value due to Current Perod Loss in JV shown in P/L (26.94) (29.07)
Decrease in Value due to Current Perod Loss in JV shown in OCI 0.20 (0.12)
Closing Balance of Investment 112.07 138.81
4 . Other financial assets (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Security deposits 10.42 10.56
(b) Other loans and advances
Loans to employees 42.00 45.32
(c) Interest accrued on loans to employees 0.30 0.51
(d) Term Deposits with original maturity of more than 12 months 295.75 216.03
Net other financial assets 348.47 272.42

4.1 In case of subsidiary, the 4(d) deposit includes ¥ 245.70 Millions ( Previous Year ¥ 216.00 Millions) pledged with Andhra
Bank and Indian Bank against Bank Guarantee & Overdraft facility.

5. Non-Currenttax assets

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Advance payment of Taxes 7,261.74 6,969.17
Less: Provision for Taxation 6,673.55 6,386.75
Net 588.19 582.42

Non-Current tax assets 588.19 582.42
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6. Other assets (Non Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(Unsecured, considered good)
(@) Advance with public bodies

(@) Customs, Excise, Sales Tax ,Port Trusts etc. 0.69 29.56
(b) Advance for Building Construction 23.66 27.88
(c) Prepaid Lease Payment Cost * 0.01 0.01
(d) Other loans and advances

(@) Prepaid expenses 1.70 1.32

(b)  Others 0.33 0.47
(e) Post Retirement benefit assets - -
Total Other assets 26.39 59.24

6.1 *The land on which the plant and building of the subsidiary company are situated at Rourkela, Burnpur, Bhilai, Bokaro Vizag, Durgapur & Duburi are neither
freehold nor leasehold. The group has acquired right of free use from landholders as a part of service agreement. The group has however, acquired
leasehold land from SAIL - BSP on perpetual lease of 33 years w.e.f 29th December 1988 on which the Registered Office Building of the subsidiary

company has been constructed.

7 . Deferred Tax Assests (Net)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets:

Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities

On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible assets (12.50) (8.29)
EFBS Scheme (0.64) (0.69)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax liabilities (13.14) (8.98)
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets

Provision for compensated absences, gratuity and other employee benefits 50.31 88.28
Allowance for doubtful debts / advances 1,767.29 1,858.80
Disallowances under Section 40(a)(i), 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961 150.38 137.92
On difference between book balance and tax balance of Property, Plant and Equipment 0.00 1.22
MAT credit Entitlement 304.16 337.82
Provision for claim payable to vendor against escalation claim 0.00 -
Provision for Interest on Service tax 0.96 1.33
Unabsorbed business losses 0.00 179.12
Through Other Comprehensive Income 37.00 19.80
Tax effect of items constituting deferred tax assets 2,310.10 2,624.29
Deferred tax (liabilities) / assets (net) 2,296.96 2,615.31
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Amount in ¥ million
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8. Inventories

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Stores and Spares parts including loose tools 61.23 43.42
(b) Stock of Non-Moving inventory 16.33 15.20
(c) Stores and Spares - Awaiting Disposal 2.60 2.60
(d) Inventory Shortage-Pending Adjustment 0.01 0.01
(e) Goods in Transit 0.01 0.12
(f) Stock of Printing & Stationary 1.06 0.98
(9) Inventory for Capital Project - 8.67
(h) Less: Provision

(1) for stock of non-moving 9.83 9.24

(2) for stores & spares - awaiting disposal 1.40 1.40

(3) for inventory shortage 0.01 0.01
Total Inventories 70.00 60.35

9. Trade receivables (Current)
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Trade receivables

(@) Secured, considered good 11,406.06 16,492.58
(@) Unsecured, considered good 3,114.43 2,204.68
(b) Credit Impaired 9,652.91 9,635.07

Less: Allowance for Doubtful trade receivables (expected credit loss allowance) 9,547.00 9,635.07

Total 14,626.40 18,697.26

9.1 Trade Receivables
Amount in  million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, Considered good 3696.75 3,572.73
Unsecured, Considered good 112713 502.34
Credit Impaired 9652.91 9,635.07
Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 9547.00 9,635.07
4,929.79 4,075.07
Trade Receivables outstanding for a period less than six months from the date they are due for payment
Secured, Considered good 7,709.31 12,919.85
Unsecured, Considered good 1,987.30 1,702.34
9,696.61 14,622.19
Total 14,626.40 18,697.26
9.2: Trade Receivables include an amount of ¥ 1478.20millions( prev year 1478.20 millions) on account of exports of Gold

Jewelleries undertaken by the Company during the year 2008-09. The said Receivables were purchased by Standard
Chartered Bank (SCB) under a Receivable Purchase Agreement . In terms of the said Agreement, SCB would purchase
the bills raised by MSTC on the foreign buyers on account of the exports made to such buyers and pay off MSTC 95% of
the bill amount and the foreign buyers would be making payments against the bills directly to SCB on the respective due
dates. The said export transactions for the Company were also insured by SCB along with MSTC as co-insured, with ICICI
Lombard General Insurance Company. On non-receipt of the proceeds of the bills on the due dates from the foreign
buyers, SCB claimed the amounts from the Insurance Company, who, however, wrongfully repudiated the claim of SCB.
On such repudiation, SCB unilaterally converted the receivables purchased by it from MSTC into debts of MSTC and filed
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the case being Original Application in the Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai. MSTC had been and is contesting the claims
of SCB before various forums including before the Hon’ble Bombay High Court, the DRT and DRAT, Mumbai including
the Misc. Appeal filed by MSTC against an interim Order dated 16th September 2017 passed by the DRT, Mumbai against
MSTC. SCB had filed a Summary Suit against ICICI Lombard for the recovery of the unrealised debts under the
insurance policy , before the Bombay High Court which is pending.Pending final disposal of such cases including the
Appeal Misc. Appeal filed by MSTC before the DRAT, Mumbai challenging the validity of the Order dated 16th
September 2017 passed by the DRT, Mumbai, the disputed claim of SCB against MSTC has been shown as Unsecured
Borrowings (vide note no 22 )and Trade Receivables, without adjustments, in the books of the Company for accounting
and disclosure purposes butare not acknowledged as debts .

Trade receivables are generally secured either by way of stocks pledged by the customers with the Company or Bank
Gurantees or by liability where there is back to back arrangement with the associate suppliers. In case there is a
significant depletion in realizable value of such pledged stock against the book value of the corresponding receivables,
the differentialamount has been shown under ‘Unsecured’.

Trade Receivable includes ¥ 988.30 million (Previous year ¥ 1096.47 million) due from M/s Jai Balaji Industries Ltd. for
procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of present outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years.
During the last financial year an amount of ¥ 108.19 million (net) has been realized from the party. There exists a
provision of ¥ 315.70 million against the receivables. In terms of provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for
this party.

Trade Receivable includes ¥ 1037 million (Previous year ¥ 1037 million) due from M/s Topworth Steels & Power Pvt. Ltd.
(“the Customer”, hereinafter ) for procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of the present outstanding is overdue
for a period of more than three years. The Provisional Liquidator appointed by the Hon’ble Bombay High Court in the
Winding Up petition filed by MSTC against the Customer, had taken over the control of the affairs of the Customer in
terms of the earlier orders of the High Court. On an application filed by the Director/promoter of the Customer/Company in
the said Winding Up petition filed by MSTC, the High Court allowed the application of the Director/promoter, transferring,
subject to specified conditions, the pending Winding Up petition filed by MSTC to the NCLT, Mumbai where the State
Bank of India, a financial creditor of the Customer has filed an application under Section 7 of IB Code, 2016 against the
Customer for initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution process against it . Accordingly, MSTC has filed its claim before
the NCLT, Mumbai on 22/11/2019. The application of SBI was allowed by the NCLT, Mumbai by its Order dated
29/01/2020, ordering the start of moratorium, appointment of the Interim Resolution Professional(IRP). IRP so appointed
had issued public notice inviting claims from the creditors against the Customer and MSTC had duly re-submitted its
Proof of Claim with the IRP. Placed in the position as aforestated , the chances of recovery being doubtful, an amount of
917 million has so far been provided in the books due to uncertainties in realization of the Trade Receivables.In terms of
provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for this party.

Trade Receivable includes 378 Million (Previous year ¥ 378 Million) due from M/s Crest Steel & Power Pvt. Ltd. for
procuring and supply of materials. Entire amount of present outstanding is overdue for a period of more than three years.
The party has been referred to NCLT under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code. RP has been appointed to take over the
management control. MSTC also filed its claim before RP. There exists a provision of ¥ 299 Million against the
receivables. In terms of provisioning policy no further provisioning is required for this party.

Trade Receivables include ¥ 6537.58 Million ,against business done in facilitator mode(net of provision) ( Previous Year
39074.44 Million).

Trade Receivables include (net of provision) ¥ 695.00 Millions (Previous Year ¥ 613.09 Million), against E-Commerce
business (net of provision).

10.Cash and Cash Equivalents

Amount in ¥ million

(@)
(b)

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand 0.00 0.06
Balances with banks
(1) In Current Account 606.76 962.15

Total 606.76 962.21




11.Bank balances other than Cash & cash equivalents

R

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Earmarked Balances with banks

(i) In Unclaimed dividend account 8.03 10.48

(i) Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months 1,7117.11 3,194.24

Total 1,725.14 3,204.72

11.1  The a(ii) deposits include ¥ 424.65 Million ( Previous Year ¥ 2288.93 Million) pledged with banks against over draft facility.

Margin against guarantee ¥ 106.24 Million ( Previous Year ¥ 105.93 Million).

11.2  In case of subsidiary, the a(ii) deposits includes ¥ 338.19 Million (Previous Year ¥ 367.77 Million) pledged with Bank of
Baroda, IDBI, Indian Bank and Andhra Bank against Bank Guarantee and Overdraft facility.

12. Other financial assets (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Security deposits 115.87 354.43
(b) Other loans and advances

(1) Loans to employees 5.49 5.92

(2) Recoverable Advances to employees 5.22 5.46

(3) Receivable from vendors / contractors / third party 6.49

(4) Other Advances 1.81 3.21
(c) Interest accrued on

(1) Term deposits 96.95 113.84

(2) Loans to employees 0.08 0.17
Net Loans and advances 231.91 483.03

13 .Other assets (Current)
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Advance with public bodies

(1) Customs, Excise, Sales Tax ,Port Trusts etc. 50.70 64.04
(b) Prepaid Lease Payments Cost

(1) Prepaid Lease Payments Cost 0.01 0.03
(c) Other loans and advances

(1) Advances to employees 18.92 17.58

(2) Advances to suppliers and service providers 242 2.40

(3) Prepaid expenses 2411 20.19

(4) Others 0.06 0.06
Total Other assets 96.22 104.30
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14 . Share Capital

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Authorised:
15,00,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 1,500.00 1,500.00
1,500.00 1,500.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid up :
704,00,000 Ordinary Shares of ¥ 10 each 704.00 704.00
704.00 704.00
14(a)(i) Statement of Reconciliation of Shares Outstanding
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Number Face Value |  Amount Number | Face Value Amount
(Rs.) (Rs. Million) (Rs.) (Rs. Million)
Opening Shares Outstanding 70,400,000 10 704.00 35,200,000 10 352.00
Add:
Issue of Bonus Shares 35,200,000 10 352.00
Closing Shares Outstanding 70,400,000 10 704.00 70,400,000 10 704.00

14(a)(ii)Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares.

The Company has only one class of ordinary shares (‘'Equity Shares') having a par value of ¥ 10 each. Each holder of ordinary
shares ('Equity Shareholders') is entitled to one vote per share and are entitled to dividend and to participate in surplus, if any,

in the event of winding up.

14(a)(iii) : 88,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2016-17 in the ratio of 1:1
14(a)(iv) : 1,76,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2017-18 in the ratio of 1:1
14(a)(v) : 3,52,00,000 bonus shares have been issued during F.Y 2018-19 in the ratio of 1:1

14(a)(vi) : Details of shareholders holding more than 5% of share holding

Name of the Shareholder 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
No. of shares held % of holding | No. of shares held | % of holding
President of India 45580800 64.75% 45580800 64.75%
Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) 6716279 9.54% 7026976 9.98%

The Government of India has divested its 25.10 % stake in MSTC Ltd through IPO during March 2019. Equity shares of MSTC
Limited are listed and traded on both BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited w.e.f. March 29, 2019. Change in

shareholding pattern post IPO is as following:

Shareholders Pre IPO% Post IPO%
Government of India 89.85% 64.75%
Other 10.15% 35.25%
Total 100.00% 100.00%
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Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Capital Reserve

Opening balance 341.60 341.60

Closing Balance 341.60 341.60
General Reserve

Opening balance 6,482.50 6,482.50

Closing Balance 6,482.50 6,482.50
Retained Earnings

Opening balance (3,648.41) 133.20

Add: Profit for the year 970.14 (3,071.04)

Other Comprehensive income for the year (98.13) (44.55)

Less: Final Dividend: FY 17-18 - 260.48

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 17-18 (on final) - 53.54

Less: Dividend Distribution Tax: FY 18-19 (on final) 12.48 -

Less: Issue of Bonus Shares - 352.00

Closing Balance (2,788.88) (3,648.41)
Total Other Equity 4,035.22 3,175.69

16. Trade Receivables (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Trade Receivables

(1) Unsecured, considered good - -

(2) Unsecured, considered doubtful 1.14 117

(3) Less: Provision for doubtful trade receivables 1.14 117
Total Trade Receivables 0.00 0.00

17 .Trade payables (Non Current)
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Creditors for supplies and services

- Dues to micro and small enterprises - -

- Others 2.64 2.64
Total trade payables 2.64 2.64

As at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019, there are no outstanding dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. There is no interest due or outstanding

on the same.

18 . Other financial liabilities (Non Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Liability under EFBS Scheme 5.70 7.45
Total other financial liabilities 5.70 7.45




T e ,_|-' :.:I mEEd
fafire LIMITED
N AN WP agTe i Dt - rechis Enieprism

MSTC

19 -Provisions (Non Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Defined benefit Obligations
(i) Employees Family Benefit Scheme 65.05 55.41
(ii) Gratuity 93.19 74.62
(2) Retirement Benefit Obligations
(i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit 395.27 288.31
(ii) Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit 21.80 17.49
(iii) Employees Settlement Benefit Scheme 3.29 414
(3) Other employee benefits
(i) Leave Encashment Benefit 248.74 265.71
(i) Long Service Awards 0.56 0.55
(b) Other Provisions
Claim Payable to vendor for escalation claim - 0.00
Total Provisions 827.90 706.23
20. Other liabilities (Non Current)
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
()  Advance from customers 63.25 64.56
(i) Others 0.00 15.99
Total Other liabilities 63.25 80.55
21 -Borrowings (Non Current)
Amount in ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Secured Borrowings
House Building Loan from SBI 3391 9.35
Total 33.91 9.35

The amount represents the loan obtained from State Bank of India for the construction of Office Building of Holding Company at Newtown, Rajarhat kolkata. Out
of the total sanctioned amount of ¥ 300 Million, Z 60.76 Million has been disbursed on 29/09/2018 and ¥ 73.23 Million has been disbursed on 29/02/2020 which
shall be repaid in Quarterly Installments of ¥ 12.50 Million commencing from 30th June 2019. The amount is secured by way of mortgage of the proposed office
building. The loan is repayable is 24 Quarterly EMI commencing from 30th June 2019 and last installment falling due on 31st March 2025. Interest is computed
on daily balance method and is payable on monthly rest basis from the date of disbursement. Prepayment charges as applicable shall be payable in case of
prepayment of Term loan installments.
22 .Borrowings (Current)
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
A. Secured Borrowings
(@) Repayable on Demand
(1) From Banks

(i) Working Capital Demand Loans# 79411 2,851.21

(i) Overdraft against lien on FDR* 271.61 1,799.74

(b) House Building Loan from Bank (Refer Note No.21) 50.69 50.00
Total Secured Borrowings 1,116.41 4,700.95

B. Unsecured Borrowings
(a) Repayable on Demand
From Banks 1,436.20 1,436.20
Total Unsecured Borrowings 1,436.20 1,436.20
Total Borrowings 2,552.61 6,137.15




#

*

Loan from Indian Overseas Bank (I0B) amounting to ¥ 13.8 Million : (lying since 19.9.2011)This amount represents legal fees paid by the bank in
defending their claims to which the Company has lodged its protest with the Bank. MSTC has filed a case in Hon'ble High Court of Calcutta against 10B
for ¥365.6 Million (whichincludes ¥ 279.8 Million towards debit of LC value & ¥ 85.8 Million as debit towards legal expenses).

The above amount represents Rs. 1436.20 million (Previous year X 1436.20 million) towards payment made by Standard Chartered Bank (SCB), after
purchase of export bills of MSTC raised on foreign buyers against export of Gold Jewelleries to the buyers during 2008-09, under a Receivable Purchase
Agreement. Under the said Agreement, SCB paid 95% of the value of export bills to MSTC and the foreign buyers on whom the bills were raised by MSTC
would be paying against the bills directly to SCB on respective due dates mentioned in the bills. Payment failures, if any from the foreign buyers against
the bills raised by MSTC was covered by SCB through an insurance Policy taken from ICICI Lombard General Insurance Company with MSTC as co-
insured. On non receipt of the proceeds from the foreign buyers against the bills, SCB submitted claims with the Insurance Company, who, however,
wrongfully repudiated the claim of SCB. Thereafter, SCB converted the receivables purchased from MSTC under the Receivables Purchase Agreement
into loans / debts as if owing by MSTC, claimed the amount from MSTC and filed a case, being the Original Application in the Debt Recovery Tribunal,
Mumbai(DRT) in the year 2012, which MSTC has denied and disputed. The validity of the claim of SCB in such proceedings including against an Interim
Order passed by the DRT, Mumbai on 16th September, 2017 have been challenged by MSTC by filing a Misc. Appeal before the Debt Recovery Appellate
Tribunal, Mumbai, which are currently pending. Other proceedings challenging the claim of SCB are also pending before various forums including the
Hon’ble High Court, Bombay and in the Civil Court at Alipore, Kolkata initiated by MSTC both against SCB and the Insurance Company. Subsequently,
SCB also filed a Summary Suit in late 2012 in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court against ICICI Lombard claiming the same amount under the Policy from
ICICI Lombard on account of the repudiation of the claim of SCB by ICICI Lombard. The claim of SCB is contingent upon the outcome of the legal cases.
Pending final disposal of all such court cases where the matters are currently pending, MSTC has disclosed the amount simultaneously as Unsecured
Borrowings and as Trade Receivables (vide Note no - 9.2) without adjustments. For accounting and disclosure purposes but are not acknowledged as
debts.  Appropriate disclosure has been made as contingent liabilities for the interest claimed by SCB on the above mentioned amount of claim as per
INDAS-37.

Secured against CurrentAssets .

Secured by lien on FDR currentyear695.02 Millions (Previous Year< 2,288.93 Million).

23.Trade payables (Current)

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Creditors for supplies and services

- Dues to micro and small enterprises 0.75 0.48

- Others # 6,297.86 9,317.40

- Accrued wages and salaries™ 238.16 205.59

Total trade payables 6,536.77 9,523.47

* ltincludes ¥ 28.06 Millionin FY 2019-20 ( Previous Year ¥ 25.36 Million) towards provision for pension benefit of employees,and ¥ 47.36 Million in FY
2019-20 ( Previous Year ¥ 47.27 Million) towards wage revision of the employees due from 01.01.2017.In case of Subidiary (FSNL) itincludes ¥ 95.66
Millionin FY 2019-20 ( Previous Year ¥ 72.19 Million) towards wage revision of the employees due from 01.01.2017.

# Trade Payable includes ¥ 484.32 Million (Previous YearZ 996.79 Million) backed by Letter of credit.

As atMarch 31, 2020 there is no interest outstanding to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises. As at March 31, 2019 there were no outstanding dues to Micro,

Smalland Medium Enterprises.

24 . Other financial liabilities (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Interest payable
(i) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 788.90 788.90
(i) Interest accrued and due on borrowings 0.00 0.13
(b) Unclaimed dividends 8.03 10.48
(c) Creditors for other liabilities
(i) Security deposits/EMD 4,690.98 3,718.01
(i) Deposits received from customers 1,109.14 2,788.70
(iii) Deposit under EFBS 8.27 12.76
(iv) Payable under EFBS Deposit schemes 1.89 2.67
(v) Others 8.91 7.97
Total other financial liabilities 6,616.12 7,329.62
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25 . Provisions (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Provision for employee benefits
(1) Defined benefit Obligations
(i) Employee Family Benefit Scheme 19.06 14.33
(2) Retirement Benefit Obligations
(i) Post Retirement Medical Benefit 9.19 17.73
(ii) Contributory Post Retirement Medical Benefit 1.24 1.02
(iiiy Employees Settlement Benefit Scheme 0.26 0.27
(3) Other employee benefits
(i) Leave Encashment Benefit 17.23 12.97
(i) Long Service Awards 0.13 0.16
(i) Wage Revision 262.16 166.49
(iv) Additional Resource Generation Scheme payable to Non-executives 6.43 5.92
(v) Prerformance Related Pay
For 2017-18 0.00 1.70
For 2018-19 16.46 17.50
For 2019-20 20.56 0.00
(vi) Gratuity Payable 0.00 0.00
(vii) Pension Scheme 0.00 59.40
(4) Provident Fund # 2517 0.00
(b) Other Provisions* 25.26 16.97
Total Provisions 403.15 314.46

*

Other Provisions includes accident claim, demand raised by MV, etc. in case of subsidiary company.

# This represents the provision for ¥ 25.17 Million (Previous Year - Nil ) towards the contribution for deficit in income of PF Trust for the FY 2019-20

(Refer Note No. - 41)
26. Other liabilities (Current)

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(i)  Statutory Dues

(a) Sales tax and VAT payable - 97.31

(b) Service Tax & GST payable 124.22 69.29

(c) Tax deducted and collected at source 2491 62.94

(d) Provident Fund and Pension 17.30 17.19

(e) Pension for Executive 15.38 0.00

(f) Others 0.15 0.17
(i) Advance from customers 39.81 37.58
Total Other liabilities 221.77 284.48

27 . Assets classified as held for sale
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Property, Plant and Equipment 29.60 30.76
(b) Liabilities associated with asset held for sale 8.46 1.98

(1) Asset classified as held for sale is classified under "Current Assets" at their written down value since these assets have already been retired from
normal continuing operations and is held only for sale / auction. Further, where management expects that any part of the said assets is likely to be
disposed off written off within one year on the Balance Sheet date, the same are classified as current assets.

(2)  Amount deposited by H1 bidder but asset / sub-assemblies not lifted on reporting date is considered under "Liabilities directly associated with asset
held for sale".
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Amount in T million

aw

28 . Revenue from operations

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Sale of Goods 5,703.60 25,683.00
(b) Service Charges 1,903.47 2,645.13
(c) Other Operating Revenues 699.73 941.85
(d) Processing of scrap & other items 4,007.19 3,648.29
(e) Service related to valuation of assets 0.00 1.70

Total Revenue from Operations 12,313.99 32,919.97

(@) During the year, anamount 0fZ48.12 Million ( Previous Year¥55.54 Million ) was collected towards E-auction Registration. Out of total collection of current
year, an amount of ¥ 38.50 Million ( Previous Year X 44.42 Million) has been kept in liabilities to be distributed in subsequent four years, since related
registration is valid for life long. Accumulated undistributed balance standing as on 31.03.2020is ¥ 103.07 Million (Previous Year ¥102.14 Million). Balance
amount for which registration is valid upto one yearis accounted for as income during the current period.

=
o
-

Other Operating Revenues also include Interest from customers ¥586.73 Million in currentyear ( Previous YearZ 851.17 Million) .

o
(2
-

Tax deducted at source on Service Charge and Interest income of Holding Company amounts to ¥ 126.67 Million in current year ( Previous Year¥ 175.11
Million).

29.0Otherincome

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Interestincome

(1) Intereston FDR 140.85 424.50

(2) Interest on Employee Advances 3.23 3.34
(b) Provision no longer required written back 482.51 29.58
(c) Sale of Sub-assemblies 1.01 1.1
(d) Profit on Sale of Assets 0.47 0.46
(e) Liquidated damages and other recoveries 2.68 1.75
(f) Miscellaneous income 15.24 22.51
Total Other Income 645.99 483.25

29.1 Tax deducted at source from interest on bank deposits of Holding company amounted to X 7.54 Million (Previous Year X 34.57 Million ).

30.Purchases of Stock-in-Trade

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(a) Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 5,663.12 25,426.34
(b) Lancing Tubes 4.92 449
c) Oxygen & Acetylene . .
(c) O & Acetyl 29.98 26.84
(d) Lubricants 14.51 14.74
(e) Diesel & Gasolene 295.11 302.91
tores are Parts . .
f S & Spare P 133.19 123.96
(9) Water, Power, Fuel 11.15 15.00
Total 6,151.98 25,914.28
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31. Employee Benefit Expense

Amount in ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Salaries and wages, including bonus 1,502.96 1,393.47
(b) Contribution to provident and other funds
(1) Provident Fund 148.82 151.94
(c) Staff welfare expenses 176.27 144.72
Total Employee Benefit Expense 1,828.05 1,690.13
32.Finance costs
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Interest expense
(1) Interest on Short term borrowings 230.38 121.31
(2) Interest Paid to Customers 56.70 456.03
(3) Interest on account of EFBS Deposits 0.14 0.71
Total finance costs 287.22 578.05




33.Otherexpenses

R

MSTC

ﬂ LIMITED
METC 5k Gt -2 il il

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(@) Repairs and Maintainance for

(i) Machinery 87.53 68.96

(i) Building 3.74 8.66

(iii) Others 46.11 31.03
(b) EDP Expenses 14.73 12.87
(c) Insurance charges 11.21 11.69
(d) Rent 35.03 35.89
(e) Rates and taxes 10.83 11.54
(f) Bank Charges 8.18 72.45
(9) Travelling Expenses 3347 47.24
(h) Foreign Travelling Expenses - 453
(i) Car Hire Charges 12.70 12.41
(i) Meeting and Conference 5.44 12.52
(k) Training 5.26 2.38
(I) Directors' Sitting Fees 1.25 0.99
(m) Statutory Auditors' Remuneration

(i) Audit Fees 1.14 1.17

(i) Tax Audit Fees 0.14 0.14

(iii) Out-of-Pocket Expenses 0.72 0.53
(n) Telex, Postage and Telegram 4.09 5.20
(0) Electricity 11.47 11.42
(p) Printing and Stationery 7.44 7.40
(q) Entertainment 2.02 2.70
(r) Telephone Charges 518 4.94
(s) Advertisement 7.44 26.18
(t) Legal Expenses 18.47 9.41
(u) Consultancy Charges 10.79 14.57
(v) Internal Audit fees 0.28 0.20
(w) Out-of-Pocket Expenses (Internal Auditor) 0.63 0.48
(x) Miscellaneous Expenses 37.32 37.86
(y) Staff Recruitment Expenses 0.71 3.76
(z) Newspaper, Books and Periodicals 0.24 0.25
(aa) Corporate Social Responsibility (Refer Note No - 42) 11.71 26.68
(ab) Auction Tender Expenses 9.99 1.40
(ac) Cost of services through outside agency/Equipment rent 1,510.41 1,376.45
(ad) Hiring of manpower for operational activities 88.29 76.65
(ae) Security Services 43.20 35.96
(af) Expenses for Custodian Services - 1.84
(ag) Expenses for Valuation Services - 0.50
(ah) Bad Debts Written off 373.99 1,100.81
(ai) Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Advances/Debts * 387.36 4,320.02
(aj) Stock Yard Expenses 9.80 14.51
(ak) Freight 4.75 4.33
(al) Loss of written off / Sale of Fixed Assets 0.84 0.03
(am) Provision for Assets Awaiting for Disposal 7.56 -
(an) Plot Rent 0.75 0.75
Total Other Expenses 2,832.21 7,419.30
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*Notes on Allowance for Bad and Doubtful Advances/Debts

1) The Holding Company has formulated Provisioning policy on Trade Receivables which has been implemented from the third quarter accounts ending
31stDecember 2019. Party wise provisions made under the Provisioning policy on Trade Receivables for the F.Y. 2019-20 are as under : (% Million)

Party Balance as on 31.03.2020 | Balance as on 31.03.2019 | Cumulative Provision under Policy
Balasore Alloys Ltd. 166.13 2434 19.71

Maa Mahamaya Industries Ltd. 104.1 153.77 11.55

Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd. 432.37 556.6 308.65

2) In case of Holding Company Trade Receivable includes ¥ 432.37 Million (Previous year ¥ 556.60 Million) due from M/s Rohit Ferro Tech Ltd. for
procuring and supply of materials. During the year during physical verification of pledged stock huge shortages were noticed. Necessary steps have
been taken against the same. In terms of provisioning policy ¥ 308.65 Million has been provided for this shortages in pledged stock against this
receivable. The company has been referred to NCLT by a petition filed by one of its creditors namely SBI under section 7 of IBC. Accordingly the
management of the affairs of the Corporate Debtor has been taken over by IRP. Oninvitation from IRP, MSTC has filed its claim.

Note 34 (a) . Statement of Opening Stock, Purchases, Sales and Closing Stock of Holding Company for the year ended 31st

March 2020
(Qty ‘000 MT/MTR) Amountin ¥ million

Description of material Opening Stock Purchases Sales Closing Stock
Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value Qty Value
Coke / Coal 2019-20 - - 548.92mt |  2,398.94 548.92 mt 2417.77 - -
2018-19 - - 132847 mt | 19,126.43 132847 mt | 19,343.70 - -
Pipes & Tubes 2019-20 - - 4413 3,261.69 4413 3,283.34 - -
2018-19 - - 331.42mtr | 6,299.91 331.42 mtr 6,339.30 - -
2019-20 - - 5,660.63 - 5,701.11 - -
2018-19 - - 25,426.34 - | 25,683.00 - -
Add : 2019-20 Final Bill Adjustment 249 - 249 - -
2018-19 - - - - -
Closing 2019-20 - 5,663.12 - 5,703.60 - -
2018-19 - 25,426.34 - | 25,683.00 - -
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Note 34 (b) . In addition to above the Holding Company have also purchased material as facilitator as per details below:

(Qty ‘000 MT/MTR) Amountin T million

aw

Description of material Qty Purchase Value Service Charges Earned
Coke / Coal 2019-20 132.33 236.85 4.40
2018-19 1,314.85 11,929.31 158.99
Iron Ore / Pellete 2019-20 - - -
2018-19 8,071.48 24,958.36 291.05
Tower 2019-20 3.97 93.61 0.94
2018-19 - - -
Misc ltems 2019-20 396.26 642.79 11.05
2018-19 901.95 1,712.02 17.60
TMT Bar 2019-20 2,942.83 2,094.74 30.51
2018-19 257.69 5,845.65 63.03
Chrome Ore 2019-20 17.65 1,430.64 13.19
2018-19 88.43 789.24 7.92
Channel 2019-20 2219 1,045.13 9.02
2018-19 56.83 2,067.87 16.66
Electrical Equipment/Project Materials 2019-20 364.00 315.85 3.18
2018-19 161.71 3,268.25 47.31
Total 2019-20 3,879.23 5,859.61 72.29
2018-19 10,852.94 50,570.70 602.56

Note 34 (c) . Segmental Reporting as perIndAS 108:

In terms of IndAS 108 the Group has identified Marketing, E-Commerce and Scrap Recovery & Allied Jobs as its three Primary
Reportable Business Segments. There is no Secondary Segment.

Amountin ¥ million

Particulars Marketing E-Commerce Others Scrap Recovery |  Total
(unallocated) & Allied Jobs

Total Revenue 2019-20 6,463.57 2,019.72 377.82 4,098.87 12,959.98
2018-19 27,482.79 2,133.26 5.01 3,782.16 33,403.22

Total Expenses 2019-20 6,295.15 24.71 1,334.16 3,638.53 11,292.55
2018-19 31,500.77 16.24 887.50 3,373.18 35,777.69

Profit/(Loss) before Tax 2019-20 168.42 1,995.01 (956.34) 460.34 1,667.43
2017-18 (4,017.98) 2,117.02 (882.49) 408.98 (2,374.47)

Tax expenses 2019-20 697.29
2018-19 696.57

Profit/(Loss) for the year 2019-20 970.14
2018-19 (3,071.04)

Assets and liabilities used in the Group's business are not identified to any of the reportable segments,as these are used interchangably between the
segments. Hence the Management believes, that it is currently not practicable to provide segment disclosure related to assets and liabilities.

Information about major customers
The revenues from tranactions with a single external customer amounting to 10 per cent or more of the entity's revenues are given below:-
Amountin ¥ million

Major Customer (Customer having more than 10% revenue) 2019-20 2018-19
Total Revenue 6293.32 25683.00
No. of Customers 2 3
% of Total Revenue 48.56 78.00
Product Segment Marketing and Scrap Marketing and Scrap

Recovery & Allied Jobs Recovery & Allied Jobs
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35(a) Expenditure incurredin Foreign Currency :

Amount in T million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Import of Goods 201.25 21,800.77
Travelling Expenses & other 0.00 1.36
Total 201.25 21,802.13

35 (b)Earnings inForeign Currency:
Amountin ¥ million

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
E auction Registration fees 0.00 0.42
Total 0.00 0.42

36. Contingent Liabilities & Commitments
(a) ContingentLiabilities
Amountin ¥ million

SINo. Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
1 Sales Tax & Customs 327.82 351.48
2 Money Suits 1567.84 1,468.91
3 Arbitration 3.02 3.02
4 Legal Expense 0.00 -
5 Income Tax 26.57 240.38
6 Service Tax 792.25 793.53
7 Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt 13.59 6.29
8 Outstanding Bank Guarantees 146.95 137.23

Total 2878.04 3,000.84
(b) Commitments
Amountin ¥ million

SINo. Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
1 Construction of New Office Building at New town Kolkata 160.92 101.47
2 Estimated amounts of contracts remaining to be executed on capital

account and not provided for (net of advances) 7.97 55.17
Total 168.89 156.64
37.TaxExpenses
(i) Income Tax Recognised in the Statement of Profitand Loss
Amountin ¥ million
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Current Tax
- For the period 306.85 498.41
- For earlier years 54.90 0.93
(2) Deferred Tax 335.54 197.23
Total income tax expense recognised in the current year 697.29 696.57




R

(i)  Theincome tax expense for the period can be reconciled to the accounting profit (loss) as follows:

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
(1) Profit before tax for the year 1,667.43 (2,374.47)
(2) Income tax expense calculated at 34.944 % in Holding Company and
25.168% in Subsidiary Company (FSNL) 568.31 -
(3) Effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 16.63 274.02
(4) Effect of income that is exempt from tax 34.28 19.96
(5) Effect on deferred tax due to change in income tax rate @34.944% To
25.168% (In case of Subsidiary Company - FSNL) 2317 -
(6) Tax for earlier years 54.90 0.93
(7) Carry Forward of Business Loss 179.12
(8) Reversal of MAT credit - 222.54
697.29 696.57

In case of Holding Company tax rate used for the year 2019-20 and 2018-19 in the reconciliations above is the corporate tax rate of
34.944% (30% plus surcharge @ 12% and education cess @ 4 %) payable by corporate entities in India on taxable profits under the
Indian tax law. For Deferred Tax calculation of financial year 2019-20, income tax rate of 34.944% (30% plus surcharge @ 12% and
education cess @ 4 %).

However the Holding company has a MAT credit of ¥ 304.16 Million ( Previous Year -3 337.82 Million)for which company is entitled to
creditin next asseessment years against tax payable on income for those years. The Company feels that it will earn sufficient profitin
coming years. Accordingly deferred tax assets has been recognised for carry forward of MAT credit entitlement. However no
Deffered tax asset has been created on the provision for Doubtful Debts 0f ¥.339.91 Million (Previous Year -3 4140.22 Million) as a
conservative approach.

The Holding company has opted for Vivad Se Vishwas Scheme (VSVS) as per "The Direct Tax Vivad Se Vishwas Act 2020" for AY
2009-10 and AY 2015-16 and deposited ¥ 5.42 Million and ¥ 4.83 Million respectively. Accordingly differential provision has been
made in the books for that years.

The Holding Company has not adopted new Income Tax Rate specified under section 115BAA and it continued to apply normal
Income Tax Rate.

Subsidiary Company (Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited) has opted for the tax rates specified under section 115BAA at lower rates and has
considered @ 25.168% for the purpose of these results. Due to change in tax rate there is reduction in tax liability by ¥ 34.16 Million in
Subsidiary Comapny during the F.Y. 2019-20.

(iii) Disclosure interms of IndAS-8
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Particulars 31st March 2019
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the company reported earlier 745.81
Adjustments for Prior period items:

MAT credit reversed in Tax Expenses (222.54)
MAT credit reversed in Deffered Tax Assets 222.54
Total Comprehensive Income attributable to owners of the company reported 745.81
Deferred Tax Assets 3,038.30
Adjustment for MAT credit reversal (222.54)
Net 2,815.76
Non Current Tax Assets 349
Adjustment for MAT credit reversal 222.54
Net 571.54
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(iv) Movementin Deferred Tax

Particulars 31st March 2019 Chargel/ (credit) 31st March 2020
for the Year

Through Profit or Loss

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Employee Family Benefit SchemeProperty Plant & Equipment and

Intangible Assests and Others 8.98 416 13.14

8.98 4.16 13.14

Deferred Tax Assets

Property Plant & Equipment Others 1.22 (1.22) -

Provison against other expenses 226.20 (25.51) 200.69

Allowances for Doubtful Debts & Advances 1,858.80 (91.51) 1,767.29

Allowances for Doubtful Claims Receivable - -

Provision for Vendor Escalation - -

Unabsorbed business losses 179.12 (179.12) -

Others 1.33 (0.37) 0.96

MAT credit entitlement 337.82 (33.66) 304.16

Net Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,604.49 (331.38) 2,273.10

Total Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,595.51 (335.54) 2,259.96

Through Other Comprehensive Income

Deferred Tax Assets

Remeasurement of Defined Benefit Plan 19.80 17.20 37.00

Gross Deferred Tax (Liabilities)/ Assets 2,615.31 (318.34) 2,296.96

38.Earnings per Share

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Profit for the period 970.14 (3,071.04)
Profit attributable to Shareholders 970.14 (3,071.04)
Weighted average No. of Shares for Basic EPS 70,400,000 70,400,000
Nominal value of Ordinary Shares (Z) 10.00 10.00
Basic/Diluted Earnings per Share (% Per Share) 13.78 (43.62)

39. Disclosures on financial instruments

This section gives an overview of the significance of financial instruments for the Group and provides additional information on
balance sheet items that contain financial instruments. The details of significant accounting policies, including the criteria for
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are recognized, in respect of each class of
financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are disclosed in note to the consolidated financial statements.

(1) Categories of Financial Instruments

The following table presents carrying amount and fair value of each category of financial assets and liabilities as at the year end.
Carrying value is equivalent to the fair value.
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Financial assets 31st March 2020 31st March 2019 Measured at
3 in Millions < in Millions

Trade Receivables 14626.40 18697.26 Amortised cost

Other Financial Assets 580.38 755.45 Amortised cost

Cash and Cash Equivalents 606.76 962.21 Amortised cost

Other Bank Balances 1725.14 3204.72 Amortised cost

Investments 112.07 138.81 Amortised cost

Total Financial Assets 17650.75 23758.45

Financial Liabilities

Borrowings 2586.52 6146.50 Amortised cost

Trade Payables 6538.66 9525.63 Amortised cost

Other Financial Liabilities 6621.81 7337.07 Amortised cost

Total Financial Liabilities 15747.00 23009.20

(2) Capital Management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group is able to continue as going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance.The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements.

(3) Financial risk management objectives

The Group's Corporate Treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic and international
financial markets, monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group . These risks include market risk
(like- currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. Compliance with policies and exposure limits
is reviewed by the internal auditors on a continuous basis. The Group does not enter into or trade of financial instruments, including
derivative financial instruments, for speculative purposes.

(a) MarketRisk

The Group's activities exposes it, primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. On a case to
case basis, the Group enters into Forward foreign exchange contracts to hedge the exchange rate risk.

(a) Interestrate risk management

At present Group has converted maximum of its loan to MCLR based, hence the rate is firm for a contract period usually for
ayear. Further Interest on Overdraft facility is linked with interest of Fixed deposits, which are usually firm for one year.

(b) Foreign Currency risk management

The foreign currency exposure of the Group is due to import liabilities. Transactions are on back to back basis with
customers . The gain and loss if any is passed on to the customers. Some times forward cover is taken to hedge the
related foreign currency exposure in terms of discussion with the customers. Wherever foreign exchange fluctuations are
to be borne by the customers as per agreement with them, foreign exchange gain/loss are not recognized in the books of
the Group.

(b) Creditrisk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The
Group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy counterparties , where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The Group only transact with entities that are rated by agencies where available and if not available , the
Group uses other publicly available financial information and its own past records to rate its major customers. The Group's exposure
and the credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored and the aggregated value of transactions concluded is spread amongst
approved counterparties . Credit exposure is controlled by counterparty limits that are reviewed and approved by the Senior
management committee.

(c) Liquidity risk management

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking facilities and reserve borrowing facilities, by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows,and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liablities.
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The table below provides details regarding the contractual undiscounted cash obligations of financial liabilities including estimated
interest payments as at March 31,2020, asat March 31,2019.

Financial Liabilities 31st March 2020
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
< in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million
Borrowings 2,586.52 2,586.52 2,552.61 33.91 -
Trade payables 6,538.66 6,538.66 6,538.66 - 2.64
Other financial liabilities 6,621.81 6,623.64 6,623.64 154.62 51.12
15,747.00 15,748.83 15,714.92 188.53 53.76
Financial Liabilities 31st March 2019
Carrying Contractual less than between More than
amount cash flows 1 year 1-5years 5 years
< in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million < in Million
Borrowings 6,146.50 6,147.91 6,137.15 10.76 -
Trade payables 9,525.63 9,525.63 9,522.99 2.64 -
Other financial liabilities 7,337.07 7,337.07 7,326.87 7.90 2.30
23,009.20 23,010.61 22,987.01 21.30 2.30

(4) Fairvalue Measurement

None of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period.

40. Related Party Disclosures

(i) Name of the related parties and description of relationship:

1)

2)

Joint Venture

Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited
Key Managerial Personnel

Sri Surinder Kumar Gupta(From 17.12.2019)"
SriBambahadur Singh(Upto 30.11.2019)"

Sri Subrata Sarkar

SriA.KBasu(From 01.04.2018 To 30.11.2018)"
SmtBhanu Kumar

Sri S.KRay (upto 27.07.2018)

SriA.K.Rai

Sri Gangaram Aloria

Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli

Smt. Pravati Parida (Upto 01.04.2019)

Dr. TV Muralivallabhan

Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi

Sri Rajib Bhattacharya

Sri Satadal Mitra

SriAshok Mishra

SriAurobindo Behera

Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi

Smt. LaxmiVerma

Chairman cum Managing Director

Chairman cum Managing Director

Director (Finance)

Director (Finance)
Director (Commercial)
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Managing Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary
Independent Director
Independent Director

Independent Director




(ii) Transaction with Related Parties

(a) Compensation to Key Managerial Personnel
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Remuneration (3 in Million)

Particulars Nature of related Short Term | Post Employment | Other Long Total

party / relationship Benefit Benefits Term Benefits
As at March 31st,2020
Sri Surinder Kumar Gupta (From 17.12.2019) Chairman cum

Managing Director 1.20 0.06 - 1.26
Sri Bambahadur Singh (Upto 30.11.2019) Chairman cum

Managing Director 4.06 - - 4.06
Sri Subrata Sarkar Director (Finance) 3.91 0.32 0.27 4.50
Smt Bhanu Kumar Director (Commercial) 4.67 0.36 0.51 5.54
SriAKRai Company Secretary 2.75 0.1 0.38 3.24
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director 0.32* - - 0.32
Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli Independent Director 0.32* - - 0.32
Dr. TV Muralivallabhan Independent Director 0.39* - - 0.39
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi Independent Director 0.41* - - 0.41
Sri Rajib Bhattacharya Managing Director 459 0.31 (0.20) 4.70
Sri Satadal Mitra Chief Financial Officer 3.38 0.30 0.21 3.89
Sri Ashok Mishra Company Secretary 1.54 0.09 0.16 1.79
Sri Aurobindo Behera Independent Director 0.17* - - 0.17
Smt. Laxmi Verma Independent Director 0.21* - - 0.21

Remuneration (T in Million)

Particulars Nature of related Short Term | Post Employment | Other Long Total

party / relationship Benefit Benefits Term Benefits
As at March 31st,2019
Sri Bambahadur Singh Chairman cum

Managing Director 7.36 0.22 - 7.58
"Sri Subrata Sarkar(From 01.12.2018 )" Director (Finance) 1.85 0.15 0.22 2.22
"Sri A.K Basu(From 01.04.2018 To 30.11.2018)" Director (Finance) 5.17 - - 5.17
Smt Bhanu Kumar Director (Commercial) 5.88 0.11 0.09 6.08
Sri S.K Ray (upto 27.07.2018) Company Secretary 0.48 - - 0.48
"Sri A.K.Rai(From 27.07.2018 )" Company Secretary 2.01 0.09 - 210
Sri Gangaram Aloria Independent Director 0.27* - - 0.27
Dr. Rudramauni Shivayogeppa Yeli Independent Director 0.21* - - 0.21
Smt. Pravati Parida Independent Director 0.09* - - 0.09
Dr. TV Muralivallabhan Independent Director 0.34* - - 0.34
Smt. Aparna Chaturvedi (from 14.12.2018) Independent Director 0.09* - - 0.09
Sri Rajib Bhattacharya Managing Director 433 0.21 0.32 4.86
Sri Satadal Mitra Chief Financial Officer 3.19 0.19 0.33 3.71
Sri Ashok Mishra Company Secretary 1.41 0.05 0.11 1.57
Sri Aurobindo Behera Independent Director 0.27* - - 0.27
Smt. Laxmi Verma Independent Director 0.05* - - 0.05
Note : * It indicate Directors Sitting Fees.

(i) Since the facility of private use of car for limited mileage is provided by the company to the Directors, such facility has not been

considered as benefit/perquisite.

(i) Theabove includes Performance related pay on actual payment basis.
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(b) Transaction with Mahindra MSTC Recycling Private Limited (50:50 Joint Venture)

(% in million)
Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Investment in Joint Venture - 80.00
Amount received towards reimbursement of expenditure 0.66 0.73
Amount paid towards reimbursement of expenditure 0.61 0.22
Amount Received for providing E-Auction Service 0.23 0.13

41.

Employee Benefits

Defined Contribution Plans

1.

Provident Fund
12% of Basic pay and dearness allowance contributed to the providend fund trust by the Group.
Pension

In terms of Ministry of Steel Directives Pension scheme for the employees of MSTC has been formulated , under Defined
Contribution Plan. The company contributes annually to LIC of India through a trust. LIC will provide the pension to the
employees from the corpus created on account of employees, by way of contribution from MSTC (The Employer).

Leave Encashment Benefit

In case of subsidiary, it is payable on separation to eligibile employees, shall be limited to 300 days (Earned Leave and Half-Pay
Leave combined), and HPL shall not be commuted as per DPE Guidelines for calculation of 300 days limit. Encashment of
accumulated earned leave is also allowed upto 30 days once in a calender year.

Post Retirement Settlement Benefit
In case of subsidiary, itis payable to retiring employees for settlement at their declared home town.
Employee Family Benefit Scheme

In case of subsidiary, monthly payment to disabled separated employees / legal heirs of deceased employees in lieu of
prescribed deposit till the notional date of superannuation of deceased employees.

Long Term Service Award

In case of subsidiary, itis payable in kind for rendering minimum 25 years of service and also on superannuation.

Defined Benefits Plans

1.

Gratuity:

The Gratuity is payable on separation at the rate of 15 days pay for each completed year of service to eligible employees who
render continuous service for a minimum period of 5 years and upto 30 years. The Gratuity is calculated at the rate of one
month's wages last drawn by the employee for every completed year of service in excess of 30 years. The maximum amount of
Gratuity payable to employee is ¥ 2 Million. The Gratuity is funded with LIC of India. Till March'18 the Company contributed in
the fund every year as premium on the basis of demand raised by LIC of India which was accounted as Gratuity on the basis of
payment of premium. In addition, the company has done actuarial valuation of Gratuity Fund in accordance with Ind AS 19.

Post Retirement Medical Benefit:

The Post Retirement Medical Benefit is a medical benefit to the superannuated employees and their spouse. The members will
be covered through Mediclaim Insurance admitted of the Insurance Company. This is available to superannuated employees at
any hospital under the Mediclaim Insurance Policy.In addition to this expenses incurred in domicilliary treatment is also
reimbusrsed as per prescribed ceiling.The benefits are funded through a separate trust formed by the Holding Company for this
purpose.The Holding Company provides the corpus for this. Deficit if any is being compensated by the Holding Company. Till
F.Y 2015-16, the Company used to contribute to the fund based on own estimates. From F.Y 2016-17, first time actuarial
valuation has been done and accordingly liability has been provided in the books of accounts.

Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary):

In case of subsidiary, the payment of medical facilities (Domiciliary) to the separated executives as covered under contributary
scheme for post retirement medical facilities (domiciliary) for executives.




Investment risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is
determined by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds. For
other defined benefit plans, the discount rate is determined by reference to market yields at the end of
the reporting period on high quality corporate bonds when there is a deep market for such bonds; if the
return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a plan deficit. Currently, for the planin India, ithas a
relatively balanced mix of investments in government securities, and other debt instruments. Further,
the overseas plan has a relatively balanced investment in equity securities, debt instruments and real
estates. Due to the long-term nature of the plan liabilities, the board of the overseas Fund considers it
appropriate that a reasonable portion of the plan assets should be invested in equity securities and in
real estate to leverage the return generated by the fund.

Interestrisk Adecrease in the bond interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be partially offset by
anincrease inthe return on the plan's debtinvestments.

Longevity risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of
the mortality of plan participants both during and after their employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of
plan participants. As such, an increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan's
liability.

(a) The Group has recognised an amount of ¥ 165.23 Million (Previous Year¥ 119.52 Million ) in Statement of Profit and Loss for the
currentyear as expenses under defined contribution plans.

Benefit (Contribution to) 31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Zin Million Zin Million
Provident Fund & others* 13717 94.21
Pension 28.06 25.31
Total 165.23 119.52

* This represents the provision for ¥ 25.17 Million (Previous Year - Nil ) towards the contribution for deficit in income of PF Trust for
the FY 2019-20 (Refer Note No. - 25)
(b) The company operates post retirement defined benefit plans as follows :
i. Funded:
a. Gratuity.
b. Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme.
ii. Unfunded:
a. In case of subsidiary, Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme is unfunded.
b. Contributory scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary)

(c) Details of the Gratuity Plan are as follows :

For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

1. Assumptions

a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
b. Estimated rate of return on plan assets (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
c. Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) 8.00% 8.00%

In case of subsidiary, rate of escalation in salary (per annum) Non-Executive-10% for | Non-Executive-10%

the first year and 6% | for the first year and
thereafter Executive-10% 6% thereafter
for first year and 5% | Executive-10% for
thereafter first year and 5%

thereafter
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2. Amounts recognised in Consolidated statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit palns under Gratuity are as follows:

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Zin Million < in Million

a. Current service cost 36.90 32.77
b. Service Cost 36.90 32.77
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 3.34 10.69
d. Cost recognized in P&L 40.24 43.46

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 22.08 14.46
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 39.41 13.49
c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 61.49 27.95
d. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate (3.89) (1.23)
e. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 57.59 26.72
f.  (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 57.59 26.72

3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line item in
the Consolidated statement of profit and loss on the basis of actuarial valuation under INDAS 19.

4. Theremeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.

5(a). Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

T in Million T in Million

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 866.87 871.20
b.  Current Service Cost 36.90 32.78
c. Interest Cost on DBO 58.01 59.80
d. Past Service Cost- Plan Ammendment -
e. Acquisitions ( credit)/cost 1.07
f. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 27.92 11.08
g. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments 33.57 14.46
h.  Actuarial gains and loss arising demographic assumption 242
I Benefits paid from plan asset (123.45) (125.93)
J. Closing defined benefit Obligation 899.82 866.87

5 (b). Movements in the fair value of the plan assets are as follows
For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Zin Million < in Million

a. Fairvalue of the assets at the end of prior period 792.25 585.52
b. Interest Income on plan assets 54.68 49.11
c. Employer Contributions 79.26 282.30
d. Return on plan assets greater/(lesser) than discount rate 3.89 1.24
e. Benefits paid (123.45) (125.93)
f. Fair Value of assets at the end of current period 806.62 792.24
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6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
% in Million < in Million
Effect of a 1% change in discount rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (41.83) (41.18)
(i) closing balance of obligation 857.99 825.69
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 45.20 45.45
(i) closing balance of obligation 945.02 912.32
Effect of a 1% change in salary esclation rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 27.30 30.99
(i) closing balance of obligation 927.12 897.86
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (28.86) (31.92)
(i) closing balance of obligation 870.96 834.95

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

8.There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years
Details of the Post Retirement Medical Benefit Scheme are as follows :

Description For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019

1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 7.25%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) 5.00% 5.00%

2. Amounts recognised in consolidated statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Post Retirement Medical Benefit
Scheme are as follows:

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million < in Million

a. Current service cost 10.02 9.43

b. Service Cost 10.02 9.43

c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 21.30 18.11

d. Cost recognized in P&L 31.32 27.54

Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:

e. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 6.61 28.16

. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 57.91 11.27

g. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 64.52 39.43

h. Return on plan assets (greater)/less than discount rate 11.31 (1.75)

i.  Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 75.83 37.68
j. Adjustments for limit on net assets

k. (Income)/ Cost recognized in OCI 75.83 37.68




3. The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line
item in the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
5. Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

Zin Million < in Million

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year 413.94 357.38
b. Current Service Cost 10.02 943
c. Interest Cost 29.13 25.78
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in financial assumptions 70.51 (0.96)
e. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments (5.99) 41.94
f. Actuarial gains and loss arising from demographic assumption - (1.55)
f. Benefits paid directly by the Company (20.41) (18.07)
g. Closing defined benefit Obligation 497.21 413.94

6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
Effect of a 1% change in discount rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (62.64) (49.03)
(i) closing balance of obligation 434 57 364.91
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 73.89 57.45
(i) closing balance of obligation 571.09 471.39
Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 65.78 4510
(i) closing balance of obligation 562.99 459.04
Decrease
i) aggregate current service and interest cost (55.62) (36.90)
(i) closing balance of obligation 441.59 377.04

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the
assumptions may be correlated.

8. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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In case of subsidiary, details of the Contributory Scheme for Post Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) are as
follows:

For the year ended
31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
Description
1. Assumptions
a. Discount rate (per annum) 6.20% 7.10%
b. Medical Inflation (per annum) Not Applicable Not Applicable

2. Amounts recognised in Consolidated statement of profit and loss in respect of defined benefit plans under Contributory Scheme for Post
Retirement Medical Facilities (Domiciliary) are as follows:

a. Current service cost 0.57 0.56
b. Service Cost 0.57 0.56
c. Net Interest on net defined benefit liability / (asset) 1.28 1.27
d. Immediate recognition of (gains)/losses-other long term employee benefit plans - -
e. Cost recognized in P&L 1.86 1.83
Remeasurement on the net defined benefit liability/asset:

a. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO Experience 1.24 (1.00)
b. Actuarial (gain)/loss due to DBO assumption changes 2.30 0.88
c. Actuarial (gain)/loss arising during period 3.54 (0.12)
d. Actuarial (gains)/losses recognised in OCI 3.54 (0.12)
e. (Income)/Cost recognized in OCI 3.54 (0.12)

The current service cost and the net interest expenses for the year are included in the 'Employee benefits expense' line
itemin the consolidated statement of profit and loss.

The remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability is included in other comprehensive income.
Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows

For the year ended

31st March 2020 31st March 2019

< in Million Zin Million

a. Obligation as at the beginning of the year (18.51) (17.45)
b. Current Service Cost (0.57) (0.56)
c. Interest Cost (1.28) (1.27)
d. Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments - -
g. Benefits paid directly by the Company 0.86 0.65
h.  Amounts recognized in OCI (3.54) 0.12
i. Closing defined benefit Obligation (23.04) (18.51)
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6. Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined obligation are discount rate and expected
medical cost inflation. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

31st March 2020 31st March 2019
< in Million < in Million
Effect of a 1% change in discount rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost (2.53) (1.98)
(i) closing balance of obligation (25.57) (20.49)
Decrease
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost 3.07 2.39
(ii) closing balance of obligation (19.98) (16.12)

Effect of a 1% change in medical inflation rate
Increase
(i) aggregate current service and interest cost
(ii) closing balance of obligation
Decrease

(i) aggregate current service and interest cost

(i) closing balance of obligation

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

Not Applicable

7. The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the

assumptions may be correlated.

8. There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.

42 . Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

a. Inaccordance to Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, gross amount required to be spent by the group during the year -

T11.71 Million.
b. Thegroup hasincurred¥ 11.71 Millionin current year (Previous Year ¥21.00 Million) as CSR expenditure.

Particulars 31st March 2020 31st March 2019
Zin Million < in Million

(1) Construction/ Rennovation of any asset 3.28 16.16
(2) Construction of Toilet Blocks 3.03 0.50
(3) Contribution to PM Cares Fund 5.40 0.00
(4) Other 4.34
1.71 21.00

Above figures are disclosed separetly in note no 33(aa).
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43 . Balances of Trade Receivables, Trade Payables and Advances includes balances subject to confirmation/reconciliation and
consequential adjustment, if any. Reconciliations are carried out on on-going basis. Provisions, wherever considered necessary,
have been made.

44 . The current assets of the holding company are under charge with consortium bank against sanction of credit facilities to the
company.

45 . During the last quarter of F.Y. 2019-20, an exceptional phenomenon occurred in the form of COVID 19 virus attack. Nationwide
lockdown was imposed in the Country to counter this. As a result of which the business operations across the Country were
affected, with MSTC being no exception to it. Majority of the revenue of MSTC comes from E commerce segment. The
E commerce services were fully functional during this period providing services to our valued customers. The Company
continued with its development and planning activities during the period. MSTC assumes that there will not be any further
exigency due to this phenomenon and the business will grow to reach at normal level. The Company has considered the possible
effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID 19.There has been impact on revenue during the last quarter of F.Y.
2019-20. The financial implications on the business operations due to COVID 19 are yet to be ascertained.

46 . The figures for the corresponding previous years have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make them
comparable.

47 . The Board of Directors of the Holding Company in its 298th Meeting held on 29.06.2020 has proposed a final dividend in respect
of year ending 31st March 2020, @ 33% on equity share capital which is ¥ 704.00 Million as on date. The payment of Dividend is
subject to approval of shareholders at Annual General Meeting. If approved it will resultin a cash outflow of¥ 232.32 Million.

In terms of our report of even date For MSTC LIMITED
For S Ghose & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 302184E/E300007

(CA Ranjan Kumar Paul) (S K Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021

DIN - 08643406

Date: 29/06/2020 (S K Barnwal) Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL. GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS) M. No : F5627
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Part B Associates and Joint Ventures

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read
with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)Rules, 2014)

Statement pursuant to Section 129(3) of the Companies
Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and Joint
Statement containing salient features of the financial Ventures

statement of subsidiaries or associate companies orjoint

ventures

Part A Subsidiaries
(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with

Name of Associates or
Joint Ventures

Mahindra MSTC
Recycling Pvt Ltd

. ot 1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date  31.03.2020
amounts in Rs. Million)
2. Date on which the Associate or
1. Sl.No. 1 . .
Joint Venture was associated or
2. Name of the subsidiary Ferro Scrap acquired 16.12.2016
Nigam Limited ) .
) 3. Shares of Associate or Joint Face Value of
3. The (.ja'te since wher! Ventures held by the company % 10/- each
subsidiary was acquired 1979-80 on the year end
4. Reporting period for the -
No. of sh 18.60 Mill
subsidiary concerned, 2019-20 0. ot shares ion
if different from the holding company’s reporting period. Amour.'nt of Invest.ment n X 186 Million
Associates or Joint Venture
5. Reporting currency and Exchange Not Applicable ) ) .
rate as on the last date of the Extent of Holding (in percentage) 50%
relevant Financial year in the case 4. Description of how there is Significance

of foreign subsidiaries.

significant influence

influence due to

6. Share capital % 320.00 share holding
7. Reserves and surplus 7 1852.98 5. Reason why the associate / joint Not Applicable
. i

8. Total assets % 4407 04 venture is not consolidated
9. Total Liabilities % 4407 04 6. Net worth .attrlbutable to T 111.98 Million

) shareholding as per latest
10. Investments Nil audited Balance Sheet
1. Turnover Y 4098.96 7. Profit or (Loss) for the year (¥ 53.88) Million
12. Profit before taxation <460.17 i. Considered in Consolidation 50% share
13. Provision for taxation 3 154.41 (% 26.94) Million
14. Profit after taxation % 305.76 ii. Not Considered in Consolidation 50% share

15.
16.

Proposed Dividend

Not Applicable

Extent of shareholding (in percentage)100%

In terms of our report of even date
For S Ghose & Co. LLP

Chartered Accountants

FRN : 302184E/E300007

For MSTC LIMITED

(% 26.94) Million

(CA Ranjan Kumar Paul) (S K Gupta) (Subrata Sarkar)
Partner CHAIRMAN-CUM- DIRECTOR FINANCE
M. No : 060084 MANAGING DIRECTOR DIN- 8290021
DIN - 08643406
Date: 29/06/2020 (S K Barnwal) Ajay Kumar Rai)
Place : Kolkata ADDL. GENERAL MANAGER COMPANY SECRETARY
(FINANCE & ACCOUNTS) M. No : F5627
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NOTICE OF 55™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE is hereby given that the fifty fifth Annual General
Meeting (AGM) of the Members of MSTC Limited will be held
on Friday, September 25, 2020 at 11:00 A.M. through Video
Conferencing (“VC”)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”) to
transact, the following businesses;

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Standalone
as well as Consolidated Financial Statement of the
Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2020,
together with the Reports of the Board and the Auditors.

2. Todeclare a dividend for the year ended March 31, 2020.
The Board of Directors has recommended a dividend of
¥ 3.30/- per equity share of ¥ 10 each fully paid up.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Smt. Bhanu Kumar
(DIN: 07982360), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offer herself for re-appointment.

4. Toauthorize Board of Directors of the Company to fix the
remuneration of the Auditors of the Company appointed
by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India for the
Financial Year 2020-21 and to consider if thought fit to
pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 142 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and
rules made there under the Board of Directors of the
Company be and is hereby authorized to determine the
amount of remuneration payable to the Statutory
Auditors under Section 139(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor
General of India, including reimbursement of out of
pocket expenses if any incurred by the said Auditors in
connection with the Audit of Accounts of the Company for
the Financial year 2020-21".

SPECIAL BUSINESS

Item No.5 : To appoint Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta
(DIN: 08643406), as Chairman and Managing Director.

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section
152,161(1), 196 and other applicable provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modification or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), the Articles of
Association of MSTC Ltd. and in accordance with the
recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee of the Company, Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta
(DIN:08643406), who was appointed as an Additional
Director, designated as Chairman and Managing Director by
the Administrative Ministry(Ministry of Steel), Vide letter no.
F. No. 8/1/2018-BLA dated October 11,2019 and who holds
office up to 55th Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby
appointed as Director, designated as Chairman and Managing
Director of the company liable to retire by rotation with effect
from the date of his assumption of charge of the post or till the
date of his superannuation, or until further orders from the
Ministry of Steel, whichever is the earliest and other terms and
conditions as contained in letter no. F. No. 8/1/2018-BLA dated
October 11, 2019 received from Ministry of Steel, Government
of India.”

‘RESOLVED FURTHER THAT, any director of the Company
and Company Secretary be and are hereby severally
authorized to do all the acts, matter, deeds and things which
are necessary and execute all documents or writing as may be
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to the above
resolutions, including completing necessary filings with the
relevant regulatory authorities regarding such appointment,
as applicable.”

Item No.6: Payment of contribution of I 5,00,00,000
(Rupee Five Crore Only) made to Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund
(PM CARES Fund)-COVID-19

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT contribution of ¥ 5,00,00,000 /-
(Rupees five crores only) made by the Company to the Prime
Minister's Citizen Assistance and Relief in Emergency
Situations Fund ( PM CARES Fund) for COVID-19 be and is
hereby approved.”

Item No.7: To appoint Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary
(DIN-06942194 ), as Govt. Nominee Director

To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without
modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:



“RESOLVED THAT Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152,
161(1) and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (including any statutory modification or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), the Articles of Association
of MSTC Ltd. and in accordance with the recommendation of
the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the
Company, Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary
(DIN-06942194), who was appointed as an Additional
Director, by the Board of Directors and who holds office upto
55" Annual General Meeting, be and is hereby appointed as a
Government Nominee Director liable to retire by rotation w.e.f
from July 2, 2020 or until further orders from the
administrative ministry, as contained in letter No 1/16/2015-
BLA dated July 2, 2020 received from the Ministry of Steel,
Government of India.”

Registered Office:
225-C,A.J.C.Bose Road,
Kolkata—700020

By Order of the
Board of Directors

Sd/
Place: Kolkata (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Date: July 18,2020 Company Secretary
Notes:
1. In view of the continuing Covid-19 pandemic, the

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) has vide its
circular dated May 5, 2020 read with circulars dated
April 8,2020 and April 13, 2020 (collectively referred to
as “MCA Circulars”) permitted the holding of the Annual
General Meeting (“AGM”) through VC / OAVM, without
the physical presence of the Members at a common
venue. In compliance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
(“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and MCA Circulars, the
AGM of the Company is being held through VC/ OAVM.

2. Pursuantto the provisions of the Act, a Member entitled
to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled to appoint a
proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalf and the proxy
need not be a Member of the Company. Since this AGM
is being held pursuant to the MCA Circulars through VC /
OAVM, physical attendance of Members has been
dispensed with. Accordingly, the facility for appointment
of proxies by the Members will not be available for the
55th AGM and hence the Proxy Form and Attendance
Slip are not annexed to this Notice.

3.  Corporate Members intending to send their authorized
representative(s) pursuant to section 113 of the
Companies Act 2013 to attend the Meeting are
requested to send a scan copy of the Board Resolution
authorizing their representative to attend through VC /
OAVM on its behalf and to vote through remote e-voting.
The said Resolution/ Authorization shall be sent to the
Scrutinizer by email through its registered email address
to ps@bajajtodi.in with a copy marked to
cosec@mstcindia.co.in and virenders@alankit.com

The Company has fixed September 17, 2020 as the
‘Record Date’ for determining entitlement of members
to final dividend for the financial year ended March 31,
2020, if approved at the AGM.

If the final dividend, as recommended by the Board of
Directors, is approved at the AGM, payment of such
dividend subject to deduction of tax at source will be
made within the stipulated time as under:

a) To all beneficial owners in respect of shares held in
dematerialized form as per the data as may be
made available by the National Securities
depositories Limited (NSDL) and the Central
Depository Services (India) Limited (“CDSL”)
collectively “Depositories” as of close of business
hours on September 17, 2020.

b) To allmembers in respect of shares held in physical
form after giving effect to valid transfer,
transposition or transmission requests lodged with
the company as of the close of business hours on
September 17, 2020.

In case of joint holders, the Member whose name
appears as the first holder in the order of names as per
the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled
tovote atthe AGM.

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the
Companies Act, 2013, relating to the special business to
be transacted at the meeting is attached herewith.

The business set out in the Notice will be transacted
through remote electronic voting system and the
Company is providing facility for voting by remote
electronic means. Instruction and other information
relating to e-voting are given in the notice under
Note no. 32.

Unpaid/unclaimed dividend: Pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules
made thereunder (as amended), any money transferred
to the Unpaid Dividend Account of a Company which
remains unpaid/ unclaimed for a period of seven years
from the date of such transfer shall be transferred by the
Company along with interest accrued (if any) thereon to
‘Investors Education & Protection Fund’ (IEPF)
constituted by the Central Government. Accordingly, the
Company has transferred the unclaimed divided to IEPF
which were belonging to the shareholders whose
dividend were unpaid/unclaimed from the Financial Year
2011-12.

Members are also requested to note that the shares in
respect of which dividend was not claimed for seven
consecutive years along with the unclaimed dividend
amount for the financial year ended March 31, 2013
(declared and paid in 2013) will be due for transfer to
IEPF on November 03, 2020.

Further, pursuant to the Investor Education and
Protection Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and
Refund) Rules, 2016 (as amended), the Company has
uploaded details of unpaid and unclaimed amounts lying
with the Company as on September 25, 2019 (date of
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last Annual General Meeting) on its website at
www.mstcindia.co.in and also on the website of the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs.

Compulsory transfer of Equity Shares to Investors
Education & Protection Fund (IEPF): Pursuant to the
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the
Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority
(Accounting, Audit, Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016
(as amended), all shares on which dividend has not
been paid or claimed for seven consecutive years has
been transferred to IEPF.

Further, members are requested to note that in respect
of dividend and shares transferred to IEPF, members are
entitted to claim the same from IEPF authority by
submitting an online application in the prescribed Form
IEPF- 5 available on the website www.iepf.gov.in and
sending a physical copy of the same duly signed to the
Nodal Officer of the Company at the registered office of
the Company, along with the requisite documents
enumerated in Form IEPF-5. Mr. Ajay Kumar Rai,
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer is the Nodal
Officer of the company for the purpose of verification of
such claims.

In terms of IEPF Rules, Member can file only one
consolidated claim in respect of the company in a
financial year.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of
the Company will remain closed from Friday,
September 18, 2020 to Friday, the September 25,
2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of Annual
General Meeting and payment of dividend.

Members may avail the facility of nomination in terms of
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013 by nominating
any person to whom their shares in the Company shall
vest on occurrence of events stated in Form-SH.13.
Form- SH.13 is to be submitted in duplicate to M/s.
Alankit Assignments Limited, RTA of the Company. In
case of shares held in dematerialized form, the
nomination has to be lodged with the respective
Depository Participant.

Members are requested to intimate changes, if any,
pertaining to their name, postal address, email address,
telephone/ mobile numbers, Permanent Account
Number (PAN), mandates, nominations, power of
attorney, bank details such as, name of the bank and
branch details, bank account number, MICR code, IFSC
code, etc., to Alankit Assignments Limited, the Registrar
and Share Transfer Agent of the company.

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has
mandated the submission of Permanent Account
Number (PAN) and Bank Account details by every
participant in securities market. Members holding
shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to
submit PAN and Bank details to their depository
participants with whom they are maintaining their demat
accounts. Member holding shares in physical forms are
also required to submit their PAN and Bank Account
details to the Registrar and Share Transfer
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Agent/Secretarial Department of the Company. SEBI
has also mandated that for registration of transfer of
securities, the transferee(s) as well as transferor(s) shall
furnish a copy of their PAN Card to the Company.

In terms of the SEBI Listing Regulations, securities of
listed companies can only be transferred in
dematerialized form with effect from April 01, 2019. In
view of the above, Members are advised to
dematerialize shares held by them in physical form. With
regard to the same, the Company’s Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent has already sent reminder letters to the
shareholders during the financial year 2019-20, for
updating their KYC details and for dematerializing their
physical holdings of securities.

All documents referred to in the Notice and explanatory
statement shall be made available for inspection by the
member of the Company, without payment of fees and
including the date of AGM. Members desirous of
inspection the same may send their requests at
cosec@mstcindia.co.in from their registered e-mail
address mentioning their names and folio numbers/
demataccount numbers.

Brief profile of the Directors Seeking appointment/
reappointment in terms of Clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) is annexed hereto
and forms part of the Notice.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and
SEBI Circular dated May 12, 2020, Notice of the AGM
along with the Annual Report 2019-20 is being sent only
through electronic mode to those Members whose email
addresses are registered with the Company/
Depositories. Members may note that the Notice and
Annual Report 2019-20 will also be available on the
Company’s website www.mstcindia.co.in, websites of
the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited and National
Stock Exchange of India Limited at www.bseindia.com
and www.nseindia.com respectively, and on the
website of NSDL https://www.evoting.nsdl.com.

Members attending the AGM through VC / OAVM shall
be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum
under Section 103 of the Act.

MSTC shares have been dematerialized with NSDL and
CDSL bearing ISIN INE255X01014. Members holding
shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize
the same immediately.

Members holding shares in the same name or in the
same order of names but in several folios are requested
to consolidate them into one folio.

Members who have not received or not encashed their
dividend warrants may approach M/s. Alankit
Assignments Limited, Registrar & Share Transfer Agent
of the Company, or Secretarial Department of the
Company for obtaining the same.

Bonus shares have been issued by the company on
January 11, 2019 to those Shareholders holding shares
in demat mode only and shares belonging to those
shareholders who hold shares in physical mode were
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kept in a separate account known as “MSTC Limited

Unclaimed Suspense account”. All Shareholders

holding shares in physical mode only are requested to

convert their shares immediately from physical to demat
mode and claim the bonus shares from the company.

Non-resident Indian Members are requested to inform

Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, M/s.

AlankitAssignments Limited, Immediately of :

(a) Change in their residential status on return to India
for permanent settlement.

(b) Particulars of their bank account maintained in
India with complete name, branch, account type,
account number and address of the bank with pin
code number, if not furnished earlier.

To Support the ‘Green Initiative’, the members who have

not registered their e-mail addresses are requested to

register the same with the company’s Registrar and

Share Transfer Agent/ Depositories for receiving all

communication including Annual reports, Notices,

Circulars etc. from the Company electronically. A Public

notice regarding providing the email ids and other details

has already been published in news paper &
also uploaded on the Company’'s Website
www.mstcindia.co.in.

Members desiring any information relating to the

accounts are requested to write to the Company well in

advance through email on cosec@mstcindia.co.in so
as to enable the management to keep the information
ready.

Pursuant to Finance Act, 2020, dividend income will be

taxable in the hands of shareholders w.e.f. April 1, 2020

and the Company is required to deduct tax at source

from dividend paid to shareholders at the prescribed
rates. For the prescribed rates for various categories,
the shareholders are requested to refer to the Finance

Act, 2020 and amendments thereof. The shareholders

are requested to update their PAN with the Company/

Alankit Assignments Limited (in case of shares held in

physical mode) and depositories (in case of shares held

in demat mode). A Resident individual shareholder with

PAN and who is not liable to pay income tax can submita

yearly declaration in Form No. 15G/15H, to avail the

benefit of non-deduction of tax at source by email to

cosec@mstcindia.co.in by September 15, 2020.

Shareholders are requested to note that in case their

PAN is not registered, the tax will be deducted at a higher

rate of 20%. Non-resident shareholders can avalil

beneficial rates under tax treaty between India and their
country of residence, subject to providing necessary
documents i.e. No Permanent Establishment and

Beneficial Ownership Declaration, Tax Residency

Certificate, Form 10F, any other document which may be

required to avail the tax treaty benefits by sending an

email to cosec@mstcindia.co.in. The aforesaid
declarations and documents need to be submitted by the

shareholders by September 15, 2020.

In the event of any income tax demand (including

interest, penalty, etc.) arising from any

misrepresentation, inaccuracy or omission of
information provided by the Member/s, such Member/s
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will be responsible to indemnify the Company and also,
provide the Company with all information / documents
and co-operationin any appellate proceedings.

This communication is not exhaustive and does not
purport to be a complete analysis or listing of all potential
tax consequences in the matter of dividend payment.
Shareholders should consult their tax advisors ro
requisite action to be taken by them.

Since the AGM will be held through VC / OAVM, the
Route Map is not annexed in this Notice.
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING
THEAGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

In view of the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic,
social distancing norm has to be followed and pursuant
to the Circulars, physical attendance of the members at
the AGM is not required and AGM has to be held through
VC/ OAVM. Hence, members can attend and participate
in the ensuing AGM only through VC/OAVM as arranged
by the Company with National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL).

Members are requested to join the AGM on
Friday, September 25, 2020 through VC/OAVM mode
latest by 10.45 a.m. IST by clicking on the link
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under members login,
where the EVEN of the Company will be displayed, by
using the remote evoting credentials and following the
procedures mentioned later in these Notes. The said
process of joining the AGM will commence from
10:00 a.m. IST and may be closed at 11:30 a.m. IST, or
soon thereafter.

Member will be provided with a facility to attend the
AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting
system. Members may access the same at
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com under shareholders/
members login by using the remote e-voting credentials.
The link for VC/OAVM will be available in
shareholder/members login where the EVEN of
Company will be displayed. Please note that the
members who do not have the User ID and Password for
e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password
may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting
instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute
rush. Further members can also use the OTP based
login for logging into the e-Voting system of NSDL.

The facility of attending the AGM will be made available
to 1000 members on a first-come-first-served basis.
Members who would like to express any views, or, during
the AGM ask questions may do so in advance by
sending in writing their views or questions, as may be,
along with their name, DP ID and Client ID number/ folio
number, email id and mobile number, to reach the
Company’s email address at cosec@mstcindia.co.in
latest by Monday, September 21, 2020 by 5.00 p.m.
(IST).

When a pre-registered speaker is invited to raise at the
AGM his/her questions, already emailed in advance as
requested in point 5 above, but he / she does not
respond, the turn will go to the next pre-registered
speaker to raise his/her questions. Accordingly, all



speakers are requested to get connected to a device
with a video/ camera along with stable internet speed.

7. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of
questions/speakers, as appropriate, for smooth conduct
ofthe AGM.

8. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through
Laptops for better experience.

9.  Further Members will be required to allow Camera and
use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance
during the meeting.

10. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile
Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via
Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to
Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore
recommended to use Stable Wi-Fior LAN Connection to
mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

11. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as
a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask
questions during the meeting.

12. Members who need assistance before or during the
AGM with regard to use of technology, can:

(@) Send a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or use Toll free
no.: 1800-22-990 or

(b) Contact Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at the
designated email ID: evoting@nsdl.co.in or
pallavid@nsdl.co.in attelephone no. (022) 2499-4545.

32. THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE
E-VOTINGAREAS UNDER:-

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday 21st

September, 2020 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on 24th

September, 2020 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module

shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter.

How do | vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system

consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:

Step1: Log-in to NSDL e-Voting system at

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

Step2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL

e-Voting system.

Details on Step 1 are mentioned below:

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web
browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal
Computer oron a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched,
click on the icon “Login” which is available under
‘Shareholders’ section.

3. Anew screen will open. You will have to enter your User
ID, your Password and a Verification Code as shown on
the screen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e.

IDEAS, you can log-in at https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your

existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can
proceed to Step 2i.e. Cast your vote electronically.

4. Your User ID details are given below :

Manner of holding | Your User ID is:
shares i.e. Demat
(NSDL or CDSL)
or Physical
a) For Members who | 8 Character DP ID followed by
hold shares in 8 Digit Client ID
demat account
with NSDL.

For example if your DP 1D
is In300*** and Client ID is
12****** then your user ID is
|N300***12******.

b) For Members who |16 Digit Beneficiary 1D
hold shares in
demat account
with CDSL.

For example if your Beneficiary
|D IS 12************** then your
user ID IS 12**************

c) For Members EVEN Number followed by
holding shares in | Folio Number registered with
Physical Form. the company

For example if folio number is
001*** and EVEN is 101456
then user ID is 101456001***

5. Your password details are given below:

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you
can user your existing password to login and cast
your vote.

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first
time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial password’
which was communicated to you. Once you
retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter
the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you
to change your password.

c) Howtoretrieve your ‘initial password’?

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat
account or with the company, your finitial
password’ is communicated to you on your
email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL
from your mailbox. Open the email and open
the attachmenti.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file.
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client
ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your
‘User ID’and your ‘initial password’.

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow
steps mentioned below in process for those
shareholders whose email ids are not
registered

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “

Initial password” or have forgotten your password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you
are holding shares in your demat account with
NSDL or CDSL) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding
shares in physical mode) option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com.



c) If you are still unable to get the password by
aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat
account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time
Password) based login for casting the votes on the
e-Voting system of NSDL.

7.  After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms
and Conditions” by selecting on the check box.

8.  Now, you will have to click on “Login” button.

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-
Voting will open.

Details on Step 2 is given below:

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting

system?

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see
the Home page of e-Voting. Click on e-Voting. Then,
click on Active Voting Cycles.

2. Afterclick onActive Voting Cycles, you will be able to see
all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding
shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

3.  Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast
your vote.

4.  Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page
opens.

5. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e.
assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for
which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit”
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

6. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast
successfully” will be displayed.

7. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by
clicking on the print option on the confirmation page.

8.  Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not
be allowed to modify your vote.

General Guidelines for shareholders

1 Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals,
HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/
Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of
the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to
vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to ps@bajajtodi.in with
a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in.

2. ltis strongly recommended not to share your password
with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will
be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to
go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or
“Physical User Reset Password?” option available on
www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently
Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download
section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800-222-990 or send a request to (Name of NSDL
Official) at evoting@nsdl.co.in.

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not

registered with the depositories for procuring user id and

password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the
resolutions set outin this notice :

1. Incase shares are held in physical mode please provide

Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested
scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to
cosec@mstcindia.co.in.
In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide
DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated
Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of
Aadhar Card) to cosec@mestcindia.co.in.

2. Alternatively member may send an e-mail request to
evoting@nsdl.co.in for obtaining User ID and Password
by proving the details mentioned in Point (1) or (2) as the
case may be.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON

THE DAY OF THEAGM ARE AS UNDER:-

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM
is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote
e-voting.

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present
in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have
not casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote
e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so,
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the
EGM/AGM.

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will
be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will
not be eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM.

4.  The details of the person who may be contacted for any
grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the
day of the EGM/AGM shall be the same person
mentioned for Remote e-voting.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT
TO SECTION 102(2) OF THE COMPANIES
ACT, 2013
Item No.5: To appoint Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta

(DIN: 08643406), as Chairman and Managing Director
Pursuant to section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013, the
Board of Directors has appointed Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta
[DIN: 08643406] as an Additional Director, designated as
Chairman and Managing Director of the company with effect
from December 17, 2019. Nomination and Remuneration
committee in its meeting held on January 9, 2020
recommended the appointment of Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta
as Chairman and Managing Director of the Company. The
Company has received from Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta :
(i) consent in writing to act as director in Form DIR-2 pursuant
to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules 2014, (ii) intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of
Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules,
2014, to the effect that he is not disqualified under subsection
(2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013.



The resolution seeks the approval of members for the
appointment of Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta as Director
designated as Chairman and Managing Director of the
Company from December 17, 2019 i.e with effect from the
date of his assumption of charge of the post or till the date of
his superannuation, or until further orders from the Ministry of
Steel, whichever is the earliest and his period of office shall be
subject to retire by rotation and other terms and conditions as
contained in letter no. F. No. 8/1/2018-BLA dated October 11,
2019received from Ministry of Steel, Government of India.

No Director, KMP or their relative except Shri Surinder Kumar
Gupta to whom the resolution relates, is interested in the
resolution.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set forth in
Item no. 5 for the approval of the members.

Item No.6: Payment of contribution of ~5,00,00,000 made
to Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in
Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) -Covid 19.

Company has received a request from the Ministry of Steel to
contribute ~ 5,00,00,000 from the CSR budget for the next
financial year or as donation to the Prime Minister’s Citizen
Assistance and Relief in Emergency Situations Fund
(PM CARES Fund) for Covid 19. Company does not have any
CSR fund for the current financial year.

Further company has incurred loss in the financial year
2018-19 and the average profit of last three years comes as
loss it would not be possible for the company to contribute as
donation without obtaining prior approval of the shareholders
in the general meeting. As per Ministry of Steel
Communication the amount of ~ 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five
Crores only ) has to be deposited by 01.04.2020. Therefore,
the Board of Directors vide its circular resolution no. 9/2019-20
dated March 31, 2020 because of paucity of time and
continuing lockdown in the Country decided to contribute the
amount to Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief in
Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) by way of
contribution and also decided to seek approval of
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Accordingly, the approval of the members are hereby sought
for ratification of the payment of ~ 5,00,00,000 (Rupees Five
Crore only) to Prime Minister’s Citizen Assistance and Relief
in Emergency Situations Fund (PM CARES Fund) by way of
contribution.

None of the Directors or KMP or their relatives are interested in
resolution.

The Board therefore, recommends the Ordinary Resolution
set forth in Item no.6 for the approval of the members.

Item No.7: To appoint Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary
(DIN- 06942194), as Govt. Nominee Director

The Administrative Ministry vide its Order no. 1/16/2015-BLA,
dated July 2, 2020 has recommended the appointment of
Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary (DIN-06942194), as
Govt. Nominee director with immediate effect until further
orders in place of Dr. Promodita Sathish . The Board of
directors on the recommendation of the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee of the Company had appointed him
as an additional director having the designation of
Government NomineeDirector.

The Company has received from Shri Awadhesh Kumar
Choudhary Form No. DIR-2, consent to act as a Director and
Form DIR-8 confirming that he is eligible to be appointed as
Director as prescribed under The Companies (Appointment
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

No Director, Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives,
except Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary to whom the
resolution relates, is interested or concerned financially or
otherwise in the resolution.

The Board recommends the ordinary resolution as set forth in
Item no. 7 for the approval of the members.

Registered Office:
225-C,A.J.C.BoseRoad,
Kolkata —700020

By Order of the
Board of Directors

Sd/
Place: Kolkata (Ajay Kumar Rai)
Date : July 18,2020 Company Secretary

Brief Profile of Directors seeking appointment in the 55" AGM

PARTICULARS Shri Surinder Kumar Gupta Smt. Bhanu Kumar Shri Awadhesh Kumar Choudhary
DIN 08643406 07982360 06942194
Date of Birth 01/01/1964 05/10/1966 25/08/1968
Nationality Indian Indian Indian
Date of Appointment on the Board 17/12/2019 10/10/2017 02/07/2020
Qualification B.E, M.Tech M.sc, PGDBM MA(Eco), M.Phil
List of Directorships held in 1. Mahindra MSTC Recycling Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited NA
other companies Private Limited
2.Ferro Scrap Nigam Limited
Chairman or membership of other NA Stakeholder Relationship 1. Audit Committee
committees in MSTC Ltd. Committee (Member) Nomination &  Remuneration
Committee
3. Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee
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